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The Success at Sierra Cables belongs to each and 
every one of our diverse Stakeholders, both internal 
and external. It’s only when we all feel the dividends 
of success and prosperity, can we grow together, 
as a team. Our core values of trust, integrity and 
quality are at the heart of our operations – giving 
courage and providing the impetus needed to surge 
ahead. Our desire to have our stakeholders share in 
our success; this selflessness to share and care has 
seen us grow and prosper beyond the shores of our 
nation in the business of manufacturing cables.

Our pursuit of excellence, consistent quality and 
ethical standards have placed us on par with the 
best cable manufacturers anywhere in the world. 
Our prowess has even brought recognition to 
Sri Lanka as a centre for manufacturing of high 
quality cables. This has truly shown that when 
building on quality and trust, we grow together 
with all our Stakeholders towards a better future.
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Company Introduction

The Sierra Group is a conglomerate operation in diverse 
sectors of Sri Lanka. A subsidiary, Sierra Cables has 
established a stronghold in Sri Lankan and the overseas 
marketplace as a complete and comprehensive Power 
Cables supplier for the residential, commercial and 
industrial sectors during the last few decades. The 
company is a leader in the manufacturing, marketing and 
distribution of Copper and Aluminum Cable products 
for the energy, industrial, specialty and communications 
sectors. 

Our Manufacturing Plant in Kaduwela, Sri Lanka.

The Sierra Cables’ main manufacturing facility is 
based in Kaduwela and the sprawling state-of-the-art 
manufacturing plant is equipped with the latest technology 
in cable manufacturing. The Company was established 
in 1999 and subsequently listed on the Colombo Stock 
Exchange in November 2005. Sierra Cables PLC has now 
grown and expanded into one of the foremost companies 
in manufacturing, industry specific Power Cables with 
national and international market presence. It has 
established manufacturing plants in Nairobi, Kenya, and in 
Fiji. As it establishes a global footprint, Sierra Cables PLC is 
cognizant of the need to be agile and flexible to customize 
solutions to cater to customer needs, whilst maintaining 
international quality standards, which are reflected in its 
array of international quality certifications. 

Sierra Cables East Africa Ltd. Factory Premises - Nairobi, Kenya

As a leading player in the Cable manufacturing segment, 
Sierra Cables’ quality and trusted credentials have received 
multiple accolades over the years. During the year under 
review, Sierra Cables PLC was awarded the 2017 Export 

Award for Manufacturing in the Extra-Large category, 
organised by the National Chamber of Exporters. The 
Company also received a recognition award from CNCI 
(Ceylon National Chamber of Industries).

NCE Export Award 2017 – Extra Large Category

Sierra Industries (Pvt) Ltd. is a subsidiary of Sierra Cables 
PLC and is engaged in manufacturing and marketing of 
high quality uPVC pipes and fittings using state-of-the-art 
technology.

The dynamic team at Sierra Cable PLC is forging ahead 
to achieve its target of becoming the market leader while 
making it one of the few companies out of Sri Lanka to 
establish successful international operations by leveraging  
on local know-how. 

Sierra Holdings (Pvt) Ltd

Sierra Cables PLC

Sierra 
Industries 
(Pvt) Ltd*

Sierra Cables 
East Africa 

Limited*

Sierra Power
 (Pvt) Ltd*

Cables PTE
Ltd** 

T & G Lanka 
(Pvt) Ltd**

Tea Leaf 
Resort 

(Pvt) Ltd**

* Subsidiary companies of Sierra Cables PLC
**Associate companies of Sierra Cables PLC

Group Structure
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Vision

Values

P r o d u c t i v i t y

I n t e g r i t y

P a s s i o n

S e r v i c e

Q u a l i t y

Mission

Being the bridge in energizing the community

Achieve a continuous growth to enhance the stakeholder 
value while offering a high quality product. Become a 
reputed organization by promoting sustainable development,
uplifting the living standards of the Sierra Cables family.

As a responsible and ethical corporate citizen, Sierra Cables PLC 
carries out its affairs based on a set of values. Every member of 
the Sierra Cables family is committed to follow them.

As a manufacturer, we always try to take the maximum 
output from resources without exploiting them.

We believe in truth, justice and fair play together with 
professionalism, above everything.

We will embrace challenges with passion and aggressively
pursue our goals to reach the pinnacle.

We always strive for excellence in serving our customers
and ensure that the service provided is at the required level.

We are committed to producing superior quality products
for our customers.
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CNCI Industrial 
Excellence Gold Award

Sierra Cables PLC won the Gold 
Award for excellence in industrial 

sector enhanced quality standards, 
productivity, employee benefits  

and relations.

Quality Crown Award
BID Quality Crown Award 

based on QC100 Total Quality 
Management (TQM) model of 

the Company.

Incorporation
Sierra Cables Limited 

incorporated as a legal  
entity in 1999.

Public Listing
Obtained the public listing on  
the Colombo Stock Exchange 

(CSE) through an Initial  
Public Offering (IPO).

Best Cable 
Manufacturer of the 

Year
UDC International Business 
Awards, 2011 in recognition 

of innovation, product 
development and sustainability. 
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NCE Export Award
Won the Bronze Award for 

Industry sector - Extra  
Large Category.

20 Years of 
Partnership  

with CEB
Marked the successful 

business collaboration with 
Ceylon Electricity Board (CEB) 

in National Electrification 
Programs.  

Sierra Industries 
(Pvt) Ltd 

Fully owned subsidiary of Sierra 
Cables PLC engaged in the 

manufacturing and distribution 
of uPVC pipes and fittings. 

Kenya Market Entry
Our very first Power Cable 

manufacturing plant outside 
Sri Lanka, Sierra cables East 

Africa Limited, mainly focusing 
on emerging East African 

Region.  

Fiji
Accessed Pacific Islands, 

Australia, New Zealand markets 
through an Associate Company , 

Cables PTE Limited.

Sierra Cables PLC
Annual Report 2017 – 2018

2015 2017

2011

2016

2018..
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Introduction to the 15th Annual Report

Sierra Cables PLC is delighted to present its 15th integrated 
Annual Report. The Company is fully committed towards 
meeting Stakeholders’ expectations by providing balanced 
and relevant information on our value creation process. 
This Annual Report presents a detailed account of our 
strategy, performance and outlook and how these align 
with our economic, social and environmental aims. 

Scope and Boundary 
Sierra Cables PLC’s operations during the period of 
1st April 2017 to 31st March 2018 have been comprehensively 
covered in this Annual Report. Financial and non-financial 
information related to material developments and issues 
that shaped the Company’s performance during the 
reporting period are discussed in detail. Aspects included in 
the Report were arrived at after a systematic Stakeholder 
engagement process. 

Reporting Principles 
This integrated report conforms to the requirements of 
several mandatory and voluntary frameworks including 
the Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Standards, Companies 
Act No. 07 of 2007, Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock 
Exchange, Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance, 
issued jointly by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Sri Lanka and the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Sri Lanka. 

This Annual Report presents 
a detailed account of our 

strategy, performance and 
outlook and how these align 

with our economic, social 
and environmental aims.

Verification 
Third party assurance is vital in establishing credibility 
and transparency of declarations of our performance in 
this Report. We have engaged Messrs KPMG, Chartered 
Accountants to provide assurance on the Financial 
Statements in this report and the supplementary notes.
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Financial Highlights (Group)

Financial Year ended 31st March 2018
Rs.

2017
Rs.

Net Turnover 4,069,119,607 4,044,449,473

Profit Before Tax (7,112,444) 347,668,988

Profit After Tax (38,725,906) 265,459,538

Shareholders’ Funds 1,831,240,296 1,679,694,650

Issued & Fully Paid Number of Shares 537,512,430 537,512,430

Total Assets 5,020,154,863 4,416,039,734

Market Capitalization (Mn) 1,183 1,613

Dividend Payout Ratio (%) - 50

Current Ratio 1.17 1.25

Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) (%) 7.57 25

Per Share (LKR)

Market Value - Highest 3.50 3.80

         Lowest 2.10 2.80

         Last Trade 2.20 3.00

Earnings (0.05) 0.50

Dividends - 0.25

Net Assets 3.39 3.12
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Chairman’s Message

I am pleased to present the Annual Report and Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31st March 2018. The theme 
for our Annual Report this year, ‘Building on Quality and 
Trust – Together We Grow’, exemplifies our approach to our 
business during the period under review. As a leading cable 
manufacturer in the country, we continued to strengthen 
our credentials in the market. Despite the prevailing 
unfavourable market conditions during the period under 
review, the Company managed to record volume growth 
and consolidated its strengths, further investing in building 
operational excellence. 

During the year under review, the Company was unable 
to leverage on the strategic investments made by the 
Company due to wider market realities in both Sri Lanka 
and Kenya, although our Fiji operation expanded during 
the year. The realization that we have an invaluable set 
of people at Sierra Cables PLC continues to power our 
growth. The 2017/18 year was marked by consolidation of 
our business to potentially overcome the adverse market 
conditions that emerged during the period. The slowdown 
in the national economy further compounded the obstacles 
in our path to profitability. 

Operating Environment
Sri Lanka’s economic growth slumped to a 16-year low in 
2017, recording a GDP growth of 3.1% as compared to a 
more robust rate of 4.4% experienced in 2016. Political 
instability and the inability of the economy to generate 
sufficient demand caused lacklustre activity in most 
sectors. Volatile weather conditions persisted in the year 
under review as well, impacting the agricultural sector as 
well as the construction sectors.

Industry related activities, accounting for 26.8% of real GDP, 
grew by 3.9% in 2017. However, the growth of construction 
activities that supported the overall economic growth 
throughout the post-conflict period, with the exception of 
2015, decelerated notably during 2017. The construction 
sector slowed down to record a growth of 3.1% compared 
to an expansion of 8.3% in 2016. Meanwhile, mining and 
quarrying activities also witnessed a slowdown in growth 
to 5.9% in 2017, from the expansion of 14.4 % recorded in 
the previous year. 

Exports rebounded during 2017 to record the historically 
highest value in terms of earnings, thus reversing the 
lacklustre performance in exports, which has seen them 
declining from 33.3% of GDP in 2000 to 12.6% in 2016. 
Accordingly, earnings from exports increased by 10.2% to 
USD 11,360 Mn in 2017. 

During 2017, the unemployment rate declined to 4.2% 
from 4.4% in the preceding year. In spite of the low overall 
unemployment rate, high unemployment among youth, 
educated groups and females persisted. Despite this, the 
construction sector, like many others, continues to face a 
severe labour shortage, with many youth being unwilling to 
work in manufacturing plants.

Despite the tight monetary policy stance maintained by 
the Central Bank, the sharp acceleration in food inflation 
caused by weather related supply disruptions resulted in 
unanticipated upward movements in headline inflation. 
Revisions to Value Added Tax (VAT) and Nation Building Tax 
(NBT) and higher commodity prices in the global market 
also contributed to high levels of inflation. 

Expenditure on imports increased considerably in 2017, 
mainly due to higher imports related to inclement weather 
conditions and the firming of international commodity 
prices. Accordingly, imports increased by 9.4% to USD 
20,980 Mn during 2017, within which, expenditure on 
non-fuel imports increased by 5.1% to USD 17,552 Mn. 
Political instability increased in the latter half of the year 
and while the crisis was averted, governance has been 
impacted, giving rise to policy uncertainty which hinders 
economic expansion and investment. 

The rise in prices of raw materials used in our manufacturing 
processes, the exchange rate fluctuation and a liquidity 
crunch in the market were other external factors that 
affected the cable manufacturing industry. The Company 
imports raw materials used in the cable manufacturing 
process, thereby exposing it to currency risk when the 
Sri Lankan Rupee is devalued against the US Dollar, as it 
happened in 2017. 

Overall revenue at Group level 
increased from  

Rs. 4,044 Mn in 2016/17 to  
Rs. 4,069 Mn in 2017/18. 

Despite the slew of challenges 
faced during the year under 
consideration, the Company 

managed to increase the volumes 
by Rs. 25 Mn.
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Chairman’s Message Contd. 

Performance
Consequently, overall revenue at Group level increased 
from Rs. 4,044 Mn in 2017/18 to Rs. 4,069 Mn in 2017/18. 
Despite the slew of challenges faced during the year under 
consideration, the Company grew volumes in all segments.

During the year under review, Sierra Cables took several 
measures to mitigate the negative effect of external factors 
on its business by consolidating its business both locally as 
well as overseas. Our manufacturing operation in Kenya, 
while registering growth in the previous year, was adversely 
affected by political volatility caused by two presidential 
elections during the year under review. However, since then, 
manufacturing operations have resumed smoothly and we 
expect to reap substantial revenue from this venture in the 
medium or long-term.

We continue to adopt a long-term view for our business, 
backed by four decades of experience in the business 
of manufacturing cables. During the year, we continued 
to invest in building our human capital by ensuring a 
motivated and empowered workforce. 

Our sustainability agenda, which focuses on efficient 
production methods in order to maintain our 
profitability and competitive position while striving for  
minimal environmental impact, is instilled in our  
people and processes. 
 
Sierra Cables PLC has a high regard for governance and 
transparency and adheres to all the regulatory requirements 
while putting in place strengthened risk and governance 
frameworks. We have developed a robust code of conduct 
that defines the responsibility of our employees and takes 
into consideration the expectations that our Stakeholders 
have of us. 

Future Outlook
Sierra Cables PLC is optimistic about leveraging on 
emerging opportunities as a result of state and private 
sector construction projects nearing completion in the 
short-term. While being hopeful of renewed growth 
momentum in the national economy, we are expectantly 
anticipating a greater policy consistency regime in the 
months ahead. These developments will help drive future 

expansion for the Company and the cable manufacturing 
industry as a whole. As a company, we will continue to 
drive strategic initiatives to create shareholder value and 
increase profitability.

Acknowledgments 
On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank all our 
stakeholders including shareholders, suppliers, customers 
and financial partners for their continued support. I am 
grateful to the Managing Director and the management 
team and employees for showing resilience and optimism 
in the face of challenges. In conclusion, I would like to 
express my sincere gratitude to all my colleagues on the 
Board for their continued insights and invaluable guidance 
as we explore new opportunities and move ahead with 
confidence.

W.A.P. Perera
Chairman

Colombo

13th August 2018
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Managing Director’s Statement

The year under review proved to be one of the most 
challenging yet, in our history, as a multitude of external 
factors combined to create a less than ideal operating 
environment for our business. Declining margins due to 
market conditions was a trend that was experienced across 
the nation’s manufacturing sectors, but despite this the 
Company managed to record volume growth.

Challenges Abound
Although frenetic construction activity is visible in and 
around Colombo, most of these projects are contracted 
to foreign companies, thus depriving local contractors 
of the opportunity to enjoy a share of revenue from 
such high profile projects. As a result, Sierra Cables PLC 
too experienced a drop in demand from this segment of 
customers in its projects side of the business. Furthermore, 
customers requested for easy credit terms due to the 
shortage of liquidity in the market. The Company had to 
adapt to the evolving market realities – by taking each 
request on a case-by-case basis, to prudently extend credit 
as it deemed fit. 

An upsurge in raw material prices and rupee devaluation 
pushed the cost of production to untenable levels during 
the period under review. Unfortunately, although the prices 
of Copper and Aluminium rose during the year, the net sale 
price of cables came down due to intense competition in 
the market. The Company imports the raw materials that 
go into making of cables, therefore the rupee devaluation 
impacted us particularly hard. The prices for the year were 
fixed when the exchange rate was pegged at Rs. 138 to the 
US Dollar, but by end of the financial year under review, the 
rupee had fallen to Rs. 160 against the USD. However, the 
prices could not be recalibrated to absorb this loss as the 
regulator dictates that the cable industry maintains fixed 
selling prices.

Performance 
Despite these difficult circumstances, volumes grew 
satisfactorily over the year. The Tenders segment side 
of the business was the major contributor to the group, 
accounting for a large chunk of revenue, while our Dealers 
arm followed with a good performance, further followed 
by Projects and Exports.  Although the company tried 
to expand opportunities in the dealer market, the rise in 
cement prices and interest rates triggered a slowdown in 
the housing construction sector.

A bright spot on the horizon was the subsidiary of Sierra 
Cables PLC, Sierra Industries, which received a substantial 
order from a foreign contractor for a value of USD 5.5 Mn 
during the year under review and while production has 
commenced, the delivery will take place only during the 
next financial year. The Company has invested in enhanced 
storage and warehousing capacity to cater to projected 
increase in demand in the medium-term. 

Shortage of skilled labour continues to be a thorn in the 
side of the industry and the Company has now resorted to 
outsourcing labour to ensure operations continue smoothly, 
without causing disruption along the supply chain. Labour 
costs too increased during the year, which served to further 
drive the cost of production upwards.

Despite various challenges 
faced during our inception, 

Sierra Cables PLC has ensured 
sustainability of its operations 

over the last few decades. 
Unfortunately, the profitability 

of the cable sector as a whole has 
not increased, since the fortunes 

of the sector in which we operate 
are closely tied with the growth 

of public infrastructure and 
private sector construction 

projects.

Our Foreign Investments
The year under review, witnessed the commencement 
of commercial operations of our factory in Kenya, but 
two subsequent presidential elections during 2017/18 
stymied demand. However, political stability has since 
been established in the country and we hope that this 
will result in greater economic stimulus, which will benefit 
our manufacturing operation. The Kenyan Government 
has forged several free trade agreements with countries 
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within Africa during the same period and is encouraging 
local manufacturers to take advantage of opportunities to 
export to those partner countries. We are committed to 
seizing emerging opportunities and focused on enhancing 
this operation to ensure that the plant runs at full capacity.
 
The joint venture we have entered into in Fiji, affords access 
to neighbouring markets, namely; Australia, New Zealand 
and Papua New Guinea. The power cable manufacturing 
plant has commenced production and is catering to 
demand in islands surrounding Fiji. 

In keeping with our commitment to providing employees 
with opportunities for career enhancement, we seconded 
some employees from our Sri Lankan factory to Kenya and 
Fiji, thereby offering them exposure to foreign markets. 
Considering the labour shortage in the industry, we remain 
focused on upskilling existing staff through intensive 
training. 

Our in-built resilience and technical excellence continues 
to nourish the Company and its people. During the year 
under review, Sierra Cables PLC was the recipient of the 
2017 Export Award for Manufacturing in the Extra-large 
category, organised by the National Chamber of Exporters 
(NCE). The Company also received recognition from CNCI 
(Ceylon National Chamber of Industries).

Looking Ahead
Despite various challenges faced during our inception, Sierra 
Cables PLC has ensured sustainability of its operations over 
the last few decades. Unfortunately, the profitability of 
the cable sector as a whole has not increased, since the 
fortunes of the sector in which we operate are closely  
tied with the growth of public infrastructure and 
private sector construction projects. We are buoyed  
by the prospects of the completion of the Colombo 
Financial City by 2020, which should generate sufficient 
demand for our products, provided the government  
keeps the interests of the cable manufacturing industry in 
mind by curbing imported cables.

A worrying piece of news during the year is that the Ceylon 
Electricity Board (CEB) is inviting tenders for power cables 
from other countries, which poses a grave threat to the 
future sustainability of the Company and the local industry. 
Sierra Cables PLC was set up to supply power cables 
exclusively to CEB and if CEB itself looks outside the country, 
local cable manufacturers like us will be unable to match 
the low pricing of Indian and Chinese manufacturers. Yet 

another looming threat is the new Free Trade Agreements 
(FTAs) being signed by the government and the possibility 
of them striking cables off the negative list, which would 
negatively impact the local cable manufacturing industry. 

The lack of availability of raw materials locally hampers our 
ability to offer low prices. While the Company has a strong 
track record of winning tenders, the political instability in 
Sri Lanka in the latter half of the year impacted the tender 
process adversely. I believe raw material prices will continue 
to be volatile in the upcoming financial year along with a 
projected uptick in copper prices. While the prospects for 
the construction sector seem more positive, with major 
construction projects getting underway, I hope to see local 
manufacturers also invited to share in profits from such 
large-scale projects.

We are optimistic about our operations - in Kenya and 
Fiji - and expect them to generate significant returns in 
the long term. Being the first-ever Sri Lankan power cable 
manufacturer to venture overseas, we are forging ahead 
with a clear and sustainable growth strategy. Sierra Cables 
PLC is ideally positioned to capitalise on emerging growth 
opportunities, given its enviable scale and manufacturing 
expertise. We will build on our valuable strengths of quality 
and trust to grow our business. 

Appreciation 
I would like to thank the Chairman and members of the 
Board for their continued support and counsel. I appreciate 
the dedication and hard work of all the employees to 
navigate a challenging year. The support extended to us 
by customers, dealers, suppliers, financial partners and 
other stakeholders was invaluable to the Company as it 
consolidates its operations and looks ahead optimistically. 

D. S. Panditha
Managing Director

Colombo

13th August 2018
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Board of Directors’ Profiles

W.A.P. Perera
Chairman 
Mr. W.A.P. Perera is a founder Director of Sierra Construction 
(Private) Limited and serves as the Chairman of Sierra 
Cables PLC. He accounts for over 37 years of experience in 
the construction industry. 

D.S. Panditha
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer 
Mr. D.S. Panditha is the Managing Director and Chief 
Executive Officer of Sierra Cables PLC. He is a member 
of both the Institute of Incorporated Engineers and 
the Institute of Marketing (SL). He has over 40 years of 
experience in the cable and plastic industry.

G.S.M. Irugalbandara
Ms. G.S.M. Irugalbandara was a Director of Alucop Cables. 
She has an MBA from the University of South Queensland. 
She has been attached to KPMG as a Tax Manager prior to 
joining Alucop Cables. She now serves as a Non-Executive 
Director at Sierra Cables PLC.

E.A.D.T.B. Perera
Mr. E.A.D.T.B. Perera is a founder Director of Sierra 
Construction (Private) Limited with 36 years of experience 
in the construction industry.

J.H.P. Ratnayeke (Until 01st of August 2018)
Mr. J.H.P. Ratnayeke is a Senior Corporate Lawyer who is 
also the precedent partner of Paul Ratnayeke Associates, 
a leading law firm in Sri Lanka which he founded in 
1987, handling all areas of law and International Legal 
Consultancy work. 

Mr. Ratnayeke is a Solicitor of England and Wales and an 
Attorney-at-Law of the Supreme Court of Sri Lanka. He has 
been awarded a Masters Degree in Law by the University 
of London. Currently Mr. Ratnayeke holds directorships in 
over 62 Companies. He has also been elected/appointed as 
Chairman/Deputy Chairman to several of these companies. 
He is also the Chairman of P.R. Secretarial Services (Pvt) 
Ltd.

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane
Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane is the Director General of the 
National Science Foundation, Senior Professor in Civil 
Engineering and a former Vice-Chancellor of University of 
Moratuwa. He is an administrator, an academic, a researcher 
and a consultant with experience and expertise in university 
leadership, teaching, research and consultancy in the broad 
areas of construction management, project management, 
technology management and entrepreneurship. 

He has a BSc. Eng. in Civil Engineering with first class 
honors, University of Moratuwa, MSc in Construction, 
Loughborough University of Technology, United Kingdom 
and a PhD from the same University. He is a Past President 
and a Fellow of the Institution of Engineers, Sri Lanka, a 
Fellow of National Academy of Sciences Sri Lanka, a Fellow 
of Institute of Project Managers and a founding member of 
the Society of Structural Engineers Sri Lanka. 

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe
Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe is an electrical & electronics 
engineer by profession with a BSc in Electrical & Electronics 
from the University of Peradeniya. He is a holder of an MSc 
Degree in electrical power transmission and distribution 
from the University of Manchester Institute of Science & 
Technology, UK and a MA Degree in Economics. He was 
a former General Manager of Central Engineering and 
Consultancy Bureau.
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M.N. Gunasekera
Mr. M.N. Gunasekera was a former Chief Executive Officer / 
Director of Shaw Wallace & Hedges PLC and its Subsidiary 
and Associate Companies. He counts approximately 
41 years of work experience, out of which, 34 years have 
been with the Shaw Wallace Group and 12 years as the 
Chief Executive Officer. He has extensive experience in the 
total finance function and legal matters, specializing in 
taxation and overall general management.

He was a former Council Member and President of 
the Sri Lanka Institute of Taxation. He is a Fellow of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, Fellow 
of the Institute of Certified Management Accountants of 
Sri Lanka and Fellow of the Sri Lanka Institute of Taxation. 
He has followed a Management Development Program at 
the Cranfield School of Management, Bedford, England.

S.N. Lokuge
Ms. S.N. Lokuge is a Non-Executive Director and is 
currently reading for her Masters in International Business 
(Deakin University) whereas she has earned her Bachelors 
of Commerce Degree from Swinburne University of 
Technology in Australia, with a Graduate Certificate in 
Business Administration from the Swinburne University of 
Technology.

In addition, she serves as a Director for the International 
Tertiary Education Campus (INTEC) Asia, Director, NNL 
Holdings Pvt. Ltd, Deputy CEO, Sierra Construction “Road 
Division”, Alternative Director for Sierra Construction, 
Alternative Director for Sierra Holdings, and as Director of 
Sansun Boutique Hotel Limited.
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Operational Review

Global Economy Growth
The global economy continued to gain momentum in 
2017 with a substantial majority of economies registering 
a pickup in growth. Emerging and developing economies 
and advanced economies, which make up two-thirds of the 
world economies, registered higher growth rates in 2017, 
compared to 2016. For the first time in a decade perhaps, 
synchronised growth was seen in the US, UK, EU and Japan. 
Global trade recovered strongly and recorded substantially 
higher levels in 2017 compared to the past two years, 
despite the beginning of a series of successive retaliatory 
trade restrictions imposed on each other by the US and 
China. 

Despite the overall strengthening of global growth in 
2017, low levels of inflation called for the continuance of 
an accommodative monetary policy in most advanced 
economies. The US dollar remained lacklustre during the 
year amidst the strengthening of other major currencies and 
due to policy uncertainties. However, a largely synchronised 
expansion across the euro area stemming from improving 
labour markets and an accommodative monetary policy 
helped buoy the euro in 2017. The strength of the Yen has 
been supported by the recovery of the Japanese economy 
and the currency’s safe haven status. In spite of increased 
global market volatility, financial flows and portfolio flows 
to emerging market economies remained robust during 
the year. 

The global growth momentum is expected to improve 
further in 2018 and 2019 with better prospects for both 
advanced and emerging economies in terms of investment, 
production and trade, though possibly in the face of 
tightening financial market conditions and disruptions 
arising from trade wars between key global economies. 
The cyclical upturn registered in the last two years, which 
was synchronised across a broad cross section of advanced, 
and emerging and developing economies, is expected to 
augment further to record higher growth rates in the next 
two years and begin to moderate thereafter with growth in 
advanced economies returning to potential levels. 

Global growth in the next two years will mainly be driven 
by the pickup in domestic and external demand of the 
US, Europe and advanced Asian economies, as well as 
the effects of tax policy changes in the US that involved 
corporate tax reductions. In the US, fiscal adjustments to 
offset the deficit created through the tax reduction are 
expected in the medium term. Meanwhile, emerging and 
developing Asia is projected to grow at 6.5 % and 6.6 %, 
respectively, in the next two years. 

Sri Lanka’s Economic Performance 
Sri Lanka’s real GDP growth decelerated during 2017 to 
3.1% in contrast to 4.5% recorded in 2016. Agriculture 
related activities contracted by 0.8% against the backdrop 
of adverse weather conditions that carried over from 2016, 
while a slowdown in economic activity in both services 
and industrial sectors was seen. Industry related activities, 
accounting for 26.8% of real GDP, grew by 3.9% in 2017. 
However, the growth of construction activities that 
supported overall economic growth throughout the post 
conflict period, with the exception of 2015, decelerated 
notably during 2017. Services activities, which accounted 
for 56.8 % of real GDP, grew by 3.2 % in 2017, on a year-
on-year basis, driven by the expansion in financial service 
activities, wholesale and retail trade, and other personal 
service activities. 
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The Sri Lankan Electrical and Electronics industry is 
progressively making its mark in the Global Electronics 
Value Added Supply Chain with products and services 
gaining acceptance amongst the most important Global 
Market Leaders. The industry has grown exponentially over 
the last 45 years and its making a significant contribution 
towards the country’s exports. Having started as a 
basic assembler of Consumer Electronics and products 
in early 1970s, Sri Lanka shifted towards Electronic 
Components and Assemblies in post 1977s. In 2017, the 
industry’s contribution to the total export revenue was 
USD 371.48 Mn According to the OECD classification of 
manufacturing industries, it falls under the medium high 
technology and high technology industries in Sri Lanka. The 
industry mainly caters to Automobile, Telecommunication, 
Consumer Electronics, Industrial Automation, IoT, and 
many other verticals. As one of the sectors identified by 
the Export Development Board (EDB) for promotion under 
the National Export Strategy being formulated for the next 
five years, the future looks promising for the Electrical and 
Electronics industry.
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Operational Review Contd.

Sri Lanka’s import bill rose during the year under review, 
impacted by inclement weather conditions and a rise 
in international commodity prices. Accordingly, imports 
increased by 9.4% to USD 20,980 Mn during 2017, within 
which, expenditure on non-fuel imports increased by 5.1 % 
to USD 17,552 Mn expenditure on imports of fuel increased 
by 38.2 % to USD 3,428 Mn during the year owing to the 
increase in import volumes of fuel, led by higher demand 
from the domestic power generation sector as a result of 
dry weather in catchment areas as well as high oil prices in 
the international market.

Addressing the weak growth performance of the economy 
through the implementation of required growth supporting 
reforms, will remain a priority. Sri Lanka has advanced 
gradually to reach a per capita GDP of USD 4,065 by 2017, 
establishing itself as a middle income economy. However, 
the country can progress further only if policymaking 
remains rational with a long term focus on greater public 
good, while minimising policy swings motivated by short 
term political gains.

Company Performance 
The expansion in public construction industry is growing 
apace in the Western Province and beyond, with new 
hotels, roads, and some private sector university expansion 
projects, which have generated demand for the Company 
products. Although we had targeted 15% growth of this 
segment, considering the dismal operating conditions, we 
are pleased to have ended the year with a growth of 10%. .

Raw material prices rose sharply during the period under 
review, increasing the cost of production, a situation 
exacerbated further with the devaluation of the rupee 
against dollar. As an importer of raw materials needed in 
cable manufacturing, the rupee devaluation has an adverse 
impact on the company. The Company was unable to 
raise the prices of its products further, as a result of fierce 
competition in the industry.
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Business Development
During the year under review, the Company sustained its 
product development efforts and launched Fire Resistant 
Cable which was subsequently supplied to seven projects. 
The normal cable is used for domestic projects while 
fire Resistant cables are low smoke, halogen free cables. 
The launch of this category of cables was a timely move 
because within a short time, fire Resistant cables will be 
made compulsory in certain type of projects and we will be 
well positioned to cater to the market.

Another new product launched during the year is the 
network cable from Kaewon, a Korean company. As agents 
for Kaewon, Sierra Cables aggressively marketed this cable. 
Yet another new product is the solar cable from Prysmi 
from Germany. We believe this product diversification will 
help the Company widen its customer reach further and 
we will continue to seek partnerships from reputed cable 
manufacturers overseas to augment our product portfolio 
and cater to the specialized needs of our diverse customer 
base.

Market Development
During the year, we engaged in aggressive market 
development activities including exploring new markets, 
participating in exhibitions in Vietnam, Ethiopia and 
Thailand, where potential customers evinced interest in 
our products. Going a step further, we invited existing and 
potential customers to visit our manufacturing plant in 
Sri Lanka and evaluate our quality and factory systems for 
themselves.

During the year under review, eight meetings were held 
to all upskill club members. The meetings were held 
in Kurunegala, Wennappuwa, Rathnapura, Batticaloa, 
Polonnaruwa, Hambantota, Piliyandala and Kalmunai.
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Kurunegla District Electrician Club Seminar

The Company works to engage closely with the electrician 
community by organizing training programmes and other  
seminars where we impart practical training to them about 
safety and latest trends. These practical training sessions 
greatly enhance their knowledge. 

Batticaloa District Electrician Club Seminar

Our sales coordinators are professional in their handling 
of customers, ensuring end-to-end coordination from the 
time of receiving the order to the time of transportation 
of finished goods. In case of any grievance, we make onsite 
checks and provide a suitable solution to resolve the issue 
at hand to the satisfaction of the client. Evaluation of all 
complaints is handled by the Quality Division. Our efforts 
are bearing fruit because the customer satisfaction survey 
that we conduct annually has indicated a satisfaction rate 
of 80%. The Company deeply values its customers, most of 
whom have been with us for many years.

Overseas Operations
The performance of the Group’s export business fell 
below target during the year. Sierra Cables East Africa 
Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of SCPL and Cables 
Pte Ltd. (Fiji), an associate company of SCPL are both 
engaged in exports in East Africa and Fiji respectively. 
Despite the tough operating conditions, we were able to 
garner new customers in Male, Kenya, Ethiopia, Vietnam 
and East Europe. The Government in Kenya, where we 
have a manufacturing plant, has forged several free 
trade agreements with countries within Africa during 
the same period and is encouraging local manufacturers 
to take advantage of opportunities to export to those 
partner countries. We are committed to seizing emerging 
opportunities and are focused on increasing the output 
of our Kenyan operations to ensure that the plant runs at 
full capacity. The power cable manufacturing plant in Fiji 
has commenced production and has successfully exported 
orders to islands surrounding Fiji. 

FijiFiji

KenyaKenya ColomboColombo

Reward and Recognition
As a leading player in the cable manufacturing segment, 
Sierra Cables’ quality and trusted credentials have received 
multiple accolades over the years. During the year under 
review, Sierra Cables PLC was awarded the 2017 Export 
Award for Manufacturing in the Extra-large category 
organized by the National Chamber of Exporters. The 
Company also received a recognition award from CNCI 
(Ceylon National Chamber of Industries).
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Product safety 
Sierra Cables has earned a reputation for being a trusted 
supplier of quality cables. As a company we highly prize 
this recognition and are proud of our stringent quality 
controls and evaluation processes. Our quality checks 
spans the life-cycle of the product at every stage, including 
evaluating raw materials, checking the product under 
manufacture and assessing the final product to ensure it 
meets our standards. The Company complies with local and 
international quality certifications including ISO 14001, 
ISO 9001, OHSAS 18001 and Sri Lanka Standards (SLS). The 
company works closely with the globally reputed SGS and 
Bureau Veritas bodies as well. 

In 2016, we obtained an International Conformity Report 
from TÜV SÜD PSB, Singapore, known for premium quality, 
safety and sustainability certifications world wide.

This enables Sierra Cables to further enhance our 
reputation and positioning as an entity that complies with 
international manufacturing standards.

Future Plans
In view of the unfavourable market conditions during the 
year, the Company remained focused on consolidation 
of its business, however going ahead we expect to gain 
strong growth momentum by exploring opportunities 
in international markets like Seychelles and Bangladesh. 
Further, we plan to change the distribution structure by 
appointing distributors as opposed to direct sales as we 
have done so far. The sales team too will be strengthened 
to ensure that our products can be accessed in every corner 
of the country.

The company will explore expansion into existing and 
emerging markets, while working closely with the 
Government of Sri Lanka for government tenders and 
keep a stock inventory to ensure smooth supply. The CEB 
is planning massive expansion and we expect to play a key 
role in supplying their project needs. Although ours is a B2B 
business, we aim to improve our brand building activities as 
we believe it will accrue benefits for the Company. 
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Product Portfolio

Telecommunication 
Cables
These cables are PVC insulated, 
self-supporting and one-pair 
drop wire and polyethylene 
insulated copper conductors 
used as telecommunication 
distribution cables. The cables 
are manufactured according to 
BS 3573 and SLT standards.

Single and Multi-Core 
Unarmoured Cables
The Single and Multi-core 
unarmoured cables are solid 
or stranded copper conductors 
with PVC insulation and 
sheathing that comes with a 
voltage rating of 300/500v, 
450/750v. These types of 
cables can be utilised for in-
house wiring in distribution 
of electricity within buildings 
and factories. The cables are 
manufactured according to BS 
3573 and SLT standards.

Solar Cable 
To connect the components of 
a Solar Energy System, correct 
wire sizes should be used to 
ensure low loss of energy and 
to prevent overheating and 
possible damage or even fire. 
These cables are designed 
with high quality, reliability and 
durability. 

Control Cables
These cables come with copper 
conductors with PVC insulation 
and sheathing or with added 
steel wire armouring. They are 
manufactured according to the 
BS 6346 specifications with a 
voltage rating of 600/1000v 
and can be well utilized for  
transmissions to control units in 
industry, railways, traffic signals, 
thermal power and hydro power 
systems.

Aerial Bundle Conductors
The self-supporting insulated 
cables are used for low-voltage 
electricity distribution. These 
comprise of three phase 
conductors (aluminium) and 
a neutral conductor (alloy 
aluminum) bundled together 
with or without street lamp 
wires. The neutral conductor 
also acts as a messenger or 
a load bearer. The cables are 
manufactured to the National 
French Standard NFC 33:209.

Aluminium Conductors 
(AAC & ACSR)
Aluminium Conductors (AAC) 
and the Aluminium Conductors 
Steel Reinforced (ACSR) are 
used for low, medium and high-
voltage electricity transmission 
and distribution. The cables are 
manufactured according to SLS 
750, BS 215 (Parts I & II) and 
ASTM standards.
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Auto Cables
PVC insulated single core 
auto cables are used in motor 
vehicles and general wiring. 

Earth Cables
Sierra Earth cables are solid, 
stranded or flexible copper 
conductors with PVC insulation, 
non-sheathed with a voltage 
rating of 450/750v. These 
single-core Earth conductors 
are used as general-purpose 
cables and manufactured 
according to BS 6004 and SLS 
733 standard. 

Unarmoured Cables 
(Multi-Core)
Copper conductors insulated 
with PVC or XLPE and PVC 
sheathed, with a voltage 
rating of 600/1000v. These are 
utilised for the distribution of 
electricity within factories and 
buildings and manufactured 
to BS 6346 and BS 5467 
standards.

Flexible Cables
These PVC insulated and 
sheathed flexible cables with a 
voltage rating of 300/300v and 
300/500v are used as general 
purpose cables. These are 
manufactured to BS 6500 and 
SLS 1143 standards.

Co-axial Cables
Annealed copper conductors 
with polyethylene Insulated 
and copper braided co-axial 
cables, used as television 
antenna wires. The cables are 
manufactured to JIS Standards.

LSHF (Low Smoke 
Halogen Free) Cables 
The LV cables with LSFZH 
thermosetting insulation will 
generate a slow emission 
of smoke fumes and toxic 
gasses and zero halogens with 
exposure to fire. This type of 
earth cables are used in areas 
with high risk of fire hazards. 
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Sustainability Review

The theme for this year’s Annual Report, ‘Building on Quality 
and Trust, Together We Grow’, embodies our sustainability 
vision for the Company, wherein the Company’s operations 
have a positive impact on our business, shareholders, 
our people and the environment. The Company adopts a 
proactive policy with regards to the environment, human 
capital and the community at large. 

Environmental Stewardship 
At Sierra Cables, environmental sustainability is about 
making responsible decisions that reduce negative impact of 
our operations on the environment and extends far beyond 
reducing the amount of waste produced or using less 
energy, to developing processes that lead to a sustainable 
business model. As a respected corporate entity, its 
stakeholders expect it to lead in the area of environmental 
sustainability and the Company is committed to having a 
positive influence on environmental sustainability. We look 
beyond making short-term gains, to considering the long 
term impact our operations could potentially have.

The Company manages any impact on the environment 
with strong waste management and environmental 
compliance strategies. There is an ongoing effort to fine-
tune these policies and explore new methods by which to 
mitigate any impact on the environment. 

In order to ensure that our environmental compliance meets 
the highest standards, the Company complies with local 
and international standards such as the ISO 14001 standard 
certification. Our value chain has absorbed certain best 
practices in environmental management which has made 
it easier for us to establish high standards in environmental 
impact management. One of the first principles we follow 
is to optimize the use of raw materials, energy and natural 
resources to minimize wastage by mapping our use over 
time. This sense of corporate stewardship is ingrained in all 
our employees and suppliers as well. 

As a result of our combined efforts to inspect materials 
before use and minimizing waste, Sierra Cables reduced 
overall raw material waste to 1% during the year 
under review over the previous year. Although modest,  
we are confident of driving this saving even further  
in the coming years. 

Product Responsibility 
Product responsibility is a central concern at Sierra 
Cables and ranges from using raw material judiciously, to 
responsible manufacturing practices, eco-friendly processes 
and safe waste treatment and disposal. At the same time, 
we also want our products to protect the environment 
and conserve resources. In order to satisfy customers, 
our manufacturing process complies with international 
standards. The Company has adopted British Standards 

(BS) and French Standards (NFC) in manufacturing while 
products for the local market are certified by the Sri Lankan 
Standards Institution (SLSI) through which Sierra Cables 
has obtained the ISO 9001:2008 for its quality management 
system. 

Compliance & Practices
The Company is mindful of reducing its carbon footprint 
and avoids the use of hazardous materials to minimize 
environmental impact. SCPLC adheres to RoHS compliance 
standards. RoHS stands for Restriction of Hazardous 
Substances. RoHS, also known as Directive 2002/95/
EC, originated in the European Union and restricts the 
use of specific hazardous materials found in electrical 
and electronic products. The restricted materials which 
include lead (Pb), used in cable insulation and sheathing 
are hazardous to the environment and pollute landfills, 
and are dangerous in terms of occupational exposure 
during manufacturing and recycling. Accidental fires and 
incineration of waste scrap from wire and cable leads to 
the release of lead (Pb) and other heavy metals and toxic 
substances. In the case of a landfill, especially under acidic 
conditions, this hazardous substance is likely to contaminate 
soil and ground water. We utilize lead (Pb) free PVC to 
manufacture cables in compliance to RoHS standards to 
minimize the negative impact on the environment. 

In keeping with our commitment to recycle and reuse 
resources wherever possible, the Company optimises the 
reuse of its wooden drums which are used to wind cables. 
We are able to reuse the drums multiple times by collecting 
them from customers once the cables have been used. This 
reduces the need for disposal of packaging material. 

Capacity optimisation is yet another key objective in the 
manufacturing process and an ongoing process at SCPLC. 
The management works closely with staff in assessing 
current capacity and developing plans to optimize the 
facility’s capacity now and over time. We leverage on 
collected data and technology to optimize capacity to 
enhance efficiency.

We are cognizant of the fact that our supply chains could 
be exposed to risks such as increased operational costs and 
damage to corporate reputation if the raw materials we 
use are not of the highest standards. In order to exercise 
the fullest control over quality of suppliers, we have put 
in place a strong assessment and evaluations process of 
all our suppliers at regular intervals along with a rigorous 
selection process to ensure that our suppliers adhere to a 
high level of environmental impact mitigation and health 
and safety standards. SCPLC works only with reputed 
suppliers with a proven track record in maintaining quality 
standards and suppliers who share our vision for corporate 
stewardship. The Company maintains close control and 
monitors its relationship with its suppliers.
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Corporate Social Responsibility 
Sierra Cables engages closely with the local community 
within which it operates. The main objective of its CSR 
policy is to engage in CSR as one of the key focus areas 
to benefit environment and society to make a positive 
contribution through effective impact and sustainable 
development programmes.

This policy covers the CSR activities to be undertaken by 
the Company mainly through providing direct employment 
opportunities to the neighborhood community to uplift 
their living standards, organizing and executing internship 
programs to interns as a means of injecting professional 
knowledge, providing industrial exposure, exposing to 
a multicultural setup as to orientate them for the new 
industrial setup and donating to academic institutes, 
religious places, festivals and cultural events.

Apart from providing employment opportunities to 
the surrounding communities, the Company frequently 
supports cultural and religious festivities by extending 
financial assistance. One key initiative by the Company to 
enhance electrical skills in the industry was to establish the 
Electricians Club five years ago. Today, the club has grown 
by leaps and bounds to include 2000 electricians who have 
benefitted with the training and sharing of knowledge at 
meetings held by SCPLC. 

Human Capital
The Company’s approach to Human Resource management 
is driven by a vision to be the most sought-after partner 
in employees’ progress while helping them to realize their 
professional and personal dreams. In order to succeed  
in a dynamic environment, we equip employees with 
required knowledge, skills and attitudes to undertake 
challenging roles.

SCPLC values its human capital as the key differentiator in 
today’s high competitive, innovation-driven, talent-driven 
and knowledge-based economy. Our serious investment 
in our people has resulted in a knowledge workforce that 
brings immense economic value to the Company. The know-
how and innovation of our people is driving the Company’s 
ascent in the local and international markets. In order to 
derive this level of performance from employees, we need 
to equip them with the right attitude, skill and knowledge 
tools to achieve the corporate vision. 

Employee Age

18-25 Years 41-50 Years

26-35 Years Above 50 Years

36-40 Years

15%

18%

36%

8%

22%

Employee Category

Permanent Contract

94%

6%

Service  Period

Above 10 Years 1-2 Years

6-10 Years Below 1 Year

3-5 Years

26%

16%

20%

15%

23%

Sustainability Review Contd.
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Culture of Equality
The existence of a highly motivating work culture is the key 
to attracting talent. 

Sierra Cables is strongly committed to providing its 
employees with a workplace free from all forms of 
discrimination and harassment. We define discrimination 
to be denying any person, equality of treatment in 
employment matters for any grounds other than those 
directly related to the requirements of the job. Employees 
enjoy equal opportunity to conduct religious ceremonies 
and cultural events without causing any disturbance to the 
work setup. Further, employees and managers are expected 
to be aware of and familiar with the Company’s policy on 
workplace discrimination, harassment and its application, 
while actively supporting and promoting this policy.

Recruitment
Our recruitment and selection policy ensures that 
candidates are not discriminated based on their gender, 
ethnicity or physical handicaps. We are proud of our ethos 
of providing equal employment opportunities for both the 
genders irrespective of the designation, sustaining a multi 
cultural work environment with various ethnicities and 
religions, and providing jobs for physically handicapped 
employees to suit their abilities.

Health and Safety Management Policy
The Company’s health and safety management policy 
focuses on ensuring employee safety by aiming to eliminate 
or reduce risks to health and safety at the workplace. The 
Company complies with OHSAS 18001 regulations as 
to guarantee a risk-free workplace. Employee safety is a 
key concern for Sierra Cables and in this regard we have 
implemented a set of practical steps to create a safe working 
environment. Apart from providing timely training and 
instructions on safety and wellbeing, we provide required 
Personal Protection Equipment (PPE) to our employees.

Grievance Handling Procedure
The open door policy practiced at Sierra ensures that 
employees have the freedom to approach their supervisors 
and superiors at any time, to raise their concerns. While this 
policy promotes the early settlement of many concerns, a 
formal mechanism is in place for the escalation of grievances. 
This involves a step by step process, whereby an employee 
may escalate a grievance from his own supervisor, to the 
supervisor’s superior and then to the Managing Director. 
Each and every employee can submit his grievance and 
have it examined in an appropriate manner without any 
prejudice whatsoever to him.

Accident and Incident Reporting Procedure
Accident and incident reporting is considered to be one 
of the means of monitoring the success of health and 
safety procedures. The Company is highly committed to 
maintaining records to comply with statutory requirements.

Training and Development Policy
The purpose of this policy is to outline principles and 
procedures to ensure that training and development 
opportunities are available fairly and consistently across 
the company and that training and development resources 
are used effectively and efficiently. Professional and skill 
development courses, certificate courses and seminars 
conducted internally and externally are available to 
employees. The main objectives is to ensure that employees 
have the appropriate knowledge, skills and behaviors to 
meet organizational business objectives in both short 
and longer term and to allow our people to achieve their 
potential and career aspirations within the company. We 
aim to create a culture of learning throughout, where 
individuals take responsibility in creating partnership with 
the Company for their development.

Training programmes are designed with the dual goal of 
enhancing business success and employee growth. Apart 
from specific training programmes, the Company facilitates 
employees’ higher education aspirations. We offer a range 
of structured and on the job training programmes designed 
to develop technical competencies as well as soft skills of our 
employees through leadership development, motivational 
training and guidance in management practices.

Performance Appraisal Policy
Our Performance Appraisal Policy applies to all the staff 
irrespective of the designation and assists management to 
identify training needs of subordinates. This helps provide 
necessary training and feedback in order to direct the 
employees to reach organizational goals. Our intensive 
performance appraisal policy helps employees meet 
set goals, allows continuous communication between 
supervisor and employee about his/her job performance 
and offers the supervisor and employee the opportunity to 
develop a set of expectations for future performances.
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Staff Welfare Policy
Our intention is to render maximum assistance to our 
employees who are devoted towards the progress of the 
company by way of providing relief at a death of a family 
member through a strong and secure Death Donation Fund. 
All permanent employees within Sierra Cables contribute 
to this fund. 

Stakeholder Engagement
We engage with a range of Stakeholders and our 
relationships with each of these Stakeholders have an 
impact on the viability and the success of our business 
and vice versa. Therefore, Sierra Cables constantly commit 
to a transparent and ongoing communications with each 
stakeholder group to form mutually beneficial relationships. 
We engage with stakeholders in numerous ways and the 
frequency of engagement depends on the issues that are 
being addressed. 

Stakeholder Method of Engagement Business Objective 

Shareholders Annual General Meeting/Dividends/Group website/ 
Timely communications/Email access to  
group management 

Maintain shareholder confidence and maintain a 
balance between profits and focus on sustaining 
long term profitability  

Customers Group website and social media/Customer 
relationship management/Interactions at  
operational levels/Media/Exhibitions

Achieving customer service excellence by 
addressing the customer requirement.

Employees Regular meetings/Circulars/Emails/Performance 
review 

To assist employees reach their potential and 
increase performance efficiency while rewarding 
achievements.

Suppliers Long-term relationship/Partnership/
Feedback evaluation/Registration of suppliers 

Enhance long-term business partnership with our 
suppliers and maintain international standards in 
material souring.

Environment Audits/Obtaining standardization certificates Ensure the sustainable use of resources and 
minimum effect on the environment. 

Sustainability Review Contd.
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Risk Management Review

Economic upheaval around the globe and in Sri Lanka has 
impacted how companies operate – with risk management 
becoming a key focus area. Risk is the salient cause of 
uncertainty in any organization, which requires that they 
identify risks and manage them effectively before they 
affect the business. A strong risk management framework 
helps companies take informed decisions into the future. 

More importantly, clearly identified potential risks can be 
mitigated with multiple measures. Risk can come from 
both internal and external sources. The external risks are 
those that are not in direct control of the management. 
These include political issues, exchange rates, interest rates, 
and so on. Internal risks, on the other hand, include non-
compliance or information breaches, among several others. 

It is also important to assess each risk and determine which 
is critical for the business. The critical risks are those that 
could have an adverse impact on the business; these should 
then be given importance and should be prioritized. The 
aim of risk management is to make sure that the Company 
only takes the risks that will help it achieve its primary 
objectives while keeping all other risks under control. 

Our Risk Management Process
Risk management is recognised as an integral component 
of good management and governance at Sierra Cables. 
The Company holds a prudent risk appetite and has put in 
place an effective risk management framework that shields 
the business effectively from potential threats. The Risk 
Management Committee of Sierra Cables is tasked with 
the ongoing responsibility of identifying evolving risks in a 
vigilant manner. 

Taking into consideration both internal and external 
risks and assessing their potential impact is a task that is 
taken seriously. A detailed risk review process ensures that 
the Board of Directors and senior management is well-
informed while taking major decisions, while taking into 
account the identified risks. This strategy has proved critical 
especially given the uncertain macro economic conditions 
experienced over the past year locally and globally. 

The main elements of our risk management process 
encompass establishing the context in which risk will 
be evaluated; identifying potential risks; analysing risks; 
evaluating risks, treating risks, monitoring and reviewing 
risks and communicating and consulting with stakeholders 
during the risk management process.

Even the middle management in the company plays an 
active role in strategising plans with a reasonable risk 
appetite. Acceptance, avoidance and mitigation are three 
stages of our risk strategy formulation process. The finalized 
action plan will be implemented while taking any of the 
three actions specified above as deemed appropriate. The 
final step is crucial if the company is to reap the benefits 
of risk management because it guarantees that the 
implementation has taken place according to the planned 
manner. In order to ensure changing circumstances do 
not alter risk profiles, Sierra Cables maintains a vigilant 
monitoring policy to evaluate the effectiveness of our risk 
mitigation measures.
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consequence

3. Risk Analysis

6.
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
C

on
su

lt
at

io
n

7. M
onitoring and R

eview

A
s a planned part of the risk m

anagem
ent process that takes place at 

intervals appropriate to the nature of the objective and the level of riskW
it

h 
al

l r
el

ev
an

t 
in

te
rn

al
 a

nd
 e

xt
er

na
l s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s,

 d
ur

in
g 

al
l s

ta
ge

s
of

 t
he

 r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
pr

oc
es

s

The strategic context, the organasational context,
the risk management context, and identify internal  

and external stakeholders.

1. Establish the context

2. Risk Identification

What are the causes?
What are the consequences

4. Risk Evaluation

5. Risk Treatment

Compare level of risk with risk acceptability criteria as defined 
in the Acceptability Chart

Identify and implement treatment options including:
Share / Terminate / Accept / Reduce

Determine 
likelihood
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Financial Risk Impact Mitigation Process

 y Liquidity Risk

 y Interest Rate Risk

 y Exchange Rate Risk

 y Credit Risk

Meeting the short-term financial obligations 
in addressing working capital requirements 
resulting in high cost of short-term borrowings

 y Monthly meetings with sales 
representatives to review on debt 
collection. 

 y Positive relationships with financial 
institutions in order to obtain lucrative 
rates

 y A separate method to assess the potential 
of customers in terms of their credit 
worthiness

 y Agreeing for "Call Options” /“Forward 
Contracts"

 y Encouraging supplier credit to mitigate 
costly fluctuations in local interest rates

Business Risk Impact Mitigation Process

 y Market Risk Pressure on margins due to server competition 
in the market

 y When setting prices it is possible to match 
with raw material prices

 y Setting sales targets considering 
Company’s potential

 y Having a thorough idea on the trends in 
the market

Operational Risk Impact Mitigation Process

 y Health & Safety of 
Employees

 y International Quality 
Standards & Regulatory 
Environment

Impact on employees personal/work life and 
sustainability of the business

 y Employee performance evaluation scheme

 y Strengthen relationships with employees 
through the activities of the employee 
welfare society

 y Providing training on industrial safety

 y Obtaining the ISO 9001:2000 Standard

 y Obtaining the ISO 14001 Standard

 y Obtaining the OHSAS Certificate

 y Providing required Personal Protection 
Equipment

 y Continues inspection on working 
environment condition

Product Risk Impact Mitigation Process

 y Customer satisfaction

 y Cost effectiveness

Decline in market share  y Maintaining SLS Standard

 y Bidding with competitive prices

 y Proper testing to identify quality defects

 y Production planning

Information Risk Impact Mitigation Process

 y Timely & accurate 
information for decision 
making

 y Systems operation & 
application.

Lack of accurate and timely decision making  y Use of an ERP system for timely decision 
making

 y Data backup procedure

 y Agreements with IT vendors for support 
and maintenance

 y Regular upgrading of the systems
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance is popularly understood as the 
system by which companies are directed and controlled. 
The Board of Directors at Sierra Cables PLC is responsible 
for the governance of the Company and has placed 
considerable emphasis on developing rules, structures 
and processes to ensure integrity and transparency in all 
the Company’s dealings. Sierra Cables regularly refines its 
systems and processes to ensure good governance within 
the set parameters, cognizant of its accountability to its 
stakeholders and the general public. 

The Board of Directors is the highest body of Sierra 
Cables PLC that carries the responsibilities of directing the 
Company. The responsibilities of the Board includes making 
an accurate assessment of the company’s position, taking 
strategic decisions, holding regular meetings of the Board 
and Board Sub-committees, ensuring good governance 
and overseeing the risk management of the Company. The 
Directors ensure that the Company adheres to the various 
guidelines, especially those issued by regulatory bodies 
and the legislation of the Company, such as the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants Sri Lanka, Securities & Exchange 

Commission and the Companies Act of 2007. Furthermore, 
the Board conducts all acts with transparency and are 
bound by the directives issued by the CSE. 

The Board’s key purpose is to ensure the Company’s 
prosperity by collectively directing the company’s affairs, 
whilst meeting the appropriate interests of its shareholders 
and stakeholders. In addition to governance, business and 
financial issues, the Directors must deal with challenges 
and issues relating to corporate social responsibility and 
corporate ethics. 

At Sierra Cables PLC, Directors have a responsibility to act 
honestly, exercise reasonable care, skill and understand their 
fiduciary duties whilst performing their necessary tasks on 
behalf of the organisation. Their primary responsibility is one 
of stewardship and trusteeship on behalf of stakeholders, 
ensuring that Sierra Cables PLC remains effective into the 
future.
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The Board Balance
The responsibility of the Board of Directors is to operate 
the company by acting in a manner that reflects the best 
interest of the Company. Nine Directors were appointed 
as the Board of Directors. Out of the nine, eight are Non-
Executive Directors. Three out of the eight Non-Executive 
Directors are Independent Directors. All Directors 
are veterans in their fields such as engineering, law, 
construction, marketing, finance and public administration. 
Their years of experience are the reason for the continual 
success of the Company.

Despite the varying levels of shareholding possessed by 
the Directors, equality is a major fact that is prevalent at 
all times within the Board. It is not compromised with the 
dominance of one or group of Directors when decision 
making comes.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
The Board is led by a Non-Executive Chairman. The 
Chairman’s leadership will take the company to  
unattainable heights with high strands of efficiency, 
effectiveness and professionalism.

In an ever changing environment such a leadership is the 
core on directing and controlling the organisation for 
better performance. The CEO on the other hand handles 
a totally different set of duties and responsibilities. The 
CEO will contemplate on improving the shareholder 
value by formulating strategy, evaluating its viability and 
implementing them to reach for the desired purposes.

Board Meetings
Board meetings are scheduled to be held every two months. 
In these meetings the Board considers the performance 
of the Company from many angles. The monthly financial 
performance, selling and distribution, key projects, 
investment opportunities, key risks faced, appointments, 
etc. are some of the areas thoroughly considered. This is 
also one of the main controlling techniques of the Board.

Responsibilities of the Board
The Board is responsible for :

1. Enhancing shareholder wealth.

2. Planning and guiding the business towards   
meeting the set objectives.

3. Ensuring the interests of all Stakeholders is   
considered in corporate decisions.

4. Formulating, communicating, and monitoring   
business policies, overall strategies and corporate   
goals to ensure sustained growth.

5. Assessing and approving the implementation of   
management and internal control systems.

6. Ensuring the compliance with all statutory and   
other obligations being met.

Audit Committee
The audit committee mainly looks at legal and financial 
compliance of the company. Both these areas will cover the 
accounting practices, financial control, risk management, 
etc. In order to look into these matters responsibly the 
board has appointed three Independent Non-Executive 
Directors. They are,

Mr. M.N. Gunasekera - Chairman  
Non-Executive Independent Director

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane
Non-Executive Independent Director

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe
Non-Executive Independent Director

The committee has met six times during the year. The 
meetings are attended by the Managing Director and Chief 
Financial Officer by invitation and other Directors and 
Executives when required. The Chairman of the committee 
comes with a vast experience. Mr. M.N. Gunasekera is also 
a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Sri Lanka.

Duties and Responsibilities
Audit

1 Recommend the Board of the appointment and 
removal of external auditors and review their terms of 
engagement.

2. Determine with the external auditors, the audit plan and 
scope and their authority and responsibilities.

3. Oversee and appraise the quality of audits conducted 
and monitor their effectiveness.

4. Review external audit reports and recommendations 
and ensure appropriate management response to 
recommendations.

5. Monitor the relationship between management and the 
external auditors.

6. Review and assess the independence of the external 
auditor. 

Accounting

1. Monitor and review the adequacy of the Company’s 
accounting system and internal control environment.

2. Review annual and semi-annual Financial Statements of 
the Company, and make recommendations to the Board.

3. Determine company specific accounting policies within 
the ambit of the accounting standards.

4. Review significant transactions which are not a normal 
part of the company’s business.
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Risk Management

1. Identify and assess areas of risks which might impact on 
the Company and research appropriate mitigations.

2. Monitor, review and evaluate the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management 
controls, both internally and externally.

3. Evaluate the effectiveness of the Company’s business 
continuity plans.

4. Evaluate the adequacy of the Company’s insurance 
covers at least annually.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of 
Directors that Messers KPMG, Chartered Accountants to 
appoint as Auditors for the year ending 31st March 2019 
subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the next 
Annual General Meeting. 

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee works to attract and retain 
Directors, executives and employees for the company. Also 
through the decisions of the Remuneration Committee 
it is expected to obtain the highest level of contribution 
for the achievement of goals and objectives of the 
Company. Thereby it expects to create a good value for the 
Shareholders.

The Sierra Cables PLC’s Remuneration Committee consists 
of three Non-Executive Independent Directors as follows;

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane - Chairman 
Non-Executive Independent Director

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe
Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. M.N. Gunasekera
Non-Executive Independent Director

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee 
are;

1. To review and approve the Remuneration policy of the 
Company.

2. To advice on structuring Remuneration packages that 
enable the Company to attract, retain and motivate high 
caliber individuals with the requisite skills.

3. To recommend to the Board of Directors the 
Remuneration to be paid to the Executive Directors, and 
senior executives, their pre-requisites and allowances.

Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee
The members of the Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee are;

Mr. M.N. Gunasekera - Chairman
Non-Executive Independent Director

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane
Non-Executive Independent Director

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe
Non-Executive Independent Director

The main responsibilities of the Related Party Transactions 
Review Committee are as follows;

Authorise and review all Related Party Transactions to 
ensure compliance with the Listing Rules, compliance with 
stock exchange and legal requirements, concerning the 
respective transactions. 

In the event a Related Party Transaction will be ongoing 
(recurrent transactions), the Related Party Transactions 
Review Committee has established guidelines for the senior 
management to follow in respect of ongoing dealings with 
the Related Parties. 

Thereafter, the Committee on an annual basis, would 
review and assess ongoing relationships with the related 
parties, to determine whether they are in compliance with 
the Committee’s guidelines and that the Related Party 
Transactions remain appropriate.
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Board Meetings and Sub Committee Meetings
Name of the Director Board Meetings Audit Committee 

Meetings
Remuneration 
Committee Meetings

Related Party 
Transaction Review 
Committee Meetings

Executive Directors

Mr. D.S. Panditha 6/7 - - -

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. W.A.P. Perera (Chairman) 6/7 - - -

Ms. G.S.M. Irugalbandara 6/7 - - -

Mr. E.A.D.T.B. Perera - - - -

Mr. J.H.P. Ratnayake 3/7 - - -

Ms. S.N. Lokuge 2/7 - - -

Non-Executive Independent Directors

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane 7/7 3/6 1/1 3/6

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe 6/7 6/6 1/1 6/6

Mr. M.N. Gunasekera 7/7 6/6 1/1 6/6

Dates of Meetings

25.05.2017 21.02.2018 25.05.2017 21.02.2018

27.07.2017 12.02.2018 - 12.02.2018

11.08.2017 09.11.2018 - 09.11.2018

27.09.2017 11.08.2017 - 11.08.2017

10.11.2017 01.08.2017 - 01.08.2017

30.01.2018 23.05.2017 - 23.05.2017

27.03.2018 - - -

Internal Control
The Internal Control system encompasses the financial, 
operational, risk management and regulatory compliances 
of the Company. Maintaining effective control is vital as 
it is the responsibility of the Board. All the sectors have 
different controls developed uniquely for themselves. 

Their discipline and commitment will ensure correct 
processes are maintained within the Company. The 
effectiveness of these controls is reviewed regularly 
through the Management Review meeting and Board 
Meetings. One of the main items heavily discussed in every 
Management Review meeting is the Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI). 

It summarizes the performance of every department of the 
Company on a monthly basis. Even though all these controls 
are in place we cannot reject the fact that exceptions can 
appear in an unexpected manner. Therefore, either through 
preventive or corrective actions such situations should be 
managed. 

However, the ultimate expectations thus will be to 
develop and maintain accurate processes, information and 
customer satisfaction. Simply this will ensure maximization 
of shareholder wealth and the quality of the Company’s 
performance.
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Reference to the SEC & 
ICASL Code, CSE Listing 
Rules

Compliance Details of Compliance

1. COMPANY
A.1. Director
(The Board)

A . 1/7.10.1(a)
7.10.2(a) and 7.10.3 (c-d)

Compliant The Board of Directors currently consists of nine (09) 
members including Chairman.

The day to day monitoring and operations of the 
organization has been delegated to the Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO) and the Executive Committee governed 
by policies, procedures and authority by the Board of 
Directors. 

The Board is accountable to the Stakeholders of the 
Company to ensure that the business is conducted in 
an appropriate manner based on an approval business 
plan and the financial and non-financial targets of the 
Company are achieved. The Board’s Terms of Reference 
stipulate the specific duties of the Board and the 
following are some key matters which come under the 
Board’s review and approval;

I.  Company strategy and business plan

II.  Financial reporting and internal controls 

III.  Financial performance

IV.  Dividend policy

V.  Changes to capital structure

VI.  Constitution and performance of the Board  
 Committee

VII. Regulatory compliance
Company Board  
Meetings

A.1.1 Complied Seven (07) Board meetings were held to review financial 
performance and to consider other matters such as 
strategic and operational plans.

Responsibilities of the 
Board

A.1.2 Complied The Board is collectively responsible for formulation, 
implementations and monitoring of business strategies. 
In order to do so, the Board appointed committees 
are constituted to assist the main Board in fulfilling its 
stewardship function by reviewing systems of internal 
control, internal and external audit, risk management, IT 
systems and financial reporting to Shareholders.

Compliance with laws  
and access to 
independent professional 
advice

A.1.3 Complied The Board members are permitted to obtain 
independent professional advice from third parties 
as deemed necessary which includes the Company’s 
external lawyers and auditors at the expense of the 
Company.

Company Secretary A.1.4 Complied The Company secretary possesses the required 
qualifications and expertise, and advises the Board 
on matters concerning the Companies Act and other 
relevant rules, regulations and regulatory guidelines.

Independent judgment  
of the Directors

A.1.5 Complied All the Board members actively participate in the 
Board meeting by bringing up their own independent 
judgment.

Dedicating Adequate 
time and effort

A.1.6 Complied The Board members dedicate adequate time for the 
affairs of the Company by attending Board meetings, 
Board appointed sub-committee meetings and by 
making decisions via circular resolutions.
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Reference to the SEC & 
ICASL Code, CSE Listing 
Rules

Compliance Details of Compliance

A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
There is a clear demarcation of the responsibilities between the Chairman and the CEO. The functions performed by the 
Chairman and the CEO are distinct and separate, ensuring the balance of power and authority within the organization, so that no 
person has unattended powers of decision-making and implementations.

A.3 Chairman’s Role
The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board, managing Board meetings and the business undertaken threat. The 
Chairman is responsible to ensure that all relevant issues of the Company are dealt with on the Board Agenda and that Directors 
receive all appropriate information and documentation in a timely manner, thus facilitating the Directors to contribute at the 
deliberations.

Role of Chairman A.3.1 Complied The Chairman should ensure Board proceedings are 
conducted in a proper manner.

A.4 Financial Acumen
Financial Acumen A.4 Complied Our Directors with their academic and/or entrepreneurial 

financial skill, business acumen and wide practical 
wisdom contribute substantial value, knowledge and 
independent judgment to decision making on matters 
concerning finance and investment.

A.5 Board Balance
Presence of Non- 
Executive Directors

A.5.1
7.10.1(a), 7.10.2(a) and 
7.10.3(a)

Complied Eight of the nine Directors of the Board hold office in a 
Non-Executive capacity.

Independence of Non-
Executive Directors

A.5.2 & 5.3
5.5, 7.10.2(a-b) and 
7.10.3(a-b)

Complied The Board comprises of three Independent Non-
Executive Directors.

Annual Declaration of 
Non-Executive Directors

A.5.4
7.10.2(b)

Complied Each Non-Executive Director submits a signed and 
dated declaration annually of his Independence or Non 
-Independence against a specified criteria as set out in 
Appendix 7A of Colombo Stock Exchange listing rule 
section 7.10.2(b).

Requirement to appoint 
a ‘Senior Non-Executive 
Director’

Requirement to appoint 
a ‘Senior Non-Executive 
Director’

Not Applicable This is not relevant to the Company as the Chairman and 
CEO roles are segregated.

Chairman conducting 
meetings with the Non-
Executive Director

A.5.9 Complied The Chairman meets with the Independent Non-
Executive Director as and when necessary.

Recording of concerns in 
the Board minutes

A.5.10 Complied Where Directors have concerns about the matters of the 
Company which cannot be unanimously resolved, their 
concerns are recorded in the Board minutes.

A.6 Supply Information
Obligation of the 
Management to provide 
appropriate and timely 
information

A.6.1 Complied The Group has a state-of-art management information 
system to process and monitor the performance of 
the Group. Appropriate and timely information is made 
available to the Board members who make further 
inquiries when necessary.

Adequate time for 
circulation and respective 
Board documents

A.6.2 Complied Board papers, agenda and previous Board minutes to be 
tabled one week prior to Board Meeting.

A.7 Appointment to the Board
Disclosure to 
Shareholders

A.7.3 Complied -

A.8 Re-election
Re-election of Directors A.8.1 and A.8.2 Complied To comply with the Articles of Association, the Directors 

who have been appointed to the Board during the year, 
hold office until the next AGM, and are required to retire 
and a new Director to be re-elected by the Shareholders.
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Reference to the SEC & 
ICASL Code, CSE Listing 
Rules

Compliance Details of Compliance

A.9 Appraisal of 
the Board and the 
subcommittees

A.9.1, A.9.2 and A.9.3 Complied The Board annually appraises itself on its performance 
in the discharge of its key responsibilities. The Board 
also undertakes an annual self evaluation of its own 
performance and that of its committees and the Board 
states on how such performance evaluations have been 
concluded.

A.10 Disclosure of information in respect of Directors
Directors’ Disclosures A.10.1

7.10.3(c-d)
Complied The names of the Directors of the Board, their leadership 

expertise, skills and their profiles are disclosed on page 
16 to 17 of this Annual Report. Directors’ interests in 
contracts are indicated in Note 34.2 of the Financial 
Statements of this Annual Report. Names of the 
Chairman and the members of the Boards Committees 
are provided on page 49

A.11 Appraisal of Chief Executive
Setting of the annual 
targets and the appraisals 
of the CEO

A.11.1 and A.11.2 Complied The CEOs performance is reviewed annually.

B. DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION
B.1/7.10.5 Remuneration Procedure
Establishment of a 
Remuneration Committee 
and its composition

B.1.1, B.1.2 and B.1.3
7.10.5(a) and 7.10(b)

Complied The Remuneration Committee comprises of Prof. 
A.K.W. Jayawardane, Mr. M.N. Gunasekera and Eng. 
B.W.N. Rupasinghe being Independent Non-Executive 
Directors. Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane is the Chairman 
of the Committee. The details of the Remuneration 
Committee’s composition, policies and responsibilities 
are set out on page 44 of this Annual Report.

Determination of the 
remuneration of the Non-
Executive Directors

B.1.4 Complied The Board as a whole decides the remuneration of the 
Non-Executive Directors. The Non-Executive Directors 
receive a fee for being a Director of the Board and fee 
participating as a subcommittee member.

Consultation with the 
Chairman and the CEO

B.1.5 Complied Input of the Chairman is obtained as the Chairman of 
the said Subcommittee.  External professional advice is 
sought on a need basis.

B.2 Level and Makeup of Remuneration
Level and makeup of the 
remuneration of Directors 
and comparison of 
remuneration with other 
Companies

B.2.1, 2.2 and 2.3 Complied The remuneration scheme for Executive Directors 
is structured to align rewards to their individual and 
Corporate performance targets.

Performance – based 
remuneration

B.2.4 Complied The performance related payments for Executive 
Directors is structured to align with individual Corporate 
performance targets.

Executive share options B.2.5 Not Applicable

Designing the 
remuneration

B.2.6 Complied Provisions set-out in Schedule E of the Code of Best 
Practice is considered.

Early termination of 
Directors

B.2.7 and B.2.8 Complied

Remuneration of Non-
Executive Directors

B.2.9 Complied Non-Executive Directors fee are compared with the 
market rates.

B.3/7.10.5 (C) DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION
Disclosure of 
remuneration policy and 
aggregate remuneration

B.3.1 Complied Please refer Remuneration Committee Report.
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Reference to the SEC & 
ICASL Code, CSE Listing 
Rules

Compliance Details of Compliance

C. RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
C.1 Constructive use of Annual General Meeting
Use of Proxy C.1.1 Complied We ensure that all proxy votes are counted and the 

quantum of proxies lodged on each resolution is 
conveyed to our Chairman.

Separate resolution for 
substantially separate 
issues

C.1.2 Complied Separate resolutions are proposed at an Annual General 
Meeting on each substantial issue.

Chairman of Board 
Committee to be present

C.1.3 Complied At an Annual General Meeting (AGM) the respective 
Chairman of the Remuneration, Audit and Nomination 
Committees are present to provide any clarification to 
Shareholders as necessary.

Adequate notice of 
Annual General Meeting 
and summary of 
Procedure

C.1.4 and C.1.5 Complied The notice and the agenda of the AGM together with the 
Annual Report of the Company containing the relevant 
documents are sent to the Shareholders giving 15 
working days’ notice prior to the date of the AGM.

C.2 COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Effective communication 
with the Shareholders

C.2.1,C.2.2,C.2.3, C.2.4 Complied The Board maintains a two-way communication with 
all investors providing an opportunity to seek non-
price sensitive information throughout the year by 
conducting meetings and discussions and answering 
queries through our Company Secretarial Division and/or 
Communications Teams.

D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
D.1 Financial Reporting
Board responsibility to 
present the Financial 
Statement

D.1.1 Complied The Board presents a balanced and understandable 
assessment extending to interim and other price-
sensitive public reports to regulators, as well as the 
information required to be presented by statutory 
requirements complying with regulatory deadlines.

Annual Report of the 
Directors

D.1.2 Complied Declaration by the Directors that the Company has 
not engaged in any activities, which contravenes laws 
and regulations, declaration of all material interests 
in contracts, equitable treatment of Shareholders 
and going concern with supporting assumptions or 
qualifications as necessary.
Please refer to Annual Report of the Board of Directors 
on pages 47 to 51

Statement by the 
Directors and the 
Auditors

D.1.3 Complied Please refer the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities 
on page 46

Management discussion 
and analysis

D.1.4 Complied Please refer Management Discussion and Analysis on 
pages 20 to 51

Declaration by the 
Board as to whether 
the business is a going 
concern

D.1.5 Complied Please refer to Annual Report of the Board of Directors 
on pages 47 to 51
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Corporate Governance Contd.

Reference to the SEC & 
ICASL Code, CSE Listing 
Rules

Compliance Details of Compliance

Requirement for an 
Extraordinary General 
Meeting in a situation of 
serious loss of capital

D.1.6 Not Applicable -

D.2 Internal Control
Directors to review 
Internal Controls

D.2.1 Complied The Board is responsible for establishing a sound 
framework of risk management and internal controls and 
monitoring its effectiveness on a continuous basis.

Requirement to review 
the need for an Internal 
Audit function

D.2.2 Not Applicable The Group already has an internal audit division, and as 
such this is not applicable.

D.3/7.10.6 Audit Committee
Composition of the Audit 
Committee and its duties

D.3.1 and D.3.2/7.10.6(a) 
and 7.10.6(b)

Complied The Audit Committee comprises of Mr. M.N. Gunasekera, 
Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane and Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe 
being Independent Non-Executive Directors. Mr. M.N. 
Gunasekera is the Chairman of the Committee. The 
details of the Audit Committee’s composition, policies 
and responsibilities are set out on pages 42 to 43 of this 
Annual Report. 

Terms of reference of the 
Audit Committee

D.3.3 Complied Please refer to the Audit Committee Report on pages 42 
to 43 of this Annual Report. 

Disclosure of names of 
the members of the Audit 
Committee

 D.3.4
7.10.6(C)

Complied Please refer to the Audit Committee Report on pages 42 
to 43 of this Annual Report. 

D.4/ 9.  Related Party Transactions Review Committee
Composition of 
the Related Party 
Transactions Review 
Committee and its duties

D.4.1
9.2

Complied The Related Party Transactions Review Committee 
comprises of Mr. M.N. Gunasekera, Prof. A.K.W. 
Jayawardane and Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe being 
Independent Non-Executive directors. Mr. M.N. 
Gunasekera is the Chairman of the Committee. The 
details of the Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee’s composition, policies and responsibilities 
are set out on page 45 of this Annual Report.

Terms of reference 
of the Related Party 
Transactions Review 
Committee

D.4.2 Complied Please refer to the Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee Report on page 45 of this Annual Report.

Disclosure of names 
of the members of 
the Related Party 
Transactions Review 
Committee

D.4.3 Complied Please refer to the Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee Report on page 45 of this Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance Contd.

Reference to the SEC & 
ICASL Code, CSE Listing 
Rules

Compliance Details of Compliance

D.5 Code of Business Conduction and Ethics
We are committed to carrying out all business activities to the highest standards of integrity, ethical values and professionalism, 
whilst following the laws of the country, international laws and compliance as per our Stakeholders’ expectations.

Disclosure on the 
presence of Code of 
Business Conduct and 
Ethics

D.5.1 Complied

Affirmation of the code  
of conduct and ethics

D.5.2 Complied As per our Chairman’s statements on Pages 12 to 13 
of this Annual Report, we affirm our adherence to good 
business conduct and ethics.

D.6 Corporate Governance Disclosures
Disclosures of Corporate 
Governance

D.6.1 Complied We aim to achieve greater year-on-year growth and 
value creation, improve stakeholder satisfaction and 
relationships in our business activities, whilst adhering 
to the highest standards of corporate governance as is 
evident in this Annual Report on pages 32 to 41.

2. SHAREHOLDERS
E. INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS
Shareholder voting E.1.1 Complied We conduct regular and structured dialogues with 

Shareholders based on a mutual understanding of 
objectives.

F. OTHER INVESTORS
F.1 Investing and divesting decision
Investing and divesting 
decision

F.1 Complied Individual Shareholders, investing directly in shares 
of companies are encouraged to carry out adequate 
analysis or seek independent advice in investing or 
divesting decision.

F.2 Shareholders Voting

Individual Shareholders’ 
voting

F.2 Complied Individual Shareholders are encouraged to participate in 
General Meetings of companies and exercise their voting 
rights.
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Audit Committee Report

Role of the Audit Committee
The role of the Audit Committee, further described 
under terms of reference, is to oversee and review the 
financial reporting system of the Company, with a view to 
safeguarding the interest of the shareholders and all other 
stakeholders.

Composition
The Audit Committee, consisting of three Non-Executive 
Independent Directors, has been constituted in compliance 
with the ‘Rules on Corporate Governance under the Listing 
Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange. 

The members of the Audit Committee are: 

 y Mr. M.N. Gunasekera - Chairman 

 Non-Executive Independent Director

 y Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane

 Non-Executive Independent Director

 y Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe

 Non-Executive Independent Director

The other members participating, by invitation, at the 
Audit Committee meetings are the Managing Director, the 
Chief Financial Officer and the Finance Manager. 

Meetings
The Audit Committee had six meetings during the year 
under review.

Name Attendance

Mr. M.N. Gunasekera 6/6

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane 3/6

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe 6/6

Terms of Reference
As specified in the terms of reference, in relation to its 
purpose, authority, composition, meeting and duties, the 
Audit Committee was established to assist the Board 
of Directors to fulfill their oversight responsibilities, 
which include the integrity of Financial Statements, 
risk management, business ethics, internal control, 
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, review 
of Independent External Auditors’ performance and the 
effectiveness of the Internal Audit function.

Financial Reporting
In accordance with the stipulated requirements of the 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, the Committee reviews 
the following:

 y Procedures to provide reasonable assurance that all 
transactions are accurately and completely recorded in 
the books of account.

 y Effectiveness of financial reporting system is in place 
to ensure reliability of the information provided to the 
Stakeholders. Accounting policies to determine most 
appropriate accounting policies after considering all 
choices available.

 y Process by which compliance with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards, Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and other 
regulatory provisions relating to financial reporting and 
disclosures are ensured.

 y Annual Report and interim Financial Statements 
prepared for publication, prior to submission to the 
Board.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The Audit Committee reviewed the reports submitted by 
the Management and the Internal Auditors on compliance 
with applicable laws and regulations. The Committee is 
satisfied that Laws and Regulations are duly complied with 
and statutory payments have been made on a timely basis. 
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Audit Committee Report Contd.

Internal Control, Internal Audit & Risk 
Management
In its review of effectiveness of internal controls, the 
Committee examined the business processes to ensure 
that reasonable assurance can be provided to the Directors 
that assets are safeguarded and that the financial 
reporting system can be relied upon in the preparation 
and presentation of the Financial Statements. The Audit 
Committee monitors and guides the firm of Chartered 
Accountants engaged in the Internal Audit, in its audits, 
according to the plan of activities which covers financial 
and operational audits, risk assessments and IT security 
reviews. The reports of the Internal Auditors have been 
reviewed, discussed by the Committee, and initiated 
corrective measures.

Independent Auditors
The Committee is satisfied that the independence and 
objectivity of the Independent External Auditors has not 
been impaired by any event or service that gives rise to 
a conflict of interest. Due consideration has been given 
to the nature of the services provided by the Auditors 
and the level of audit and non-audit fees received by the 
Auditors from the Group. The Committee also reviewed 
the arrangements made by the Auditors to maintain their 
independence and confirmation has been received from 
the Auditors of their compliance with the independence 
guidance given in the Code of Ethics of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. The Audit Committee 
recommends the re-appointment of Messrs KPMG, for the 
financial year ending 31st March 2019

Conclusion
In its continuous assessments, the Audit Committee is 
satisfied that the Group’s accounting policies, internal 
controls, including operational controls, provide reasonable 
assurance that the affairs of the Group are managed in 
accordance with policy framework of the Group, set out 
by the Board of Directors and that the Group assets are 
properly accounted and adequately safeguarded.

(Sgd.)
M.N. Gunasekera
Chairman 
Audit Committee
13th August 2018
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Board Compensation and Remuneration 
Committee Report
The main functions of the Remuneration Committee 
include the provision of policy advice and recommendations 
to the Board of Directors with regard to remuneration 
of Managing Director, Executive Directors and Senior 
Executives. The recommendations are aimed at being 
attractive, fair and competitive to attract and retain 
executive staff also considering the performance. 

The Remuneration Committee appointed for the financial 
year 2017-18 consists of three Non-Executive Independent 
Directors as follows:

 y Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane - Chairman

 Non-Executive Independent Director

 y Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe

 Non-Executive Independent Director

 y Mr. M.N. Gunasekera

 Non-Executive Independent Director

The Committee met once during the year 2018 and 
discussed the remuneration applicable to the Managing 
Director and the Executive Directors.  Having carefully 
looked at the Company performance during the year and the 
salary revisions during the previous years, the Committee 
decided on the salaries of the Managing Director and the 
Executive Directors.

(Sgd.)
Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane
Chairman
Compensation and Remuneration Committee
13th August 2018
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Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee Report
Role of The Committee
The Committee assists the Board in reviewing all related 
party transactions carried out by the Company. The 
Committee also performs the oversight function on 
behalf of the Board in complying with the Listing Rules of 
the Colombo Stock Exchange and with the Code of Best 
Practices on Related Party Transactions issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission.

Composition 
The Committee, consisting of three Non-Executive 
Independent Directors, has been constituted in compliance 
with the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.

The Committee Members are:

 y Mr. M.N. Gunasekera – Chairman 

 Non-Executive Independent Director 

 y Prof.  A.K.W. Jayawardane

 Non-Executive Independent Director 

 y Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe

 Non-Executive Independent Director

The other members participating, by invitation, at the 
Committee Meetings are the Managing Director, the Chief 
Financial Officer and the Finance Manager. 

The Committee had two meetings during the year under 
review

Policies & Procedures 
The above committee was authorised to review all 
Related Party Transactions to ensure compliance with the 
Listing Rules, compliance with Stock Exchange and legal 
requirements, concerning the respective transactions.

Terms of Reference
The Related Party Transactions Review Committee has 
terms of reference, dealing with its authority and duties. 
The Terms of Reference covers aspects relating to matters 
prescribed in the listing rules of the Colombo Stock 
Exchange.

Terms of reference of the Committee, among others, 
include the following: 

In the event a Related Party Transaction will be ongoing 
(recurrent transactions), the Related Party Transactions 
Review Committee has established guidelines for the senior 
management to follow, in respect of ongoing dealings 
with the Related Parties. Thereafter, the Committee on an 
annual basis, would review and assess ongoing relationships 
with the related parties, to determine whether they are in 
compliance with the Committee’s guidelines and that the 
Related Party Transactions remain appropriate.

Related Party Transactions during the 
Year
The activities and observations of the Committee are 
communicated to the Board. Details of related party 
transactions are disclosed in note 34.1 in the Financial 
Statements.

(Sgd.)
M.N Gunasekera
Chairman
Related Party Transactions Review Committee
13th August 2018 
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in  
Relation to Financial Reporting
The responsibility of Directors in relation to the Financial 
Statements is set out in the following statements. The 
responsibility of the auditors, in relation to the Financial 
Statements prepared in accordance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and other status which 
are applicable to the preparation of Financial Statements 
are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Reports. 

The Financial Statements Comprise of:
A Statement of Financial Position, which presents a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its 
subsidiaries as at the end of the financial year; and

A Statement of Comprehensive Income, which presents a 
true and fair view of the profit and loss of the Company and 
its subsidiaries for the financial year, which comply with the 
requirements of the Act.

The Directors are required to ensure 
that, in preparing these Financial 
Statements:

 y The appropriate Accounting Policies have been 
selected and applied in consistent manner and material 
departures, if any, have been disclosed and explained;

 y Requirements in the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, 
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and listing rules of the 
Colombo Stock Exchange, have been followed;

 y Judgements and estimates have been made which are 
reasonable and prudent.

The Directors are also required to ensure that the Company 
has adequate resources to contain basis in preparing the 
Financial Statements.

Further, the Directors have a responsibility to ensure that 
the Company maintains sufficient accounting records to 
disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position 
of the Company and of the Group, and to ensure that 
the Financial Statements presented comply with the 
requirements of the Act. 

The Directors are also responsible for taking reasonable 
steps to safeguard the assets of the Company and of the 
Group and in this regard to give proper consideration to 
the establishment of appropriate internal control systems 
with a view to preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities.

The Directors are required to prepare the Financial 
Statements and to provide the auditors with every 
opportunity to take whatever steps and undertake 
whatever inspections they may consider to be appropriate 
to enable them to give their independent audit opinion.

The Directors are of the view that they have discharged 
their responsibilities as set out in this statement.

By Order of the Board

(Sgd.)
P.R. Secretarial Services (Private) Limited
Secretaries
13th August 2018 
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors on 
the Affairs of the Company
The Directors of Sierra Cables PLC (the Company) have 
the pleasure in submitting their Report together with the 
Audited Financial Statements of the Company and the 
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group 
for the year ended 31st March 2018. 

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing, 
marketing and distribution of power cables. The three 
subsidiaries, Sierra Power (Private) Limited, Sierra Industries 
(Private) Limited and Sierra Cables East Africa Limited are 
engaged in the power generation to the National Grid, 
manufacture of uPVC pipes and fittings and manufacture 
and sale of wires and cables, respectively. The three 
associate Companies, Tea Leaf Resort (Private) Limited, 
T & G Lanka (Private) Limited and Cables PTE Limited are 
diversified to leisure sector and manufacturing of cables,  
respectively. 

Review of Operations
A review of the Company’s business and its performance 
during the financial year is contained in the Chairman’s 
message on pages 12 to 13 and the Managing Director’s 
Statement on pages 14 to 15 of the Annual Report, 
together with the Financial Statements which reflects the 
state of affairs of the Company.

Financial Statements
The completed Financial Statements of the Group has been 
duly certified by the person responsible for the preparation 
of the Financial Statements of the Company have been 
signed by two Directors on behalf of the Board of Directors 
and the Auditors confirmed the Company is in compliance 
with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 
2007. Details are given on pages 58 to 109

Auditors Report
The Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements is given 
in pages 55 to 57

Financial Results
The Group made a Loss before Taxation of Rs. 7.1 Mn during 
the financial year compared to Rs. 347.6 Mn in 2016/17. 
The detailed results are given in the Income Statement on 
page 58

Dividends
No dividends were made by the Company during the year 
under review.

Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies adopted in the 
preparation of the Financial Statements are given in pages 
66 to 74 Changes in accounting policies made during 
the accounting period is described under Note 4 to the 
Financial Statements. 
 

Property, Plant and Equipment
An analysis of the Property, Plant and Equipment of the 
Company is disclosed in Note 13 of the Financial Statements 
on pages 80 to 83

Stated Capital
The stated Capital of the Company as at 31st March 2018 
was Rs. 894,565,898 and is represented by 537,512,430 
issued and fully paid Ordinary Shares. There was no change 
in the Stated Capital during the year.

Reserves 
The group retained earnings and other reserves as at 
31st March 2018 amounted to Rs. 928,259,400.

Donations
No donations were made by the Company during the year 
under review.

Capital Commitments
There were no material capital commitments as at the 
reporting date.

Provision for the Taxation
Provision for taxation of the Company is disclosed in Note 
09 of the Financial Statements.

Statutory Payments
The Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief, 
are satisfied that all statutory payments due to relevant 
authorities have been made by the Company.

Contingent Liabilities
There were no material contingent liabilities as at the 
reporting date which require adjustments to or disclosure 
other than stated in Note 30 in the Financial Statements. 
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors on 
the Affairs of the Company Contd.

Post Balance Sheet Events
Post Balance Sheet Events of the Company are disclosed in 
Note 32 of the Financial Statements.

Risk Management and Internal Control
The details of the significant risks identified by the Company 
and strategies and actions adopted in managing them are 
set out in pages 30 to 31. 

Going Concern
The Directors having made an assessment of the Company’s 
operating conditions, financial position, risks and future 
prospects have a reasonable expectation that the Company 
has adequate resources to continue its operations as a 
going concern in the foreseeable future.

Directors who held office during the 
Year
The Directors of the Company during the year were as 
follows.

Mr. W. A. P. Perera - Non-Executive Director

Mr. D. S. Panditha - Executive Non-Independent  
  Director

Ms. G. S. M. Irugalbandara - Non-Executive Director

Mr. E. A. D. T. B. Perera - Non-Executive Director

Mr. J. H. P. Rathnayake  - Non-Executive Director   
  (Until 01st of August 2018)

Prof. A. K. W. Jayawardane - Non-Executive  
  Independent Director

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe - Non-Executive  
  Independent Director

Mr. M.N. Gunasekara  - Non-Executive  
  Independent Director

Ms. S.N. Lokuge  - Non-Executive Director

Mr. F.A.W. Irugalbandara     -  Alternate Director  
      to Mr. W.A.P. Perera

Mr. D.N.N. Lokuge                 -  Alternate Director to Mr. D.S.  
    Panditha

Ms. Tashali Perera                 -  Alternate Director to   
    Mr. E.A.D.T.B. Perera 
   (Appointed on 31st of July 2018)

Appointments during the year
Nil

Resignations during the year
Nil

Appointments after the conclusion of 
the year 
Ms. Tashali Perera (Alternate Director to Mr. E.A.D.T.B. 
Perera)

Resignations after the conclusion of 
the year 
Mr. J.H.P. Ratnayeke (Until 01st of August 2018)

Directors who held office as at the end 
of the Accounting period
Mr. W. A. P. Perera   - Non-Executive Director

Mr. D. S. Panditha  - Executive Non-Independent  
     Director

Ms. G. S. M. Irugalbandara  - Non-Executive Director

Mr. E. A. D. T. B. Perera  - Non-Executive Director

Mr. J. H. P. Rathnayake  - Non-Executive Director

     (Until 01st of August 2018)

Prof. A. K. W. Jayawardane  - Non-Executive  
      Independent Director

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe  - Non-Executive  
      Independent Director

Mr. M. N. Gunasekera  - Non-Executive  
      Independent Director

Ms. S. N. Lokuge   - Non-Executive Director

Mr. F.A.W. Irugalbandara  
Alternate Director to Mr. W.A.P. Perera (Non-Executive 
Director)

Mr. D.N.N. Lokuge  
Alternate Director to Mr. D.S. Panditha (Executive Non-
Independent Director)

Ms. Tashali Perera   (Appointed on 31st of July 2018)
Alternate Director to Mr. E.A.D.T.B. Perera (Non-Executive 
Director)
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors on 
the Affairs of the Company Contd.

Directors retiring (at the Annual 
General Meeting)
1. To re-elect Mr. E.A.D.T.B. Perera, who retires by rotation 

in terms of Articles 91 of the Articles of Association of 
the Company as a Director of the Company.

2. To re-elect Mr. M.N. Gunasekera, who retires by rotation 
in terms of Articles 91 of the Articles of Association of 
the Company as a Director of the Company.

Corporate Governance
The Board of Directors confirm that the Company is 
compliant with section 7.10 of the Listing Rules of the 
Colombo Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and 
Related Party Transactions Review Committee function 
as Board subcommittees with Directors who possess the 
requisite qualifications and experience. The composition of 
the said committees is as follows;

Audit Committee as at 31st March 2018
 y Mr. M.N. Gunasekera - Chairman 

 Non-Executive Independent Director

 y Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane

 Non-Executive Independent Director

 y Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe
 Non-Executive Independent Director

Remuneration Committee as at 31st 
March 2018

 y Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane - Chairman

 Non-Executive Independent Director

 y Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe

 Non-Executive Independent Director

 y Mr. M.N. Gunasekera

 Non-Executive Independent Director

Related Party Transaction Review 
Committee as at 31st March 2018

 y Mr. M.N. Gunasekera - Chairman

 Non-Executive Independent Director

 y Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane

 Non-Executive Independent Director

 y Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe

 Non-Executive Independent Director

Directors’ Interest Register
The Company maintains an Interest Register in terms of 
the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. The Directors have made 
declarations and disclosed their interests to the Board and 

those interests are recorded in the interests register as 
provided for in Section 192(2) of the Companies Act No. 
7 of 2007.

Directors Remuneration and Other 
Benefits of Directors
Directors’ remuneration in respect of the Company for the 
financial year 2017/18 is given in Note 7 to the Financial 
Statements on page 75.

List of Directors of Subsidiaries and 
Associate Companies
Subsidiaries
Sierra Cables East Africa Limited

 • Mr. W.A.P. Perera - Chairman

 • Mr. D.S. Panditha

 • Mr. R.S.P. Fernando

Sierra Power (Private) Limited

 • Mr. W.A.P. Perera - Chairman

 • Mr. D.S. Panditha

 • Ms. G.S.M. Irugalbandara

 • Prof. A. Senaratne

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited

 • Mr. W.A.P. Perera - Chairman 

 • Mr. D.S. Panditha

 • Mr. E.H.C. Ranasinghe

Associate Companies
T & G Lanka (Private) Limited

 • Mr. D.S. Panditha - Chairman

 • Mr. O.M. Grimsgaard

 • Mr. M. Grimsgaard

 • Mr. A.D.M.M.L.S. Madappulli

Tea Leaf Resort (Private) Limited

 • Mr. W.A.P. Perera - Chairman

 • Mr. G.A. Aloysius

 • Mr. D.S. Panditha

 • Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekara

 • Mr. G. J. Alosius

Cabels PTE Limited

 • Mr. D.S. Panditha - Chairman

 • Mr. D. D. J. Samantha - Director and    
 Company Secretary

 • Mr. W.A.P. Perera - Director

 •  Mr. D. Chandra Patel - Director

 • Mr. Sachin Amin - Director

 • Mr. Bhavesh Kumar- Director



Sierra Cables PLC
Annual Report 2017 – 2018

50

Directors’ Interest in Shares
The Company maintains an interest register in terms of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. The Directors have made 
declarations and disclosed their interests to the Board and those are recorded in the interest register as provided for in 
Section 192(2) of the Companies Act No. 7 2017. 

Name No. of Shares 
as at 31st 

March 2018

No. of Shares 
as at 31st 

March 2017

Mr. D. S. Panditha 17,601,297 17,401,297

Mr. W. A. P. Perera 3,920,510 3,920,510

Ms. G.S.M. Irugalbandara 1,709,800 1,709,800

Ms. S.N. Lokuge 100,000 200,010

Mr. E. A. D. T. B. Perera 10 Nil

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardena Nil 100,010

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe Nil 10

Mr. M.N. Gunasekera Nil Nil

Mr. J. H. P Ratnayake Nil Nil

Mr. F.A.W. Irugalbandara (Alternate Director) 200,010 Nil

Mr. D.N.N. Lokuge (Alternate Director) 100,010 Nil

Directors’ Interest In Contracts
None of the Directors had a direct or indirect interest in any contracts or proposed contracts with the Company other than 
as disclosed in Note 34.2 on page 102  of the Financial Statements. 

Distribution of Shareholders as at 31st March 2018
The distribution and analysis of shareholdings were as follows;

Shareholding As at 31st March 2018 As at 31st March 2017

 From To No. of 
Shareholders

No. of 
Shares

% No. of 
Shareholders

No. of 
Shares

%

     1-1000  13,981  12,747,572 2.37 14,162 12,965,505 2.41

 1,001-10,000  6,597  15,730,538 2.93 6,759 24,582,174 4.58

 10,001-100,000  1,038  34,521,245 6.43 984 32,974,996 6.13

 100,001-1,000,000  216  59,599,344 11.09 217 61,434,164 11.43

 1,000,001-10,000,000  26  414,913,731 77.18 29 405,555,591 75.45

 Total  21,858  537,512,430  100 22,151 537,512,430 100.00

 
As at 31st March 2018 As at 31st March 2017

Composition of Shareholders No. of
 Shareholders

No. of 
Shares

% No. of 
Shareholders

No. of 
Shares

%

Resident 21811 530,797,480 98.75 22,531 525,375,039 97.74

Non-Resident 47 6,714,950 1.25 48 12,137,391 2.26

Total  21,858  537,512,430  100 22,579 537,512,430 100.00

Individual  21,556  148,539,255 28% 22,258 152,378,444 28.35

Institutional  302  388,973,175 72% 321 385,133,986 71.65

Total  21,858  537,512,430 100% 22,579 537,512,430 100.00

Annual Report of the Board of Directors on 
the Affairs of the Company Contd.
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Top 20  Shareholders of the Company as at 31st March 2018
As at 31st March 2018 As at 31st March 2017

Name No. of Shares % No. of Shares %

1 SIERRA HOLDINGS (PVT) LTD 312,335,490 58.11 312,335,490 58.11

2. SEYLAN BANK PLC/CARLINES HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED 21,818,123 4.06 17,501,297 3.26

3. MR. D.S. PANDITHA 17,601,297 3.27 12,135,290 2.26

4. AMANA BANK PLC/ALMAS ORGANISATION (PVT) LTD 15,779,482 2.94      -      -

5. MR. P.A.D.R.U. PUSHPAKUMARA 5,680,000 1.06 6,453,091 1.20

6. MR. B.C. RANAWEERA 4,500,000 0.84 4,758,754 0.89

7. MR. W.A.P. PERERA 3,920,510 0.73 3,920,510 0.73

8. TRANZ DOMINION,L.L.C. 3,600,000 0.67 3,600,000 0.67

9. PEOPLE'S LEASING & FINANCE PLC/HI LINE TRADING (PVT) LTD 3,135,233 0.58 3,135,233 0.58

10 PEOPLE'S LEASING & FINANCE PLC/MR.C.N.JAYASURIYA 2,500,000 0.47 3,130,000 0.58

11 MR. A.B.S. HERATH 2,236,550 0.42 2,857,996 0.53

12 MR. M. ILAMPERUMA 2,150,000 0.4 2,500,000 0.47

13 MS. K.S. RANGEDARA 1,786,493 0.33 2,500,000 0.47

14 MS. G.S.M. IRUGALBANDARA 1,709,800 0.32 2,436,638 0.45

15 SEYLAN BANK PLC/MOHAMED SUBAIR FOUZAL HAQQUE 1,545,120 0.29 1,545,120 0.29

16 MR. A.D. EDUSSURIYA 1,500,000 0.28 800,000 0.40

17 TRADING PARTNERS (PVT) LTD 1,432,002 0.27 1,432,002 0.27

18 MR. R. G. SENEVIRATNE/MRS.A. SENEVIRATNE(JOINT) 1,423,600 0.26 2,000,000 0.37

19 MR. T.L.M. IMTIAZ 1,408,711 0.26 1,786,493 0.33

20 MERCHANT BANK OF SRI LANKA LTD 1,390,000 0.26 1,390,000 0.26

Public Shareholding
The percentage of public shareholding as at 31st of March 2018 was 37.42.

Shareholding and Share Information
The Company had 21,858 registered shareholders as at 31st March 2018. The information relating to earnings, net assets per 
share and share trading, distribution and analysis of shareholding, the holding of the 20 largest Shareholders, Directors and 
Chief Executive Officer’s shareholding and public holding percentage is given on pages 11, 50 & 51, respectively.

Annual General Meeting
The notice of the Annual General Meeting is on page 116.

Auditors
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2018 have been audited by Messrs KPMG, (Chartered Accountants) 
who offer themselves for reappointment. As far as the Directors are aware, the Auditors do not have any relationship (other 
than that of an Auditor) with the Company other than those disclosed above. The Auditors also do not have any interest in 
the Company.

The Auditors Messrs KPMG, Chartered Accountants were paid Rs. 1,100,000/-(Rs. 1,000,000 -2016/2017) as Audit fees by 
the Company.

A resolution relating to their reappointment and authorising the Directors to determine their remuneration will be proposed 
at the Annual General Meeting. 

By Order of the Board,

(Sgd.)     (Sgd.)   (Sgd.)
Mr. W. A. P. Perera    Mr. D. S. Panditha  P.R. Secretarial Service (Private) Limited
Chairman/Director    Executive Director Secretaries

13th August 2018

Annual Report of the Board of Directors on 
the Affairs of the Company Contd.
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Financial Calendar

Financial Year End 31st March 2018

Interim Results for Financial Year 2017/2018
First Quarter 14th August 2017

Second Quarter 13th November 2017

Third Quarter 14th February 2018

Fourth Quarter 28th May 2018

Audited Financial Statements 13th August 2018

15th Annual General Meeting 26th September 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SIERRA CABLES PLC 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Sierra Cables PLC 
(“the Company”) and the consolidated financial statements of 
the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2018, and 
the income statement, statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to 
the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information set out in 
pages 58 to 109 of the Annual Report.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the 
Company and the Group give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company and the Group as at March 31, 2018, and 
of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing 
Standards (SLAuSs). Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by CA Sri Lanka (Code of Ethics), and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going 
Concern of the Subsidiaries
We draw attention to Note 35 to the financial statements which 
indicates that , Sierra Industries (Private) Limited and Sierra Cables 
East Africa Limited , subsidiaries of the Company incurred net losses 
during the year ended 31st March 2018 and as of that date, current 
liabilities of the respective companies exceeded the current assets. 
As stated in note 35, these events or conditions, along with other 
matters as set forth therein, indicate that a material uncertainty 
exists that may cast significant doubt on the subsidiaries’ ability to 
continue as a going concern and the steps taken by the Company. 
The financial statements do not include any adjustments that may 
be necessary if the subsidiaries are unable to continue as a going 
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the company 
financial statements and the consolidated financial statements 
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the company financial statements and 
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the 
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have 
determined the matters described below to be the key audit 
matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matters Our response

Valuation of freehold land and building

As at the reporting date land and buildings carried at fair value, 
classified as Property, Plant & Equipment amounted to  
Rs. 786,579,493.

The management’s assessment of fair value of its land and buildings 
is based on valuations performed by a qualified independent property 
valuer in accordance with recognised industry standards.  

We identified valuation of land and buildings as a key audit matter 
because the determination of the fair values involves significant 
judgment and estimation, particularly determining the underlying 
assumptions, and because the valuations are sensitive to the key 
assumptions applied.

Refer note 3.3.1 and notes 13 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

Our audit procedures included;
• Assessing the objectivity, independence, competence and 

qualification  of the property valuer engaged by the Group and 
challenging the methodology adopted and assumptions used.

• With the assistance of our own internal property valuation 
specialists assessing the key assumptions applied and conclusions 
made in deriving the fair value of the properties and comparing 
the fair value of properties with evidence of current market 
values. In addition to that, we have assessed the valuation 
methodologies with reference to recognized industry standards.

• Testing a sample of data inputs underpinning the valuation such 
as the price per perch, price per square foot and the area extent 
against our knowledge of the business and industry, to assess 
the accuracy, reliability and completeness thereof.

• Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial 
statements, including the description and appropriateness of the 
inherently subjective and key assumptions used in the valuation.  



Sierra Cables PLC
Annual Report 2017 – 2018

56

Independent Auditors’ Report Contd. 

Key Audit Matters Our response

Carrying value of Inventories

The Group has recorded inventories amounting to Rs. 1,144,406,564 
(2017: 893,039,653). Application of costing for finished goods and work 
in progress requires special audit consideration due to the complexity 
of absorption cost calculations and the volatility of input prices.

Given the level of judgments and estimates involved this is considered 
to be a key audit matter.

Refer note 3.3.5 and note 19 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

Our Procedures included;

- Testing key manual controls to ensure the completeness and 
existence of the inventories.

-  An assessment of the automated controls by our IT specialists, 
to determine whether the automated controls over inventory 
management was complete and accurate. 

- Test of detail procedures on sample basis including physical 
inventory verification, assessing the lower of cost and net 
realizable value to ensure the completeness, existence, accuracy 
and valuation of inventories.

- Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial 
statements.

Key Audit Matters Our response

Recoverability of trade receivables

As at 31st March 2018, the Group’s gross trade receivables totaled 
Rs 1,720,328,149 against which allowances for doubtful debts of Rs 
172,586,735 were recorded.

The Group’s allowance for the doubtful debts are based on the 
management’s estimates of the expected credit losses to be incurred, 
which is estimated by taking into account the ageing of overdue 
balances, the repayment history of the group’s individual customers, 
current market conditions and customer-specific conditions, all of 
which involves a significant degree of management judgment.

We identified recoverability of trade receivables as a key audit matters 
for our audit, as it requires management to exercise subjective 
judgment in making assumptions and estimates for the assessment of 
impairment allowance on trade receivables.

Refer note 3.3.7 and note 20 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

Our audit procedures included:

- Testing key controls with credit control and approval processes.

- On sample basis, checking the accuracy and completeness of 
ageing of receivables considered for impairment.

- Challenging management’s view of credit risk for long 
outstanding receivables.

- Testing a sample of long overdue customer balances for 
recoverability by reviewing cash received, subsequent to the 
year end for its effect in reducing amounts outstanding as at 
the year end, reviewing other evidence, including customer 
correspondence and discussion with management personnel 
and to challenge conditions that may impact expected customer 
receipts.

- Assessing the adequacy of disclosures made in the financial 
statements.

Other Information 
Management is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the annual 
report, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the 
other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on 
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and 
Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible 
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s and the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SLAuSs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SLAuSs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

 y Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

 y Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company and the Group’s 
internal control.

 y Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

 y Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

 y Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 y Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the 
financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain 
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with ethical requirements in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements
As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, 
we have obtained all the information and explanations that were 
required for the audit and, as far as appears from our examination, 
proper accounting records have been kept by the Company.

CA Sri Lanka membership number of the engagement partner 
responsible for signing this independent auditor’s report is 1224.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Colombo, Sri Lanka 
13th August 2018
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Income Statement

Group Company
For the year ended 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Revenue 5  4,069,119,607  4,044,449,473  3,839,979,820  3,724,981,774 

Cost of Sales  (3,498,574,014)  (3,165,556,059)  (3,260,481,855)  (2,880,335,542)

Gross Profit  570,545,593  878,893,414  579,497,965  844,646,232 

Other Income 6  10,725,060  26,903,100  10,725,060  26,902,525 

Selling and Distribution Expenses  (250,305,219)  (238,232,735)  (227,006,387)  (213,485,628)

Administrative Expenses  (156,779,801)  (156,899,782)  (144,458,472)  (155,481,754)

Other Operating Expenses (5,153,660)  (11,801,897)  (233,464)  (2,500,000)

Impairment of Investment in Subsidiaries - - (99,883,845) (55,000,000)

Profit from Operations 7  169,031,973  498,862,100  118,640,857  445,081,375 

Net Finance Costs 8  (181,007,559)  (152,067,336)  (154,366,889)  (123,600,270)

Share of Profit of Equity -  
   Accounted Investees, (Net of Tax) 17  4,863,142  874,224  -    -   

Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation  (7,112,444)  347,668,988  (35,726,032)  321,481,105 

Income Tax Expense 9  (16,063,389)  (80,243,893)  (17,509,657)  (81,809,721)

Profit from Continuing Operations  (23,175,833)  267,425,095  (53,235,689)  239,671,384 

Discontinued Operation

Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued Operations 12  (15,550,073)  (1,965,557) (18,000,000)  -   

Profit/(Loss) for the Year  (38,725,906)  265,459,538  (71,235,689)  239,671,384 

Profit/(Loss) Attributable to:

Owners of the Company  (27,437,215)  271,293,076  (71,235,689)  239,671,384 

Non-Controlling Interests  (11,288,691)  (5,833,538)  -    -   

Profit/(Loss) for the Year  (38,725,906)  265,459,538  (71,235,689)  239,671,384 

Basic Earnings/(Loss) Per Share 10  (0.05) 0.50  (0.13) 0.45

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes which form a part of these Financial 
Statements of the Group set out on pages 66 to 109.
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Statements of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income

Group Company
For the year ended 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Profit/(Loss) for the Year  (38,725,906)  265,459,538  (71,235,689)  239,671,384 

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Revaluation of land and building  289,751,938  -    260,705,338  -   

Deferred Tax Impact on Revaluation of land and building  (95,290,785) -  (80,911,357)  -   

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Defined Benefit Obligation  (8,752,452)  2,070,089  (8,752,452)  2,070,089 

Deferred Tax on Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 2,450,687 (549,402) 2,450,687 (549,402)

Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Net Change in Fair Value of Available-for-Sale Investments  1,369,949  170,023  1,369,949  170,023 

Exchange Differences on Translation of Foreign Operations  742,215  309,564  -    -   

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax  190,271,552  2,000,274  174,862,165  1,690,710 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year  151,545,646  267,459,812  103,626,476  241,362,094 

Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to:

Owners of the Company  160,208,471  273,277,872  103,626,476  241,362,094 

Non-Controlling Interests  (8,662,825)  (5,818,060)  -    -   

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year  151,545,646  267,459,812  103,626,476  241,362,094 

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes which form a part of these Financial 
Statements of the Group set out on pages 66 to 109.
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Statement of Financial Position

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

ASSETS

Non Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 13  1,494,627,990  1,114,052,321  1,060,155,597  818,344,603 
Intangible Assets 14  8,900,757  6,859,050  8,900,757  6,859,050 
Investment Property 15  4,500,000  -    4,500,000  -   
Investments in Subsidiaries 16  -    -    180,255,175  160,522,720 
Investments in Equity Accounted Investees 17  36,794,489  3,621,186  31,610,163  3,300,000 
Other Financial Assets - Non Current 18  56,433,863  29,142,315  56,433,863  29,142,315 
Long Term Loan Receivable 16  -    119,616,300  -   
Total Non Current Assets  1,601,257,099  1,153,674,872  1,461,471,855  1,018,168,688 

Current Assets
Inventories 19  1,144,406,564  1,233,919,344  893,039,653  1,160,345,333 
Trade and Other Receivables 20  1,696,570,228  1,673,034,765  1,545,555,346  1,362,539,188 
Income Tax Recoverable  9,093,048  1,883  9,089,911  -   
Amounts due from Related Companies 21  103,755,826  110,013,316  370,676,631  398,554,835 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 22  316,419,772  78,771,458  310,476,819  73,481,406 
Total Current Assets  3,270,245,438  3,095,740,766  3,128,838,360  2,994,920,762 
Assets Classified as Held for Sale 12  148,652,326  166,624,096  -    18,000,000 
Total Assets  5,020,154,863  4,416,039,734  4,590,310,215  4,031,089,450 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity 
Stated Capital 23  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898 
Revaluation Reserve  541,782,183  349,909,786  512,732,913  332,938,932 
Fair Value Reserve  19,262,804  17,892,855  19,262,804  17,892,855 
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  999,189  294,085  -    -   
Retained Earnings  366,236,257  418,874,496  388,302,660  465,840,114 

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders 
of the Company  1,822,846,331  1,681,537,120  1,814,864,275  1,711,237,799 
Non-Controlling Interest  8,393,965  (1,842,470)  -    -   
Total Equity  1,831,240,296  1,679,694,650  1,814,864,275  1,711,237,799 

Non Current Liabilities
Retirement Benefit Obligations 24  41,504,868  27,835,163  41,133,228  27,528,994 
Deferred Tax Liabilities 25  262,871,834  173,166,842  225,591,082  148,620,754 
Long Term Loans 26  97,601,618  71,484,209  22,371,998  56,613,998 
Total Non Current Liabilities  401,978,320  272,486,214  289,096,308  232,763,746 
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Statement of Financial Position Contd.

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables 27  1,018,291,199  972,584,671  887,819,888  861,280,484 
Current Portion of Long Term Loans 26  229,478,139  106,906,114  192,242,000  48,646,677 
Amounts due to Related Companies 28 -  5,583  43,913  91,400 
Import Demand Loans 29  1,300,881,985  1,206,197,811  1,229,918,031  1,065,874,913 
Income Tax Payable  -    73,512,534  -    73,512,534 
Bank Overdraft 22  238,221,924  98,056,157  176,325,800  37,681,897 
Total Current Liabilities  2,786,873,247  2,457,262,870  2,486,349,632  2,087,087,905 

Liabilities Directly Associated with Assets 
Classified as Held for Sale 12  63,000  6,596,000  -    -   
Total Liabilities  3,188,914,567  2,736,345,084  2,775,445,940  2,319,851,651 
Total Equity and Liabilities  5,020,154,863  4,416,039,734  4,590,310,215  4,031,089,450 

Net Asset Value per Share 3.39 3.12 3.38 3.18

Figures in  brackets indicate deductions.

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes which are form a part of these Financial 
Statements of the Group set out on pages 66 to 109.

It is certified that the Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 
No. 07 of 2007.

(Sgd.)

M.M.M. De Silva
Chief Financial Officer

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements.
Approved and signed for and on behalf of the Board of Directors.

(Sgd.)       (Sgd.)                    

W.A.P. Perera     D.S. Panditha
Chairman       Managing Director

13th August 2018
Colombo 
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Statement of Changes in Equity

 Attributable to Owners of the Company  

 Stated
 Capital 

 Revaluation
 Reserve  

 Foreign
 Currency

 Translation
 Reserve 

 Fair Value
 Reserve  

 Retained
 Earnings 

 Total  Non-
Controlling 

 Interest

 Total 
 Equity

Group  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Balance as at 1st April 2016  894,565,898  349,909,786  -    17,722,832  280,438,841  1,542,637,356  3,975,590  1,546,612,947 

Profit (Loss) for the Year  -    -   -  -    271,293,076  271,293,076  (5,833,538)  265,459,538 

Other Comprehensive  
   Income

Net Change in Fair Value of  
   Available-for-Sale Financial Assets  -    -   -  170,023 -  170,023 -  170,023 

Actuarial Loss on Retirement  
   Benefit Obligation, Net of Tax  -    -   - -  1,520,687  1,520,687 -  1,520,687 

Exchange Differences on  
   Translation of Foreign Operations  294,085 - -  294,085  15,478  309,563 

Total Comprehensive Income  
   for the Year  -    -    294,085  170,023  272,813,763  273,277,871  (5,818,060)  267,459,811 

Transactions with Owners,  
   Recognised Directly in Equity

Dividend Paid – Ordinary Shares  -    -   -  -    (134,378,108)  (134,378,108)  -    (134,378,108)

Total Transactions with Owners  
   of the Company  -    -    -    -    (134,378,108)  (134,378,108)  -    (134,378,108)

Balance as at 31st March 2017  894,565,898  349,909,786  294,085  17,892,855  418,874,496 1,681,537,120 (1,842,470) 1,679,694,650 

Balance as at 1st April 2017  894,565,898  349,909,786  294,085  17,892,855  418,874,496 1,681,537,120  (1,842,470) 1,679,694,650 

Profit/(Loss) for the Year - - - -  (27,437,215)  (27,437,215)  (11,288,691)  (38,725,906)

Other Comprehensive Income

Net Change in Fair Value of  
   Available-for-Sale Financial Assets - - -  1,369,949 -  1,369,949 -  1,369,949 

Actuarial Gain on Retirement  
   Benefit Obligation, Net of Tax - - - -  (6,301,765)  (6,301,765) -  (6,301,765)

Revaluation Surplus on  
   Property, Plant and Equipment -  284,625,213 - - -  284,625,213  5,126,725  289,751,938 

Deferred Tax Impact on  
   Revaluation surplus on  
   Property, Plant and Equipment -  (92,752,816) - - -  (92,752,816)  (2,537,969)  (95,290,785)

Exchange Differences on  
   Translation of Foreign Operations - -  705,104 - -  705,104  37,111  742,215 

Total Comprehensive Income  
   for the Year  -    191,872,397  705,104  1,369,949  (33,832,340)  160,208,470  (8,662,824)  151,545,646 

Adjustment due to Changes  
   in Effective Holdings - - - -  (18,899,259)  (18,899,259)  18,899,259  -   

Balance as at 31st March 2018  894,565,898  541,782,183  999,189  19,262,804  366,236,257  1,822,846,331  8,393,965  1,831,240,296

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes which form a part of these Financial Statements of the Group set out on pages 

66 to 109.
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Statement of Changes in Equity Contd.

 Stated 
Capital

 Revaluation
 Reserve

 Fair Value  
Reserve

 Retained 
Earnings

 Total 

Company  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Balance as at 1st April 2016  894,565,898  332,938,932  17,722,832  359,026,151  1,604,253,813 

Profit  for the Year  -    -    -    239,671,384  239,671,384 

Other Comprehensive Income

Net Change in Fair Value of  
   Available-for-Sale Financial Assets  -    -    170,023  -    170,023 

Actuarial Loss on Retirement Benefit  
   Obligation, Net of Tax  -    -   -  1,520,687  1,520,687 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year  -    -    170,023  241,192,071  241,362,094 

Transactions with Owners,  
   Recognised Directly in Equity

Dividend Paid - Ordinary Shares  -    -    -    (134,378,108)  (134,378,108)

Total Transactions with Owners  
   of the Company  -    -    -    (134,378,108)  (134,378,108)

Balance as at 31st March 2017  894,565,898  332,938,932  17,892,855  465,840,114  1,711,237,799 

Balance as at 1st April 2017  894,565,898  332,938,932  17,892,855  465,840,114  1,711,237,799 

Profit/ (Loss) for the Year  -    -    -    (71,235,689)  (71,235,689)

Other Comprehensive Income

Net Change in Fair Value of  
   Available-for-Sale Financial Assets  -    -    1,369,949  -    1,369,949 

Actuarial Loss on Retirement Benefit 
Obligation, Net of Tax - - -  (6,301,765)  (6,301,765)

Revaluation Surplus on Property, Plant  
   and Equipment -  260,705,338 - -  260,705,338 

Deferred Tax Impact on Revaluation surplus  
   on Property Plant and Equipment -  (80,911,357) - -  (80,911,357)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year  -    179,793,981  1,369,949  (77,537,454)  103,626,476 

Balance as at 31st March 2018  894,565,898  512,732,913  19,262,804  388,302,660  1,814,864,275 

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes which form a part of these Financial 
Statements of the Group set out on pages 66 to 109.
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Statement of Cash Flows

GROUP COMPANY
For the year ended 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax from Continuing Operations  (7,112,444)  347,668,988  (35,726,032)  321,481,105 

Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations Net of Tax  (15,550,073)  (1,965,557) (18,000,000)    -   

Adjustments for:
Depreciation  87,346,022  85,216,844  70,412,674  68,632,183 

Amortization of Intangible Assets  1,768,710  2,148,915  1,768,710  2,148,915 

Impairment of Assets Held for Sale  18,000,000  -    18,000,000  -   

Net gains/(loss) on translation of foreign currency  (1,873,613)  (1,938,439)  -    -   

Provision for Impairment of Trade Receivables  36,996,027  34,228,581  25,249,639  29,438,139 

Provision for Impairment of Subsidiaries  -    -    99,883,845  55,000,000 

Write-back of Creditors no longer Payable  (533,000)  -    -    -   

Gain on Disposal of Available-for-Sale Investment  -    (554,968)  (554,968)

Share of Profit of Equity Accounted Investees, (Net of Tax) (4,863,142) (874,224)

Provision for Impairment of Investment in Equity Accounted 
Investees  -    -    -    2,500,000 

Write-back of Loan no longer Payable  (6,000,000)  -    -    -   

Write off of Finished Goods  -    44,296,346  -    44,296,346 

Provision for Obsolete Inventories  9,000,000  2,119,931  9,000,000  -   

Provision Reversal of Other receivables  (4,058,493)  (4,058,493)

Provision for Employee Benefit Obligation  7,244,485  5,790,171  7,179,014  5,763,455 

Interest Expense  187,768,293  153,720,896  161,298,291  125,335,581 

Interest Income  (332,600)  (401,440)  (331,393)  (391,517)

Dividend Income  (308,189)  (134,998)  (308,189)  (134,998)

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes  307,491,983  669,321,046  334,368,066  653,514,241 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  80,512,773  (573,140,670)  258,305,686  (551,015,578)

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables  (56,472,997)  (664,165,852)  (204,207,304)  (528,304,713)

(Increase)/Decrease in Dues from Related Parties  6,257,489  (4,125,577) (211,354,396)  (95,327,475)

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables  45,706,528  557,168,597  26,539,403  555,334,659 

Increase/(Decrease) in Dues to Related Parties  (5,583)  5,583  (47,487)  71,562 

Cash Generated from Operations  383,490,193  (14,936,873)  203,603,968  34,272,696 

Interest Paid  (187,728,293)  (150,620,896)  (161,298,291)  (125,335,581)
Income Tax Paid  (101,602,445)  (26,050,385)  (101,602,445)  (26,048,502)
Retirement Benefit Paid  (2,327,232)  (2,093,801)  (2,327,232)  (2,093,801)
Net Cash Flows Generated from Operating Activities  91,792,223  193,701,596  61,624,000   (119,205,188)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Received  332,600  401,440  331,393  391,517 
Dividend Received  308,189  134,998  308,189  134,998 
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment  (177,640,667)  (97,197,965)  (56,018,330)  (18,740,838)
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GROUP COMPANY
For the year ended 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Acquisition of Intangible Assets  (3,810,417)  (7,738,544)  (3,810,417)  (7,738,544)
Investment in Subsidiary  -    -   -  (33,462,700)
Proceeds from Disposal of Available-of-Sale Investments  -    16,338,367-  -    16,338,367 
Advance to Acquire Shares  (25,921,600) -  (25,921,600) -
Investment of Equity Accounted Investees  (28,310,163) -  (28,310,163)  -   
Net Cash From/(Used In) Investing Activities  (235,042,058)  88,046,226  (113,420,928)  (43,077,200)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Interest-Bearing Borrowings  3,087,032,021  2,605,221,880  2,916,105,857  2,329,593,559 
Repayment of Interest-Bearing Borrowings (2,846,299,965)  (2,229,892,554)  (2,642,709,419)  (2,047,978,459)
Dividend Paid  -    (120,995,875)  -    (120,995,875)
Net Cash Flows From/(Used In) Financing Activities  240,732,056  254,333,451  273,396,438  160,619,225 
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  97,482,221  (27,414,731)  98,351,510  (1,663,163)
Cash and Cash Equivalents Classified as Asset Held For Sale  326  326  -    -   
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year  (19,284,699)  8,129,706  35,799,509  37,462,672 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year  78,197,848  (19,284,699)  134,151,019  35,799,509 

Analysis of Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash in Hand and at Bank  316,419,772  78,771,458  310,476,819  73,481,406 
Bank Overdraft  (238,221,924)  (98,056,157)  (176,325,800)  (37,681,897)

 78,197,848  (19,284,699)  134,151,019  35,799,509

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes which form a part of these Financial Statements of the 
Group set out on pages 66 to 109.

Statement of Cash Flows Contd. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. REPORTING ENTITY

1.1. Domicile and Legal Form
Sierra Cables PLC is a public limited liability Company 
incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered 
office of the Company is located at 112, Havelock Road, 
Colombo 05 and principal place of business is located at 
39/1A, Galwarusawa Road, Korathota, Kaduwela. 

The consolidated financial statements of the Company 
as at and for the year ended 31st March 2018 comprise 
the Company and its Subsidiaries (together referred as 
the“Group” individually as Group entities) and the group 
interest in associates.

Sierra Cables PLC being a part of a large conglomerate 
is also a Group on its own. The principal activity of the 
Company is manufacture and sale of wires and cables. 
The three subsidiaries, Sierra Power (Private) Limited, 
Sierra Industries (Private) Limited and Sierra Cables East 
Africa Limited are engaged in the power generation to the 
National Grid, manufacture of UPVC pipes and fittings and 
manufacture and sale of wires and cables respectively. The 
two associate Companies, T & G Lanka (Private) Limited 
and Tea Leaf Resort (Private) Limited are diversified 
to manufacturing of Patch Cables and leisure sector 
respectively.

Ultimate Parent Company of Sierra Cables PLC is Sierra 
Holdings (Private) Limited, a Company domiciled in Sri 
Lanka.

All the Companies in the Group have a common financial 
year, which ends on 31st March other than Sierra Cables 
East Africa Limited which has been prepared up to 31st 
December as per their reporting requirements.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1. Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 
(SLFRSs/LKASs) promulgated by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka (ICASL) and comply with the 
requirement of Companies Act No.07 of 2007. 

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for 
issue by the Board of Directors on 13th August 2018.

2.2. Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the 
historical cost basis except for the following material items 
in the statement of financial position. 

 y Available-for-Sale Financial Assets are measured at fair 
value; 

 y Liability for Defined Benefit Obligations is carried at the 
present value of the defined benefit obligations. 

 y Land, Buildings and Plant and Machinery are measured 
at cost at the time of acquisition and subsequently at 
revalued amounts, which are the fair values at the date 
of revaluation. 

The Directors have made an assessment of the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in the foreseeable 
future and they do not foresee a need for liquidation or 
cessation of trading.

2.3. Functional and Presentation Currency
The Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan 
Rupees which is the Group’s functional currency. All financial 
information presented in Sri Lankan Rupees has been 
rounded to the nearest rupee, unless stated otherwise.

2.4. Use of Estimates and Judgments
The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards requires management to 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the application of accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected. 

Information about critical estimates and judgments in 
applying accounting policies that have the most significant 
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial 
statements is provided in the following notes.

 y Identification, measurement and assessment of 
impairment

 y Recognition and measurement of financial instruments

 y Retirement Benefit Obligations

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies set out below have been applied 
consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated 
financial statements, and have been applied consistently by 
Group entities.
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3.1. Basis of Consolidation 

(a) Business Combination 
Business combinations are accounted for using the 
acquisition method as at the acquisition date when control 
is transferred to the Group. Control is the power to govern 
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to 
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, the 
Group takes into consideration potential voting rights that 
are currently exercisable.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as: 

 y The fair value of the consideration transferred; plus 

 y The recognised amount of any non-controlling interests 
in the acquire; plus 

 y If the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair 
value of the pre-existing equity interest in the acquire; 
less 

 y The net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the 
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. 

 y When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(b) Non - Controlling Interests 
For each business combination, the Group elects to 
measure any non-controlling interest which are generally 
at fair value.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not 
result in a loss of control are accounted for as transactions 
with owners in their capacity as owners. Adjustments to 
non-controlling interests are based on a proportionate 
amount of the net assets of the subsidiary. No adjustments 
are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised in 
profit or loss.

(c) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The 
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the 
Consolidated Financial statements from the date that 
control commences until the date that control ceases.

(d) Loss of Control 
On the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets 
and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling 
interests and the other components of equity related to 
the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of 
control is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains 
any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest 
is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. 
Subsequently it is accounted for as an Equity-Accounted 
Investee or as an Available-for-Sale Financial Asset 
depending on the level of influence retained.

(e) Equity Accounted Investees (Investments In 
Associates)
Associates are those entities in which the Group has 
significant influence but not control, over the financial 
and operating policies, Significant influence is presumed 
to exist when the Group holds between 20% and 50% 
of the voting power of another entity. Investments in 
Associates are accounted for using the Equity Method and 
are recognised initially at cost. The cost of the investment 
includes transaction costs.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s 
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income of equity accounted investees, from the date 
that significant influence commences until the date that 
significant influence ceases. When the Group’s share of 
losses exceeds its interest in an equity-accounted investee, 
the carrying amount of the investment, including any long-
term interests that form part thereof, is reduced to zero, 
and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except 
to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made 
payments on behalf of the investee. 

At each reporting date, the Group determines whether 
there is objective evidence that the investment in associate 
is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates 
the amount of impairment as the difference between 
the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying 
value, and then recognises the loss as “Share of profit of an 
associate” in the income statement.

(f) Intra-Group Transactions
Pricing policies of all intra-group sales are identical to those 
adopted for normal trading transactions, which are at 
market prices.

(g) Transactions Eliminated on Consolidation
Intra group balances and transactions, and any unrealised 
income and expenses arising from intra group transactions, 
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial 
statements, Unrealised gains arising from transactions 
with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against 
the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the 
investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way 
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no 
evidence of impairment.

3.2. Foreign Currency

3.2.1 Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the 
respective functional currencies of Group entities at 
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary 

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd. 
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assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
at the reporting date are re-translated to the functional 
currency at the exchange rate at that date. 

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies that are measured at fair value are re-translated 
to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date 
that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items in 
a foreign currency that are measured based on historical 
cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of 
the transaction. 

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are 
recognised in profit or loss.

3.2.2 Foreign Operations
The results and financial position of overseas operations that 
have a Functional Currency different from the Company’s 
Presentation Currency are translated into the Company’s 
Presentation Currency as follows:

 y Assets and liabilities, including goodwill and fair value 
adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated at the 
rates of exchange ruling as at the Reporting date.

 y Income and expenses are translated at the average 
exchange rate for the period.

The exchange differences arising on translation for 
Consolidation are recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income and accumulated in the Foreign Currency 
Translation Reserve (Translation Reserve), which is a 
separate component of Equity, except to the extent that 
the translation difference is allocated to the NCI. 

When a Foreign Operation is disposed of such that the 
control is lost, the cumulative amount in the Translation 
Reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified to 
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. If the 
Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary 
that includes a Foreign Operation while retaining control, 
then the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount of 
the Translation Reserve is reattributed to NCI.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign 
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition 
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation.

3.3. Assets and Bases of Their Valuation 

3.3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment 

(a) Recognition and Measurement

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially 
recorded at cost. Where items of property, plant and 
equipment are subsequently revalued, the entire class 

of such assets is revalued. Revaluations are made with 
sufficient regularity to ensure that their carrying amounts 
do not differ materially from their fair values at the 
reporting date.

Subsequent to the initial recognition of the asset at cost, 
the revalued property, plant and equipment are carried at 
revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation thereon 
and accumulated impairment losses. The Group applies 
revaluation model to land, building and cost model to the 
remaining assets under property, plant and equipment 
which are stated at historical cost less accumulated 
depreciation less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment 
comprise its purchase price and any directly attributable 
costs of bringing the asset to working condition for its 
intended use. The cost of self-constructed assets includes 
the cost of materials, direct labour, any other costs directly 
attributable to bringing the asset to the working condition 
for its intended use and capitalised borrowing costs. 
This also includes cost of dismantling and removing the 
items and restoring in the site on which they are located. 
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment 
have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and 
equipment. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant 
and equipment (calculated as the difference between the 
net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the 
item) is recognised in profit or loss.

(b) Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant 
and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of 
the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
embodied within the part will flow to the company and its 
cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the 
replaced part is derecognized. 

The costs of the day to day servicing of property, plant and 
equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. 

(c) Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant 
and equipment calculated as the difference between the 
net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the 
item is recognized within other income in profit or loss. 

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd. 
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(d) Depreciation 

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated 
on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over the estimated 
useful lives of each component. Leased assets are 
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their 
useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group 
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Land is 
not depreciated. Items of property, plant and equipment 
are depreciated from the date that they are installed and 
are ready for use, or in respect of internally constructed 
assets, from the date that the asset is completed and ready 
for use.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative 
years of significant items of property, plant and equipment 
are as follows:

Asset Category Useful Life 
(Years)

Depreciation 
Rate 

(%)

Building 20-25 4-5

Plant and Machinery 10-20 5-10

Factory Equipment 5 20

Furniture Fittings 5 20

Motor Vehicles 5 20

Offices and Computer 
Equipment 5 20

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use 
where as depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of 
the date that the asset is classified as held for sale and the 
date that the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values 
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if 
appropriate.

(e)  Revaluation Policy

The Company’s land, buildings are revalued with sufficient 
regularity once in five years. The revaluation surplus is 
accounted in the revaluation reserve.

3.3.2 Intangible Assets and Goodwill

(a) Intangible Assets

An Intangible Asset is recognized if it is probable that 
economic benefits are attributable to the assets will flow to 
the Group and cost of the assets can be measured reliably 
and carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses.

(b) Goodwill

Goodwill that arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries is 
presented with intangible assets. For the measurement of 
goodwill at initial recognition, see Note 3.1 (a).

Subsequent measurement

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment 
losses. In respect of equity accounted investees, the 
carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying 
amount of the investment, and any impairment loss is 
allocated to the carrying amount of the equity accounted 
investee as a whole.

(c) Computer Software

All computer software cost incurred, which are not an 
integral part of the related hardware, which can be clearly 
identified, reliably measured and its probable that they 
will lead to future economic benefits, are included in the 
Statement of Financial Position under the category of 
intangible assets. 

Subsequent Expenditure 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it 
increases the future economic benefits embodied in the 
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is 
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortization
Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis in 
profit or loss over their estimated useful lives from the date 
that they are available for use. The estimated useful lives 
for the current and comparative years are as follows:

Asset Category Useful Life 
(Years)

Depreciation 
Rate 

(%)

Computer Software 5 20

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

3.3.3 Leased Assets
Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially 
all of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as 
finance leases on initial recognition, the leased asset is 
measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value 
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted 
for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to 
that asset. Other leases are operating leases and are not 
recognized in the Group’s statement of financial position.

3.3.4 Investment Property
Investment properties are properties held either to earn 
rental income or for capital appreciation or both but not 
for sale in the ordinary course of business, used in the 
production or supply of goods or services for administrative 
purposes.
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Investment property is recognized, if it is probable that 
future economic benefits that are associated with the 
investment property, will flow to the Group and cost of the 
investment property can be reliably measured.

An investment property is measured initially at its cost. 
The cost of a purchased investment property comprises 
of its purchase price and directly attributable expenditure, 
the cost of the self-constructed investment property is its 
cost at the date of when the construction or development 
is completed. The Group applies the cost model for 
investment properties in accordance with LKAS 40 – 
“Investment property.”

3.3.5 Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and 
net realizable value. The cost of inventories includes 
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, 
production or conversion costs, and other costs incurred 
in bringing them to their existing location and condition. In 
the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, 
cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads 
based on normal operating capacity. Net realizable value 
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business less the estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sales. 

The costs incurred in bringing inventories to its present 
location and condition, are accounted for as follows:

Raw Materials

-  At actual cost, on Weighted Average basis.

Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress

-  At actual cost, on Weighted Average for work in 
progress and finished goods.

3.3.6 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
The carrying amounts of the group’s non-financial assets, 
other than inventories are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. 
If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable 
amount is estimated. An impairment loss isrecognised if 
the carrying amount of an assets or cash generating unit 
(CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater 
of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. 
For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into 
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows 
from continuing use that are largely independent of the 
cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognised in 
respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying 
amount of any goodwill allocated to CGU (if any) and then 
to reduce the carrying amounts of other assets in the 
CGU (group of CGUs) on pro rata basis. An impairment 
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other 
assets , an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent 
that the assets carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined , net 
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had 
been recognised.   

3.3.7 Financial Instruments 

(i) Non-Derivative Financial Assets

The group initially recognizes loans and receivables on the 
date that they are originated. All other financial assets are 
recognized initially on the trade date at which the group 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.

A financial asset is measured initially at fair value plus, in 
the case of assets not at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its 
acquisition or issue.

The group derecognises a financial asset when the 
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire; 
it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows 
on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset 
are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets 
that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a 
separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount 
presented in the statement of financial position when, and 
only when, the Company has a legal right to set off the 
amounts and it intends either to settle on a net basis or 
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets into the 
following categories;

 y Loans and Receivables

 y Cash and Cash Equivalents

 y Available for Sale Financial Assets 

a. Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payment that are not quoted in an active 
market. Such assets are recognised at fair value plus any 
directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to 
initial recognition loans and receivables are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less 
any impairment losses.
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b. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call 
deposits with maturities of three months or less from the 
acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in their fair value and are used by the Group in the 
management of its short-term commitments. 

c. Available for Sale Financial Assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are financial assets that 
are designated as available for sale and are not classified 
in any other categories. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
they are measured at fair value and changes therein, 
other than impairment losses on available for sale equity 
instruments are recognised in other comprehensive income 
and presented within equity in the fair value reserve. When 
an investment is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss 
in other comprehensive income transferred to profit or loss.

Available for sale financial assets comprise of Investment in 
Equity Shares and Treasury Bills.

(ii) Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities

The Group recognizes financial liabilities initially on the 
trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group classifies financial liabilities into other financial 
liabilities category. Such finance liabilities are recognized 
initially at fair value plus any directly attributable 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these 
financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method.

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its 
contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.
Other financial liabilities comprise Trade Payables, Other 
Liabilities and Bank Borrowings.

(iii) Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs 
directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are 
recognised as a deduction from Equity, net of any tax 
effects.

(iv) Amortized Cost Measurement

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the 
amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured 
at initial recognition, minus principal repayments and any 
impairment and plus/minus the cumulative amortization 
using the effective interest method of any difference 
between the initial amount recognised and the maturity 
amount.

(v) Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be 
exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, 
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction on the 
measurement date.

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in 
an active market at each reporting date is determined 
by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price 
quotations, without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, 
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation 
techniques. Such techniques may include using recent 
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current 
fair value of another instrument that is substantially the 
same; a discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation 
models. 

(vi) Impairment

The group assesses at each reporting date whether there 
is any objective evidence that financial assets or group of 
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only 
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result 
of one or more events that has occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset and that loss event has an impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset 
that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that a financial assets are impaired 
includes default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring 
of an amount due to the company on terms that the 
company would not consider otherwise, indications that 
a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse changes 
in the payment status of borrowers or issuers, economic 
conditions that correlate with defaults or the disappearance 
of an active market for a security. 

Impairment Losses on Available for Sale Financial 
Assets
Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are 
recognised by reclassifying the losses accumulated in the 
fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss. The cumulative 
loss that is reclassified from equity to profit or loss is the 
difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal 
repayment and amortisation, and the current fair value, less 
any impairment loss recognised previously in profit or loss. 
Changes in cumulative impairment losses attributable to 
application of the effective interest method are reflected 
as a component of interest income. 

If, in a subsequent period,the fair value of an impaired 
available-far-sale debt security increases and the increase 
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the 
impairment loss was recognised, then the impairment loss 
is reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognised in 
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profit or loss. However, any subsequent recovery in the fair 
value of an impaired available-far-sale equity security is 
recognised in other comprehensive income

3.3.8 Defined Benefit Plan
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan 
other than a defined contribution plan. The Group’s net 
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated 
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees 
have earned in return for their service in the current and 
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its 
present value. 

The retirement benefit obligation of the group is based 
on the actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit 
(PUC) methods as recommended by Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standard (LKAS 19) Employee Benefits. The calculation is 
performed by independent Actuary using the projected 
unit credit method. The assumptions based on which the 
results of the actuarial valuation was determined, are 
included in Note 23.2 to the Financial Statements.

The Group recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising 
from the defined benefits plans immediately in the other 
comprehensive income. The liability is disclosed under Non-
current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position and 
not externally funded.

However, as per the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 
1983 the liability to an employee arises only on completion 
of 5 years of continued service.

Defined Contribution Plans – Employees’ Provident 
Fund and Employee Trust Fund
All employees who are eligible for Employees’ Provident Fund 
Contributions and Employees’ Trust Fund Contributions 
are covered by relevant contributions funds in line with the 
relevant statutes. Employer’s contributions to the defined 
contribution plans are recognized as an expense in profit or 
loss when incurred.

3.3.9 Provisions
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event the 
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that 
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow 
of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation.

3.4 Statement of Comprehensive Income

(a) Revenue
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable 
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 
revenue and the associated costs incurred or to be incurred 
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable, net of 
trade discounts and sales taxes.

(i) Sale of Goods

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary 
activities is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and 
volume rebates. Revenue is recognised when persuasive 
evidence exists, that the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership have been transferred to the customer, recovery 
of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and 
possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there 
is no continuing management involvement with the goods 
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

(ii) Dividend Income

Dividend income recognized when the right to receive the 
dividend is established.

(iii) Interest Income

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis unless 
collection is in doubt.

(iv) Gains and Losses

Net gains and losses of a revenue nature arising from the 
disposal of property, plant and equipment and other non-
current assets, including investments, are accounted for in 
the statement of comprehensive income, after deducting 
from the proceeds on disposal, the carrying amount of 
such assets and the related selling expenses.

(v) Other Income

Other income is recognized on an accrual basis.

(b) Expenditure Recognition

(i) Operating Expenses

All expenses incurred in day to day operations of the business 
and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment in a 
state of efficiency has been charged to the statement of 
comprehensive income in arriving at the profit for the year. 
Provision has also been made for impairment of financial 
assets, slow moving inventories, all known liabilities and 
depreciation on property, plant and equipment.

(ii) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition, 
construction or production of assets that necessarily takes 
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use 
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective 
assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period 
they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other 
costs that Group incurs in connection with the borrowing 
of funds.
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(iii) Net Finance Income / (Expenses) 

Finance income comprises interest income on funds 
invested. Interest income is recognized as it accrues in 
profit or loss, using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings that 
are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction 
or productions of a qualifying asset recognised using the 
effective interest method.

(c) Taxation

(i) Current Taxes

Current Income tax liabilities for the current and prior 
periods are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the Commissioner General of 
Inland Revenue. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute 
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date.

The provision for income tax is based on the elements 
of income and expenditures reported in the Financial 
Statements and computed in accordance with the 
provisions of the Inland Revenue Act.

(ii) Deferred Taxation

Deferred taxation is provided, using the liability method, 
on all temporary differences at the reporting date between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax losses 
and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profits will be available against which 
the deductible temporary differences and carry forward of 
unused tax losses / credits can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at 
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset 
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and 
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
as at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if 
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes 
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority.

(d) Related Party Transactions

Disclosure has been made in respect of the transactions 
in which one party has the ability to control or exercise 
significant influence over the financial and operating 
policies/decisions of the other, irrespective of whether a 
price is being charged or not.

The relevant details are disclosed in the respective notes to 
the Financial Statements.

(e) Cash Flow Statement

Interest received and dividends received are classified 
as investing cash flows, while dividend paid and interest 
paid, is classified as financing cash flows for the purpose of 
presentation of Statement of Cash Flows which has been 
prepared using the ‘Indirect Method’.

(f) Earnings Per Share

Basic Earning Per Share is calculated by dividing the profit or 
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company 
by the number of shares outstanding at the reporting date
.

(g) Events Occurring After the Reporting Period

Events after the reporting period are those events 
favorable and unfavorable, that occur between the end 
of the reporting period and the date when the financial 
statements are authorized for issue.

The materiality of the events occurring after the reporting 
period is considered and appropriate adjustments to or 
disclosures are made in the Financial Statements, where 
necessary.

(h) Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets that are expected to be recovered 
primarily through sale rather than through continuing 
use are classified as held for sale. Immediately before 
classification as held for sale the assets are re measured in 
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies. Thereafter 
the assets are measured at the lower of their carrying 
amount or fair value less costs to sell. Impairment losses on 
initial classification and subsequent gains and losses on re-
measurement are recognized in profit or loss. Gains are not 
recognized in excess of any cumulative impairment loss. 

Once classified as held for sale, property plant and 
equipment are no longer amortized or depreciated.
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4. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED 
BUT NOT EFFECTIVE AS AT REPORTING 
DATE 
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka has 
issued the following new Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 
which will become applicable for financial periods beginning 
on or after 18st January 2017 or at a later date.

Accordingly, these Standards have not been applied in 
preparing these financial statements.

 y SLFRS 9 – “Financial Instruments” 

SLFRS 9, issued in 2014, replaces the existing guidance 
in LKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement. SLFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the 
classification and measurement of financial instruments, 
including a new expected credit loss model for calculating 
impairment on financial assets. SLFRS 9 is effective for 
annual period beginning on or after 1st January 2018 with 
early adoption permitted. 

The Group is assessing the potential impact on its 
consolidated financial statements resulting from the 
application of SLFRS 9.

 y SLFRS 15 – “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

SLFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for 
determining whether, how much and when revenue 
is recognised. It replaces existing revenue recognition 
guidance, including LKAS 18 Revenue, LKAS 11 Construction 
Contracts. SLFRS 15 is effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after 1st January 2018, with early 
adoption permitted. 

The Group is assessing the potential impact on its 
consolidated financial statements resulting from the 
application of SLFRS 15. 

 y SLFRS 16 – “Leases” 

SLFRS 16 requires lessees to recognise all leases on their 
Statement of Financial Position as lease liabilities with 
the corresponding right of use assets. The profit or loss 
recognition pattern for recognised leases will be similar 
to existing finance lease accounting, with interest and 
depreciation expense recognized separately in Profit or 
Loss. SLFRS 16 is effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1st January 2019. 

The Group is currently evaluating the impact of SLFRS 16.
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5. Revenue

Group Company
For the year ended 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Local Sales  3,803,518,543  3,607,479,136  3,595,036,393  3,385,067,275 

Export Sales  265,601,064  436,970,337  244,943,427  339,914,499 

 4,069,119,607  4,044,449,473  3,839,979,820  3,724,981,774

6.  Other Income

Group Company
For the year ended 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Dividend Income  308,189  134,998  308,189  134,998 

Scrap Sales  10,017,039  26,768,102  10,017,039  26,767,527 

Income on Solar Power Generation  359,832  -    359,832  -   

Miscellaneous Income  40,000  -    40,000  -   

 10,725,060  26,903,100  10,725,060  26,902,525 

7.  Profit/(Loss) from Operations
Profit/(Loss) from Operations is stated after charging/(crediting) all the expenses/(income) including following;

Group Company
For the year ended 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Directors' Fees and Emoluments  24,237,500  21,607,250  24,237,500  21,607,250 

Auditors' Remuneration – Audit  1,733,241  1,302,292  1,100,000  1,000,000 

  – Audit Related Services  147,497  300,000  147,497  300,000 

Depreciation and Amortization  89,114,732  87,334,059  72,181,384  70,781,098 

Provision for Obsolete Inventories  9,000,000  2,119,931  9,000,000  -   

Write-off of Inventories -  44,296,346 -  44,296,346 

Write-back of loan no longer payable (6,000,000) - - -

Write-back of Creditors no longer payable (533,000) - - -

Provision reversal of Other Receivables (4,058,493) - (4,058,493) -

Provision for Impairment of Subsidiaries  -    -    99,883,845  55,000,000 

Provision for Impairment of Trade Receivables  36,996,027  34,228,581  25,249,639  29,438,139 

Personnel Costs

 Salaries, Wages and Related Costs  164,655,067  158,964,415  153,744,815  147,720,745 

 Defined Contribution Plan Cost  17,954,956  19,353,861  17,954,956  18,596,451 

 Defined Benefit Plan Cost (Note 24)  7,244,485  5,790,171  7,179,014  5,763,455 
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8.  Net Finance Costs

Group Company
For the year ended 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

8.1.  Finance Income
Interest Income  332,600  966,938  331,393  946,485 

Exchange Gain  6,428,134  686,622  6,600,009  788,826 

 6,760,734  1,653,560  6,931,402  1,735,311 

8.2.  Finance Costs
Interest on – Overdraft  19,403,658  12,087,518  11,215,413  3,852,328 

 – Import Demand Loans  136,753,198  112,178,830  122,684,059  101,994,920 

 – Bank Loans  31,242,994  29,095,025  27,030,376  19,128,810 

 – Promissory Note Interest  368,443  359,523  368,443  359,523 

 187,768,293  153,720,896  161,268,291  125,335,581 

Net Finance Costs  181,007,559  152,067,336  154,366,889  123,600,270 

9.  Income Tax Expense

Group Company
For the year ended 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Income Tax on Profit for the Year (Note 9.1)  19,000,000  84,650,518  19,000,000  84,650,518 

(Over)/Under Provision in Respect of Previous Year  -    9,862,233  -    9,862,233 

Deferred Tax Reversal (Note 25.2)  (2,936,611)  (14,268,858)  (1,490,343)  (12,703,030)

 16,063,389  80,243,893  17,509,657  81,809,721 

9.1.  Reconciliation Between Accounting  
Profit/(Loss) and Tax Expense
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (29,975,586)  346,794,764  (53,726,032)  321,481,105 

Aggregate Disallowed Income (639,581)  (1,081,483)  (639,581)  (1,081,483)

Aggregate Disallowable Expenses 227,561,740  157,743,952  212,493,540  134,065,401 

Aggregate Allowable expenses (93,044,310)  (146,380,583)  (87,750,020)  (128,016,331)

Taxable Profit/(Loss) 103,902,263  357,076,650  70,377,907  326,448,692 

Income from Other Sources 44,518  653,059  44,518  653,059 

Total Statutory Income 103,946,781  357,729,709  70,422,425  327,101,751 

Tax Loss Claimed (Note 9.2) -  (7,756,392)  -    (7,756,392)

Taxable Income 103,946,781  349,973,317  70,422,425  319,345,359 

Tax on Exports @ 12%  538,709  3,574,722  538,709  3,574,722 

Tax on Balance Income @ 28%  18,461,291  81,075,796  18,461,291  81,075,796 

 19,000,000  84,650,518  19,000,000  84,650,518 
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Group Company
For the year ended 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

9.2.  Accumulated Tax Losses
Balance as at 1st April  2,997,849  10,895,851  -    10,895,851 

Adjustments  -    (3,139,459)  -    (3,139,459)

Tax Loss for the Year  -    2,997,849  -    -   

Tax Loss claimed during the Year  -    (7,756,392)  -    (7,756,392)

Balance as at 31st March  2,997,849  2,997,849  -    -   

Sierra Cables PLC
In terms of Section 52 of Inland Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006, the profit from exports of Sierra Cables PLC is taxable at the 
rate of 12% and other profits and income are taxable at the rate of 28%. 

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited
As per the section 16 (c) (1) and (2) of the Inland Revenue (Amendment) Act No. 22 of 2011 as amended by Act No. 08 of 
2012, the Sierra Industries (Private) Limited’s profits and income (Other than any profits and income from the Sale of any 
Capital Asset) shall be exempted from income tax for a period of six years ending 2018/2019.

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited
Based on prevailing legislation on income tax effective in Kingdom of Kenya, profit from operation together with other 
profits and income taxable at rate of 30%.

10.  Basic Earnings/(Loss) per Share
Basic Earnings/(Loss) per share is calculated based on the profit/(Loss) after taxation attributable to the ordinary shareholders 
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

For the Year ended 31st March Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017

 Profits/(Loss) Attributable to Ordinary Shareholders (Rs.)  (27,437,216)  271,293,076  (71,235,689)  239,671,384 

 Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares  537,512,430  537,512,430  537,512,430  537,512,430 

 Basic Earnings/(Loss) per Share (Rs.) (0.05) 0.50  (0.13) 0.45

11.  Dividend per Share

Group Company
For the Year ended 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Dividend Declared and Paid During the Year (Rs.)  -    134,378,108  -    134,378,108 

Average Number of Ordinary Shares  537,512,430  537,512,430  537,512,430  537,512,430 

Dividend per Share (Rs.)  -   0.25  -   0.25
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12.  Discontinued Operations

Group Company
For the Year ended 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Assets Classified as Held for Sale

Sierra Power (Private) Limited  148,652,326  148,624,096  -    -   

Plant & Machinery  18,000,000  18,000,000  18,000,000  18,000,000 

Impairment for the Year  (18,000,000)  -    (18,000,000)  -   

 148,652,326  166,624,096  -    18,000,000 

Liabilities Directly Associated with Assets  
   Classified as Held for Sale

Sierra Power (Private) Limited  63,000  6,596,000  -    -   

 63,000  6,596,000  -    -  

12.1 Sierra Power (Private) Limited
The Board of Directors resolved to dispose the investment in Sierra Power (Private) Limited at the meeting held on 27th 
January 2015. The Company initiated the process of disposing this investment by signing a Memorandum of Understanding 
of the disposal of entire investment of the subsidiary for Rs. 168 Mn with a third party as at 27th January 2016. An advance 
payment of Rs. 10 Mn was received on 09th August 2016. The share transfer of 8,668,001 shares at total consideration of 
168 Mn was effected on 12th April 2018. The balance consideration of 158 Mn was received on the same date. Accordingly, 
this investment has been classified  as an Held for Sale Investment as at the reporting date. 

12.1.1  Profit/(Loss) after Tax from Discontinued Operations

Group
For the year ended 31st March 2018 2017

Rs. Rs.

Revenue  -    -   

Cost of Sales  -    -   

Gross Profit/(Loss)  -    -   

Other Income (Net of consolidation adjustment)  -   

Write-back of loan no longer payable 6,000,000

Write-back of creditors no longer payable 533,000

Administrative Expenses  (4,083,073)  (1,965,557)

Profit/(Loss) from Operations 2,449,927  (1,965,557)

Finance Cost  -    -   

Profit/(Loss) before Tax from Discontinued Operations 2,449,927  (1,965,557)

Taxation  -    -   

Profit/(Loss) for the Year from Discontinued Operations 2,449,927  (1,965,557)

Earnings/(Deficit) per Share  0.28  (0.23)

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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12.1.2  Assets and Liabilities Classified as Held for Sale

As at 31st March 2018 2017

Rs. Rs.

Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment  124,267,316  124,267,453 

Debtors & Other Receivable  24,384,684  24,356,317 

Cash in Hand & Bank 326  326 

Assets Classified as Held for Sale  148,652,326  148,624,096 

Liabilities

Amount Due to Related Companies  -    62,574,480 

Long Term Loans -  6,000,000 

Trade & Other Payables  63,000  596,000 

Liabilities Directly Associated with Assets Classified as Held for Sale  63,000  69,170,480 

Net Assets Directly Associated with Disposal  148,589,326  79,453,616

12.1.3 Cash Flow from/(used in) Discontinued Operation 

For the year ended 31st March 2018 2017

Rs. Rs.

Net Cash Flows Generated From /(Used in) Operating Activities  -    1,009,177 

Net Cash From/(Used in) Investing Activities  -    (1,009,490)

Net Cash Flows From/(Used in) Financing Activities  -    -   

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  -   (313)

12.2 Plant & Machinery
The Company has classified part of its Plant and Machinery as Non Current Asset Held for Sale during the previous year, 
following the decision by Board of The Directors to dispose the same. Effort to sell the Plant and Machinery commenced 
during the previous financial year and Directors are of the opinion that they still commit to the initial decision to sell the 
assets and actively involved in the same as at the end of the reporting period. During the current financial year due to 
the existence of material uncertainty over recoverability of such assets, the management decided to provide provision for 
impairment.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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13.  Property, Plant and Equipment
As at 31st March Land  Buildings  Plant and 

Machinery
 Motor 
Vehicle 

 Furniture
 and 

Fittings 

 Factory 
Equipment

 Office & 
Computer 

Equipment

 Capital Work
 in Progress

 Total 
2018

 Total 
2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Group 

Cost/Valuation 

Balance as at 1st April  202,874,851  372,223,619  706,855,071  33,599,336  5,465,451  59,162,668  28,199,164  103,915,656 1,512,295,817 1,415,019,629

Additions  4,624,400  12,580,351  15,604,997  -    331,060  11,320,936  2,956,434  130,222,488  177,640,666 97,197,965

Transfers  (4,500,000)  5,820,327  202,365,017  -    -    15,981,432  -    (224,166,775)  (4,500,000) -

Disposals  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   (2,137,831)

Revaluation  154,202,150  135,549,788  -    -    -    -    -    -    289,751,938 -

Effect of Movements in Exchange Rates  -    214,160  5,712,444  20,325  6,346  -    -    (849,659)  5,103,616 2,216,054

Balance as at 31st March   357,201,401  526,388,245  930,537,529  33,619,661  5,802,857  86,465,036  31,155,598  9,121,710 1,980,292,035 1,512,295,817

Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April  -    78,248,314  224,504,095  20,616,464  4,594,083  48,497,049  21,783,491  -    398,243,496 314,628,073

Charge for the Year  -    18,759,608  53,590,237  4,115,846  346,565  8,207,891  2,325,874  -    87,346,021 85,216,846

Disposal  -   -  -    -    -    -    -    -   - (1,609,986)

Effect of Movements  
   in Exchange Rates  -    2,231  59,505  11,059  1,736  -    -    -    74,531 8,563

Balance as at 31st March  -    97,010,153  278,153,837  24,743,369  4,942,384  56,704,940  24,109,365  -    485,644,049 398,243,496

Net Book Value 

Balance as at 31st March 2017  202,874,851  293,975,305  482,350,976  12,982,872  871,368  10,665,619  6,415,673  103,915,656 - 1,114,052,321

Balance as at 31st March 2018  357,201,401  429,378,092  652,383,692  8,876,292  860,473  29,760,096  7,046,233  9,121,710 1,494,627,990 -

Assets pledged as security against the long term and short term borrowings have been disclosed in Note 33 to the  
Financial Statements.

As at 31st March
Land  Buildings  Plant and 

Machinery 
 Motor 
Vehicle

 Furniture
 and 

Fittings 

 Factory 
Equipment

 Office & 
Computer

Equipment

 Capital
Work in 

Progress 

 Total 
2018

 Total 
2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Company

Cost/Valuation 

Balance as at 1st April  135,949,350  323,523,994  546,039,114  26,626,447  4,640,487  55,433,718  25,214,991  25,227,989  1,142,656,090 1,1126,053,083

Additions  4,624,400  5,315,600  15,604,997  -    331,060  11,228,936  2,956,434  15,956,902  56,018,329 18,740,838

Transfers  (4,500,000)  5,820,327  8,587,070  -    -    15,981,432  -    (30,388,828)  (4,500,000) -

Disposals  -    -    -    -    -    -  -  - (2,137,831)

Revaluation  144,155,650  116,549,688  -    -    -    -    -    -    260,705,338 -

Balance as at 31st March   280,229,400  451,209,609  570,231,181  26,626,447  4,971,547  82,644,086  28,171,425  10,796,063  1,454,879,758 1,142,656,090

Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April   -    70,296,820  177,610,980  14,521,624  4,007,147  38,646,771  19,228,145  -    324,311,487 257,289,289

Charge for the Year  -    16,248,954  40,180,164  3,854,836  282,814  7,654,827  2,191,079  -    70,412,674 68,632,184

Disposal  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   (1,609,986)

Balance as at 31st March   -    86,545,774  217,791,144  18,376,460  4,289,961  46,301,598  21,419,224  -    394,724,161 324,311,487

Net Book Value 

Balance as at 31st March  2017  135,949,350  253,227,174  368,428,134  12,104,823  633,340  16,786,947  5,986,846  25,227,989 - 818,344,603

Balance as at 31st March  2018  280,229,400  364,663,835  352,440,037  8,249,987  681,586  36,342,488  6,752,201  10,796,063 1,060,155,597 -

Assets pledged as security against the long term and short term borrowings have been disclosed in Note 33 to the 
Financial Statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.



Sierra Cables PLC
Annual Report 2017 – 2018

81

13.  Property, Plant and Equipment
As at 31st March Land  Buildings  Plant and 

Machinery
 Motor 
Vehicle 

 Furniture
 and 

Fittings 

 Factory 
Equipment

 Office & 
Computer 

Equipment

 Capital Work
 in Progress

 Total 
2018

 Total 
2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Group 

Cost/Valuation 

Balance as at 1st April  202,874,851  372,223,619  706,855,071  33,599,336  5,465,451  59,162,668  28,199,164  103,915,656 1,512,295,817 1,415,019,629

Additions  4,624,400  12,580,351  15,604,997  -    331,060  11,320,936  2,956,434  130,222,488  177,640,666 97,197,965

Transfers  (4,500,000)  5,820,327  202,365,017  -    -    15,981,432  -    (224,166,775)  (4,500,000) -

Disposals  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   (2,137,831)

Revaluation  154,202,150  135,549,788  -    -    -    -    -    -    289,751,938 -

Effect of Movements in Exchange Rates  -    214,160  5,712,444  20,325  6,346  -    -    (849,659)  5,103,616 2,216,054

Balance as at 31st March   357,201,401  526,388,245  930,537,529  33,619,661  5,802,857  86,465,036  31,155,598  9,121,710 1,980,292,035 1,512,295,817

Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April  -    78,248,314  224,504,095  20,616,464  4,594,083  48,497,049  21,783,491  -    398,243,496 314,628,073

Charge for the Year  -    18,759,608  53,590,237  4,115,846  346,565  8,207,891  2,325,874  -    87,346,021 85,216,846

Disposal  -   -  -    -    -    -    -    -   - (1,609,986)

Effect of Movements  
   in Exchange Rates  -    2,231  59,505  11,059  1,736  -    -    -    74,531 8,563

Balance as at 31st March  -    97,010,153  278,153,837  24,743,369  4,942,384  56,704,940  24,109,365  -    485,644,049 398,243,496

Net Book Value 

Balance as at 31st March 2017  202,874,851  293,975,305  482,350,976  12,982,872  871,368  10,665,619  6,415,673  103,915,656 - 1,114,052,321

Balance as at 31st March 2018  357,201,401  429,378,092  652,383,692  8,876,292  860,473  29,760,096  7,046,233  9,121,710 1,494,627,990 -

Assets pledged as security against the long term and short term borrowings have been disclosed in Note 33 to the  
Financial Statements.

As at 31st March
Land  Buildings  Plant and 

Machinery 
 Motor 
Vehicle

 Furniture
 and 

Fittings 

 Factory 
Equipment

 Office & 
Computer

Equipment

 Capital
Work in 

Progress 

 Total 
2018

 Total 
2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Company

Cost/Valuation 

Balance as at 1st April  135,949,350  323,523,994  546,039,114  26,626,447  4,640,487  55,433,718  25,214,991  25,227,989  1,142,656,090 1,1126,053,083

Additions  4,624,400  5,315,600  15,604,997  -    331,060  11,228,936  2,956,434  15,956,902  56,018,329 18,740,838

Transfers  (4,500,000)  5,820,327  8,587,070  -    -    15,981,432  -    (30,388,828)  (4,500,000) -

Disposals  -    -    -    -    -    -  -  - (2,137,831)

Revaluation  144,155,650  116,549,688  -    -    -    -    -    -    260,705,338 -

Balance as at 31st March   280,229,400  451,209,609  570,231,181  26,626,447  4,971,547  82,644,086  28,171,425  10,796,063  1,454,879,758 1,142,656,090

Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April   -    70,296,820  177,610,980  14,521,624  4,007,147  38,646,771  19,228,145  -    324,311,487 257,289,289

Charge for the Year  -    16,248,954  40,180,164  3,854,836  282,814  7,654,827  2,191,079  -    70,412,674 68,632,184

Disposal  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   (1,609,986)

Balance as at 31st March   -    86,545,774  217,791,144  18,376,460  4,289,961  46,301,598  21,419,224  -    394,724,161 324,311,487

Net Book Value 

Balance as at 31st March  2017  135,949,350  253,227,174  368,428,134  12,104,823  633,340  16,786,947  5,986,846  25,227,989 - 818,344,603

Balance as at 31st March  2018  280,229,400  364,663,835  352,440,037  8,249,987  681,586  36,342,488  6,752,201  10,796,063 1,060,155,597 -

Assets pledged as security against the long term and short term borrowings have been disclosed in Note 33 to the 
Financial Statements.
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13.1.  Fully-Depreciated Assets
The initial cost of fully-depreciated Property, Plant and Equipment which are still in use as at Reporting Date are as follows:

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs. Rs.

Machinery  3,896,617 -  3,896,617 -

Motor Vehicles  8,315,215  7,142,591  7,754,751  7,142,591 

Furniture and Fittings  3,798,290  3,161,196  3,597,062  3,161,196 

Factory Equipment  39,234,190  27,015,887  29,217,705  27,015,887 

Office & Computer Equipment  16,862,306  15,202,305  16,649,288  15,202,305 

 72,106,618  52,521,979  61,115,423  52,521,979

13.2  Details of Property Plant and Equipment of the Group Stated at Valuation are Indicated below:

Property Location Method of 
Valuation

Effective date of 
valuation

Valuer Land Extent    
(Acres)

Carrying Value of 
Revalued Assets 
as at 31st March 

2018
 if carried at 

Historical Cost
Rs.

Carrying Value of 
Revalued Assets 
as at 31st March 

2018

Rs

Land, buildings at Sierra Cables PLC 
Galwarusa Road, Korathota (within 
the limits of Kaduwela Pradeshiya 
Sabha)

Market Approach 31st March 2018

Mr. S. Sivaskantha
Partner,
Arthur Perera & 
Company
(Incorporated 
Valuers) 7.9611  69,495,854  644,893,237

 69,495,854  644,893,237

Land, building at Sierra Industries 
(Pvt) Ltd. Galwarusa Road, 
Korathota (within the limits of 
Kaduwela Pradeshiya Sabha)

Market Approach 31st March 2018

Mr. D. 
Prathapasinghe 
Bsc. Est. Mgt & Val. 
Chartered Surveyor 2.749  84,630,449  134,285,250 

 84,630,449  134,285,250 

 Carrying 
Value of

Revalued Assets 
as at 31st 

March 2018 
if carried at

Historical Cost
Rs. 

 Carrying 
Value of 

Revalued Assets 
as at 31st March 

2018

Rs 

Sierra Cables PLC

Land  12,667,057  280,229,401 

Building  56,828,797  364,663,836 

Total  69,495,854  644,893,237

Sierra Industries (Private)Limited

Land  46,317,298  76,972,000 

Building  38,313,151  57,313,250 

Total  84,630,449  134,285,250 

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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13.3.  The carrying amount of revalued assets that would have been included in the Financial Statements, 
had the assets been carried at Cost less Accumulated Depreciation is as follows; 

As at 31st March 
2018

Rs.

As at 31st March 
2017

Rs.

At Cost  154,126,303  346,679,401 

At Valuation  779,178,487  758,820,896

13.4   Unobservable Inputs used in Measuring Fair Value
The above land and buildings have been valued by qualified valuers, who hold recognised and relevant  professional  qualifications and have 
recent experience in the location and category of the revalued properties on the basis of current market value method of valuation.

Land and buildings are considered under level 03 of the fair value hierarchy. The table below sets out information about significant 
unobservable inputs used in measuring fair vale of Land and Buildings.

Category Location Valuation 
Technique

Significant Unobservable 
Inputs

Range of Unobservable 
Inputs

Relationship of Unobservable 
inputs to Fair value

Freehold Land
Korathota, 
Kaduwela

Open Market 
Approach

Price per perch of land on 
similar properties

Rs.175,000 - 220,000 
per perch

The estimated fair value 
would increase / (decrease) 
if price per perch was higher 
/ (lesser).

Building
Korathota, 
Kaduwela

Open Market 
Approach

Value per square feet 
determined based on 
similar properties value and 
depreciated for the period 
used

Rs.750 - 5000 per sq.ft
The estimated fair value 
would increase / (decrease) 
if value per square feet was 
higher/(lesser)

14.  Intangible Assets

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Cost 

Balance as at 1st April  19,465,026  11,726,482  19,465,026  11,726,482 

Additions  3,810,417  7,738,544  3,810,417  7,738,544 

Balance as at 31st March  23,275,443  19,465,026  23,275,443  19,465,026 

Amortization Charge

Balance as at 1st April  12,605,976  10,457,061  12,605,976  10,457,061 

Charge for the Year  1,768,710  2,148,915  1,768,710  2,148,915 

Balance as at 31st March  14,374,686  12,605,976  14,374,686  12,605,976 

Carrying Value as at 31st March  8,900,757  6,859,050  8,900,757  6,859,050 

Intangible assets represents the cost of Computer Software acquired by the Company. The initial cost of fully-amotised 
intangible assets which are still in use as at Reporting Date amounts to Rs. 10,018,868/-.( 2016/17- Rs. 10,018,868/-) 
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15.  Investment Property

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Cost

Balance as at 1st April  -    -    -    -   

Transfer from Property, plant and equipment  4,500,000  -    4,500,000  -   

Disposals  -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March  4,500,000  -    4,500,000  -   

Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April  -    -    -    -   

Charge for the Year  -    -    -    -   

Disposals  -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March  -    -    -    -   

Carrying Value as at 31st March  4,500,000  -    4,500,000  -   

The Investment Property includes a Land situated in Peralanda Road, Ragama which has extent of 15 Perches. 

16.  Investments in Subsidiaries

Company
As at 31st  March 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs. 

Sierra Power (Private) Limited (Note No. 12.1)  86,680,010  86,680,010 

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited (Note No. 16.4)  265,216,310  145,600,010 

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited (Note 16.1)  62,242,700  62,242,700 

 414,139,020  294,522,720 

Provision for Impairment of Subsidiaries (Note 16.2)  (233,883,845)  (134,000,000)

 180,255,175  160,522,720 

16.1  Sierra Cables East Africa Limited

Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs. 

Balance as at 1st April  62,242,700  28,780,000 

Investment Made During the Year  -    33,462,700 

Balance as at 31st March  62,242,700  62,242,700 

16.2  Provision for Impairment of Subsidiaries

Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs. 

Balance as at 1st April  134,000,000  79,000,000 

Provision During the Year  99,883,845  55,000,000 

Balance as at 31st March  233,883,845  134,000,000 

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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16.3  Provision for Impairment of Subsidiaries
The Company has made a provision for impairment of Rs. 233,833,845/- on the investment in subsidiaries as at 31st March 
2018 due to adverse business environment in which the subsidiary companies are operated. This has resulted in continuous 
operating losses and negative operating cash flows in subsidiary companies and discounted future cash flows has been 
considered as the recoverable amount for the calculation of provision for impairment as at the each reporting date. The 
breakup of the impairment provision is as follows;

Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs. 

Sierra Power (Private) Limited  2,000,000  2,000,000 

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited  190,487,679  132,000,000 

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited  41,396,166  -   

 233,883,845  134,000,000

16.4  Investment Information of  Subsidiaries

As at 31st March 2018 Sierra Industries 
(Private) Limited

Sierra Cables 
East Africa

 Limited

Investment Information of  Subsidiaries

Number of shares  42,036,052  4,085 

Holding 90.72% 95%

Cost of the Investment  265,216,310  62,164,300

Board of Directors of Sierra Cables PLC and Sierra Industries (Private) Limited decided to convert account payable balance 
with Sierra Cables as Long term loan payable while converting Rs. 119,616,300 of current account recoverable balance  to 
the equity of Sierra Industries (Private)Limited.

Sierra Industries 
(Private) Limited

Number of shares at the beginning of the year  22,100,002 

No of Share issued  19,936,050 

Number of shares at the end of the year  42,036,052 

Value of the investment at the beginning of the year  145,600,010 

Value of Share issued @ Rs. 6/- each  119,616,300 

Value of the investment at the end of the year  265,216,310 

Value of the long term loan at the end of the year  119,616,300

Holding % prior to the share issue 82.35%

Holding % subsequent share issue 90.72%
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16.5  Non-Controlling Interest (NCI) in Subsidiary

As at 31st March 2018 Sierra Industries (Private) Limited Sierra Cables East Africa Limited

2018 2017 2018 2017

NCI Percentage (%) 9.28% 18% 5% 5%

Total Assets  565,644,063  587,749,311  285,159,900  98,071,273 

Total Liabilities  (502,354,853)  (598,998,399)  (238,905,873)  (37,617,505)

Net Assets  63,289,210  (11,249,088)  46,254,027  60,453,768 

Carrying Amount of NCI  5,871,816  (1,985,464)  2,312,701  3,022,688 

Profit/(Loss) for the period  (59,745,174)  (33,990,204)  (14,941,956)  3,369,693 

Other Comprehensive Income  -    -    742,215  309,564 

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the period  (59,745,174)  (33,990,204)  (14,199,741)  3,679,256 

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) allocated to NCI  (7,956,267)  (5,999,271)  (709,987)  183,963 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities  (100,854,458)  (81,055,553)  21,763,983  22,015,266 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities  (92,000)  (876,994)  (121,529,130)  (81,796,364)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities  99,607,678  57,811,804  100,126,134  65,050,422 

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  (1,338,780)  (24,120,743)  371,835  5,269,324

17  Investments in Equity Accounted Investees
Group Company

As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Tea Leaf Resort Holdings (Private) Limited (Note 17.2)  -    -    2,500,000  2,500,000 

T & G Lanka (Private) Limited (Note 17.3)  8,484,326  3,621,186  3,300,000  3,300,000 

Cables PTE Limited  ( Note 17.4)  28,310,163 -  28,310,163 -

 36,794,489  3,621,186  34,110,163  5,800,000 

Provision for Impairment of Equity Accounted Investees 
( Note 17.1)  -    -    (2,500,000)  (2,500,000)

 36,794,489  3,621,186  31,610,163  3,300,000 

17.1  Provision for Impairment of Equity Accounted Investees

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Tea Leaf Resort Holdings (Private) Limited  -    -    2,500,000  2,500,000

 -    -    2,500,000  2,500,000

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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17.2  Tea Leaf Resort Holdings (Private) Limited

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Cost of the Investment  2,500,000  2,500,000  2,500,000  2,500,000 

Share of Loss for the Year (Net of  Tax)  -    -    -    -   

Accumulated Share of Loss  (2,500,000)  (2,500,000)  -    -   

Net Asset Value of Associate as at 31st March  -    -    2,500,000  2,500,000

17.3  T & G Lanka (Private)Limited

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Cost of the Investment  3,300,000  3,300,000  3,300,000  3,300,000 

Share of Profit for the Year (Net of Tax)  4,863,142  874,224  -    -   

Accumulated Share of Profit/ (Loss)  321,184  (553,038)  -    -   

Net Asset Value of Associate as at 31 March  8,484,326  3,621,186  3,300,000  3,300,000

No. of Shares 30 30 30 30

Holding percentage 28% 28% 28% 28%

17.4  Cables PTE Limited

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Cost of the Investment  28,310,163  -    28,310,163  -   

 28,310,163  -    28,310,163  -  

No. of Shares 360,000 - 360,000 -

Holding percentage 30% - 30% -

17.5  Summarized Financial Information of Equity Accounted Investees

T & G Lanka  
(Private) Limited 

Tea Leaf Resort Holdings  
(Private) Limited

As at 31st March 2018
Rs.

2017
Rs.

2018
Rs.

2017
Rs.

Revenue  97,149,309  64,946,509  -    -   

Profit/(Loss) after Tax  17,368,359  3,122,227  (58,863)  (4,068,415)

Assets  47,596,806  38,550,591  2,511,941  2,470,804 

Liabilities  19,887,781  26,390,081  7,125,540  7,125,540
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18.  Other Financial Assets - Non Current

18.1  Available for Sale Investments

Group/Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017

No. of Ordinary 
Shares/Units

Fair
 Value

No. of Ordinary 
Shares/Units

Fair 
Value

 Rs.  Rs. 

National Development Bank PLC  21,022  2,895,457  21,022  2,837,970 

Richard Pieris Exports  PLC  10,359  1,741,348  10,359  2,123,595 

ACL Cables PLC  1,520  62,320  1,520  82,080 

DFCC Bank PLC  10,000  1,168,000  10,000  1,140,000 

Chevron Lubricants PLC  3,678  384,351  3,678  628,938 

Kelani Cables PLC  200  18,600  200  23,400 

NDB Aviva Growth Fund Investment in Units  2,199,836  24,242,187  2,199,836  22,306,332 

 30,512,263  29,142,315 

Advance paid to acquire shares  25,921,600 -

 25,921,600 -

Total Other Financial Assets  56,433,863  29,142,315

19.  Inventories

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Raw Materials  271,517,218  468,981,718  193,584,156  424,493,008 

Work in Progress  207,675,770  294,452,793  210,283,210  294,452,793 

Finished Goods  682,557,566  473,048,041  504,625,466  441,842,809 

Packing Materials  18,507,380  9,707,422  18,278,260  9,707,422 

Engineering Items  20,746,750  22,209,520  20,746,750  22,209,520 

Goods in Transit  -    18,612,623  -    18,612,623 

  1,201,004,684  1,287,012,117  947,517,842  1,211,318,175 

Less: Provision for obsolete Inventories (Note 19.1)  (56,598,120)  (53,092,773)  (54,478,189)  (50,972,842)

 1,144,406,564  1,233,919,344  893,039,653  1,160,345,333 

19.1.  Provision for Obsolete Inventories

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Balance as at 1st April  53,092,773  61,958,792  50,972,842  61,958,792 

Provision During the Year  9,000,000  2,119,931  9,000,000  -   

Provision Written off  (5,494,653)  (10,985,950)  (5,494,653)  (10,985,950)

Balance as at 31st March  56,598,120  53,092,773  54,478,189  50,972,842 

Inventories pledged as security against the long term and short term borrowings have been disclosed in Note 33 to the 
Financial Statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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20.  Trade and Other Receivables

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Trade Receivables  1,720,328,149  1,524,292,128  1,604,850,611  1,329,003,994 

Less: Provision for Impairment (Note 20.1)  (172,586,735)  (135,590,708)  (136,668,205)  (111,418,566)

 1,547,741,414  1,388,701,420  1,468,182,406  1,217,585,428 

VAT Receivable  93,333,159  201,588,935  51,836,784  105,814,394 

Deposits, Prepayments and Advances  75,797,085  94,687,006  66,371,213  84,032,916 

Other Receivables  20,533,627  32,950,954  -    -   

 189,663,871  329,226,895  118,207,997  189,847,310 

Less: Provision for Impairment (Note 20.2)  (40,835,057)  (44,893,550)  (40,835,057)  (44,893,550)

 148,828,814  284,333,345  77,372,940  144,953,760 

Total Trade and Other Receivables  1,696,570,228  1,673,034,765  1,545,555,346  1,362,539,188 

Trade receivables pledged as security against the long term and short term borrowings have been disclosed in Note 33 to
the Financial Statements.

20.1  Provision for Impairment of Trade Receivables

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Balance as at 1st April  135,590,708  168,115,337  111,418,566  148,733,637 

Provision made during the Year  36,996,027  34,228,581  25,249,639  29,438,139 

Provision Written Off during the Year  -    (66,753,210)  -    (66,753,210)

Balance as at 31st March   172,586,735  135,590,708  136,668,205  111,418,566

20.2  Provision for Impairment of Other Receivables

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Balance as at 1st April  44,893,550  59,244,162  44,893,550  59,244,162 

Reversal of provision during the year  (4,058,493) -  (4,058,493) -

Provision written off during the year -  (14,350,612) -  (14,350,612)

Balance as at 31st March   40,835,057  44,893,550  40,835,057  44,893,550
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21.  Amounts Due from Related Companies

 Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Non-Trading -

Sierra Power (Private) Limited -  -   66,685,783  62,574,480 

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited  -    -    81,315,241  213,895,061 

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited -  -    54,926,995  12,071,978 

-  -    202,928,019  288,541,519 

Trading 

Sierra Electrical Engineering (Private) Limited  616,785  616,785  616,785  616,785 

Sierra Technology Holdings (Private) Limited  7,792,500  9,255,105  7,792,500  9,255,105 

Sierra Readymix (Private) Limited  78,611  236,161  78,611  236,161 

Sierra Water Works (Private) Limited  2,936  2,936  2,936  2,936 

Sierra Construction Limited  88,496,403  99,902,329  88,496,403  99,902,329 

Sierra Development (Private) Limited  1,503,499  -    1,503,499  -   

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited  -    -    63,992,786  -   

Sierra Piling (Private) Limited  15,410  -    15,410  -   

Sintech Engineering (Private) Limited  5,249,682  -    5,249,682  -   

 103,755,826  110,013,316  167,748,612  110,013,316 

Total  103,755,826  110,013,316  370,676,631  398,554,835

22.  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Favourable Balances

Cash in Hand and at Bank  316,419,772  78,771,458  310,476,819  73,481,406 

 316,419,772  78,771,458  310,476,819  73,481,406 

Unfavourable Balances

Bank Overdraft  (238,221,924)  (98,056,157)  (176,325,800)  (37,681,897)

Cash and Cash Equivalents for the purpose of Statement 
   of cash flows  78,197,848  (19,284,699)  134,151,019  35,799,509 

23.  Stated Capital

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

537,512,430 Ordinary Shares  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898 

 894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898 

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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24.  Retirement Benefit Obligations

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Balance as at 1st April  27,835,163  26,208,882  27,528,994  25,929,429 

Current Service Cost  3,941,006  2,937,934  3,875,535  2,911,218 

Interest Cost  3,303,479  2,852,237  3,303,479  2,852,237 

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss  8,752,452  (2,070,089)  8,752,452  (2,070,089)

Benefits Paid by the Plan  (2,327,232)  (2,093,801)  (2,327,232)  (2,093,801)

Balance as at 31st March  41,504,868  27,835,163  41,133,228  27,528,994 

24.1  The total amount charged to Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of Retirement Benefit Obligations made 
up as follows;

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Current Service Cost  3,941,006  2,937,934  3,875,535  2,911,218 

Interest Cost  3,303,479  2,852,237  3,303,479  2,852,237 

Recognised in Income Statement  7,244,485  5,790,171  7,179,014  5,763,455 

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss  8,752,452  (2,070,089)  8,752,452  (2,070,089)

Expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  8,752,452  (2,070,089)  8,752,452  (2,070,089)

24.2  LKAS 19 requires the use of actuarial techniques to make a reliable estimate of the amount of retirement benefits that 
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods and discount that benefit using projected 
unit credit method in order to determine the present value of the retirement benefit obligation and the current service cost. 
This requires an entity to determine how much benefit is attributable to the current and prior periods and to make estimates 
about demographic variables and financial variables that will influence the cost of the benefit.

An Actuarial Valuation of the Retirement Benefit Obligation of the Company was carried out as at 31st March 2018, by 
Messers M. Poopalanathan, a firm of Professional Actuaries. The valuation was carried out as per the “Projected Unit 
Credit” (PUC) method. 
 

Group/ Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017

Expected Annual Average Salary Increment 10% 10%

Discount Rate 10.5% 12%

Retirement Age  55 Years  55 Years 

Mortality A 1967/70 Mortality Table issued by the Institute of Actuaries, London

Staff Turnover Rate 25% for age up to 50 and thereafter zero. 
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24.3  Sensitivity analysis – Discounting Rate/Salary Escalation Rate

The calculation of the retirement benefit obligation is sensitive to the assumptions set out above. The following table 
summarises how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period would have increased 
(decreased) as a result of a change in the respective assumptions by one percent.

Group Company
Defined Benefit Obligation Defined Benefit Obligation

One Percentage Point Increase One Percentage Point Increase

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Effect on the Discounting Rate  (1,469,251)  1,434,452  (1,364,841)  1,454,757 

Effect on the Salary Escalation Rate  1,632,704  (1,680,167)  1,652,571  (1,574,765)

25.  Deferred Tax Liabilities

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Balance as at 1st April  173,166,842  186,911,342  148,620,754  160,774,382 

(Reversal)/Provision  (Note 25.2)  89,903,487  (13,719,456)  76,970,328  (12,153,628)

Effect of movement in Exchange Rates  (198,495)  (25,044)  -    -   

Balance as at 31st March  262,871,834  173,166,842  225,591,082  148,620,754 

The effective tax rate which were applied by the Company and its subsidiaries are as follows.

2018 2017

Sierra Cables PLC 28% 26.54%

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited 28% 28%

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited 30% 30%

25.1  The Deferred Tax Liabilities is attributable to the following 

As at 31st March 2018 2017
 Temporary 
Difference 

 Tax Effect   Temporary
 Difference 

 Tax  Effect

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Company

On Property, Plant and Equipment  557,846,531  156,197,029  587,516,762  155,926,949 

On Retirement Benefit Obligations  (41,133,227)  (11,517,304)  (27,528,994)  (7,306,195)

On Revaluation of Land and Buildings  288,969,133  80,911,357 - -

 805,682,437  225,591,082  559,987,768  148,620,754 

Group

On Property, Plant and Equipment  809,543,060  229,543,231  705,081,030  188,844,944 

On Retirement Benefit Obligations  (41,504,867)  (11,621,364)  (27,835,163)  (7,391,922)

On Accumulated Tax Losses  (167,141,076)  (50,142,323)  (2,997,849)  (899,355)

On Revaluation of Land and Buildings  340,324,232  95,290,785 

On Other Provisions  -    -    (26,292,073)  (7,361,781)

Exchange Difference  (198,495)  (25,044)

 941,221,349  262,871,834  647,955,945  173,166,842 

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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25.2  Deferred Tax Liabilities – (Reversal)/Provision

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Origination/(reversal) of temporary differences

Income Statement  (2,936,611)  (14,268,858)  (1,490,343)  (12,703,030)

Other Comprehensive Income  92,840,098  549,402  78,460,671  549,402 

 89,903,487  (13,719,456)  76,970,328  (12,153,628)

26.  Long Term Loans

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Balance as at 1st April  178,390,323  241,080,475  105,260,675  175,423,020 

Loans Obtained  459,081,670  35,902,422  383,000,000  -   

Repayments  (313,033,785)  (98,592,574)  (273,646,677)  (70,162,345)

Exchange gain  2,641,549  -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March   327,079,757  178,390,323  214,613,998  105,260,675 

Current Portion of Long Term Loans  229,478,139  106,906,114  192,242,000  48,646,677 

Non Current Portion of Long Term Loans  97,601,618  71,484,209  22,371,998  56,613,998 

 327,079,757  178,390,323  214,613,998  105,260,675 

27.  Trade and Other Payables 

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Trade Payables  963,727,160  853,614,582  839,992,298  832,670,287 

Other Payables  47,133,800  120,656,294  40,397,351  30,296,402 

Taxes Payable  7,430,239  (1,686,205)  7,430,239  (1,686,205)

 1,018,291,199  972,584,671  887,819,888  861,280,484 

28.  Amounts due to Related Companies 

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited -  -    43,913  85,817 

Sierra Construction & General Sales Joint Venture  -    5,583  -    5,583 

-  5,583  43,913  91,400 
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29.  Import Demand Loan 

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Balance as at 1st April  1,206,197,811  768,178,333  1,065,874,913  714,097,468 

Loans Obtained  2,627,950,354  2,572,727,907  2,533,105,860  2,329,593,559 

Repayments  (2,533,266,180)  (2,134,708,429)  (2,369,062,742)  (1,977,816,114)

Balance as at 31st March  1,300,881,985  1,206,197,811  1,229,918,031  1,065,874,913 

30.  Contingent Liabilities 
The following contingent liabilities exist as at the reporting date on account of the corporate guarantees given by the 
Company as at 31st March 2018.

Guarantees Provided on Behalf of the Subsidiaries

30.1  Sierra Cables East Africa Limited  USD 990,000/- 
This Corporate guarantees has been provided to Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC on behalf of the subsidiary company for 
One off Letter of Credit and Term Loan facility, where repayment terms are 60 monthly installments with one year grace 
period.

30.2  Sierra Cables East Africa Limited  USD 500,000/- 

This Corporate guarantees has been provided to Peoples Bank on behalf of the subsidiary company for Letter of Credit and 
Import Demand Loan facility.

30.3.  Sierra Industries (Private) Limited  Rs. 250,000,000/- 
This Corporate guarantees has been provided to Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC on behalf of the subsidiary company for 
Letter of Credit, Overdraft and Import Demand Loan facility.

30.4  Sierra Industries (Private) Limited   USD 1,513,520/-  

This Advance Payment guarantees has been provided to China Machinery Engineering corporation on behalf of the 
subsidiary company for supply & Delivery of PVC pipes,fittings and special components.

30.5  Sierra Industries (Private) Limited  USD 504,507/-  

This Performance Bond has been provided to China Machinery Engineering corporation on behalf of the subsidiary 
company for supply & Delivery of PVC pipes,fittings and special components.

30.6  Sierra Industries (Private) Limited  Rs. 100,000,000/-  

This corporate guarantees has been provided to Peoples Bank on behalf of the subsidiary company for Letter of Credit, 
Overdraft and Import Demand Loan facility.

There are no material contingent liabilities outstanding as at the reporting date other than as disclosed above which 
require adjustments to or disclosures in the Financial Statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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31.  Commitments
There were no material Capital Commitments as at the reporting date.

32.  Events Occurring After the Reporting Period 
Other than mentioned below, no other circumstances have arisen since the Reporting date, which would require adjustments 
to, or disclosure in the Financial Statements.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement entered between Resus Energy PLC and the company, more fully explained 
in Note 12.1 to the Financial Statements shares of Sierra Power (Private) Limited were transferred to Resus Energy PLC on 
12th April 2018. 

33.  Assets Pledged as Security and Repayment Terms
The following assets have been pledged as securities against the long term and short term borrowings that have been 
disclosed in Notes 26 and 29 to the Financial Statement respectively.

Name of the Bank Assets Pledged  Facility Obtained  Interest Rate/ 
Commission Rate 

Repayment Terms

Sierra Cables PLC

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

1. A primary Bond No. 3627 for rs.550 Mn 
dated 13/01/2012 executed over the 
land and buildings,Plant and Machinery 
and Equipment owned by the Company 
at No 39/1, Galwarusa Road, Korathota, 
Kaduwela.

 Primary Mortgage Bond no. 
FCC/11/139 for Rs. 490 Mn dated 
13/01/2012 executed over stocks & 
book debts

Overdraft of Rs 40 Mn AWPLR+1.5% p.a On demand

2. Lien over documents of title over goods 
imported or locally purchased

Letter of credit facility for 
Rs. 500 Mn

Sight/
Usance-0.25% per 
quarter

Repayable over 
180 days

3. A primary Bond No. 3627 for 
Rs. 550 Mn dated 13.01.2012  
executed over the land and 
buildings,Plant and Machinery and 
equipment owned by the Company  
at No 39/1, Galwarusa Road, 
Korathota, Kaduwela.

 Primary Mortgage Bond no. 
FCC/11/139 for Rs. 490 Mn dated 
13.01.2012 executed over stocks & 
book debts

Letter of Credit Facility 
for Rs. 400 Mn Combined 
Facility for the grant of 
Import Demand Loan 
and Release of Document 
against Acceptance 
Rs. 1,000 Mn

AWPLR+1.5% p.a Repayable over 
180 days

4. Individual drafts drawn by the  
suppliers and acceptance by the 
customer to be lodged with the bank

Usance Release Facility 
for Rs. 01 Billion (Sub 
Limit of facility No 03)

Repayable over 
180 days

5. Single letter of Indemnity for  
Rs. 250 Mn dated 29.12.2015  
signed by the company

Letter Of Guarantee 
Facility for Rs. 250 Mn

Commission 1.25 
% P.a
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Name of the Bank Assets Pledged  Facility Obtained  Interest Rate/ 
Commission Rate 

Repayment Terms

6. General Terms and conditions relating 
to term Loans for Rs. 57 Mn dated 
01.12.2015 signed by the company

Term Loan Facility for  
Rs. 57 Mn

AWPLR+1.5% p.a 33 equal monthly 
installments

7. General Terms and conditions relating 
to term Loans for Rs. 100 Mn dated 
12.05.2014 signed by the company

Term Loan Facility for  
Rs. 100 Mn

AWPLR+1.5% p.a 19 equal monthly 
installments

8. General Terms and conditions relating 
to term Loans for Rs. 150 Mn dated 
29.08.2017 signed by the company

Term Loan Facility for  
Rs. 150 Mn

AWPLR+2% p.a 10 equal monthly 
installments

Bank of Ceylon

1. Relative bills of Exchange, Shipping 
Documents and the underlying goods 
under the Bank’s Constructive control.

Letter of Credit for  
200 Mn.

Commission 0.25 
% p.q

Self liquidating

2. Accepted Usance Drafts. Acceptance facility for 
200 Mn.

Commission 0.125 
% Per Month

Repayable over  
90 days

Sub limit of under Facility 
stated above.

3. Hypothecation over stocks. Hypothecation Loan for 
200 Mn

AWPLR+1.5% p.a Repayable over 
180 days

Cargills Bank Limited

1. Documentary Credit for 
Rs.150 Mn

Bank standard 
commission rates 
will be applied

Repayable over 
180 days

2. Import Loan Facility for 
Rs. 150 Mn

AWPLR+2% p.a Repayable over 
120 days

(Sub limit of under facility 
No 01)

3. Acceptance Facility for 
Rs. 150 Mn

Bank standard 
commission rates 
will be applied

120 Days

(Sub limit of under facility 
No 01)

4. Over Draft Facility  
Rs. 25 Mn
(Sub limit of under facility 
No. 01)

AWPLR+2% p.a Out of business 
cash flows

People’s Bank

1. i.) Indemnity of the Company

 ii.) 10% cash Margin

 iii.) Letter of Set-off

Letter of Guarantee 
Facility for Rs. 80 Mn

1% p.a pro rata 
basis

Upon expiry 
or return of 
the original 
guarantee, 
whichever is 
earlier

2. i.) Indemnity of the Company

 ii.) Documents of title to goods shipped

Letter of Credit (Sight/
Usance) for Rs.400 Mn

0.2% p.q Repayable over 
180 days

3. Mortgage over stocks and book debts

  for Rs. 440Mn Promissory note

Short term Loan  Rs. 200 
Mn (Import/Local) 
(Sub limit of under facility 
No. 02)

AWPLR+3.5% p.a
2% rebate 
on Regular re 
payments

Repayable over 90 
days

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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Name of the Bank Assets Pledged  Facility Obtained  Interest Rate/ 
Commission Rate 

Repayment Terms

4. Mortgage over machinery Term Loan for Rs. 200 Mn 
(Sub limit of under facility 
No. 02)

AWPLR+3.5% p.a
2% rebate 
on Regular re 
payments

36 Monthly 
Installments

5. Mortgage over stocks and book debts

  for Rs. 440 Mn Promissory note

 Borrower Should Deposit Rs.500,000 
to a savings margin Account monthly 
as a common security for total Credit 
Package

Overdraft Facility for  
Rs. 40 Mn

AWPLR+1.5% p.a On Demand

DFCC Bank

1. Overdraft Facility for  
Rs. 20 Mn

AWPLR+2% p.a On Demand

2 Primary Mortgage Bond No. 281 dated 
30-August-2016 & 02-September-2016 
by D.M.H. Wickrama , NP for Rs. 
120,000,000 over stocks kept at 
39/1A,Galvarusa Road , Korathota 
Kaduwela and Book Debts of the 
Company with an insurance policy over 
stocks 

Import line for Rs. 250 
Mn
Within which,

 i) Letter of Credit Facility 
for Rs. 250 Mn
(Sub limit of under facility 
No. 02)

Commission 
0.25%

With Company’s 
fund/ Proceed of 
Import Demand 
Loan

 ii) Acceptance Facility for 
Rs. 250 Mn
(Sub limit of under facility 
No. 02)

Commission 
0.375%

With Company’s 
fund/ Proceed of 
Import Demand 
Loan

 iii) Shipping Guarantee 
facility for Rs 250 Mn

0.3% for First 
Month
Rs. 2,000 p.m. 
thereafter

Endorsement of Copy 
Document, Airway Bills
(Sub limit of under facility 
No. 02)

0.3% for First 
Month
Rs. 2,000 p.m. 
thereafter

 iv) Import Loans facility for 
Rs 250 Mn
(Sub limit of under facility 
No. 02)

Commission foe 
Documents
- DP- 0.3%
-DA-0.35%
AWPLR +1.25% 
p.a.

Repayable over 
180 days

3  Promissory note for 
Rs. 150 Mn from Sierra 
Cables PLC 
 

v) Guarantee facility for 
Rs 250 Mn
(Sub limit of under facility 
No. 02)

Value < 10Mn - 
.05% p.a
Value > 10Mn - 
1.25% p.a
(Subject to the 
minimum Charge 
of Rs 3,500)
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Name of the Bank Assets Pledged  Facility Obtained  Interest Rate/ 
Commission Rate 

Repayment Terms

One Off Facility

1. Movables if any in the initial notice filed 
with the Credit Information Bureau

Short Term Loan Facility 
for Rs. 150 Mn

AWPLR ( Monthly 
Spot)+ 1.5 %

04 equal 
installments of  
Rs. 37.5 Mn

HNB

1. Demand promissory note for Rs. 400 
Mn

Overdraft Facility for 
Rs. 50 Mn

AWPLR+2 %  

Weekly Review

2. Indemnity of the company Letter of Guarantee 
Facility for Rs. 100 Mn

Commission 1.5%

3. Documents of title/Duly accepted 
Usance drafts

Letter of Credit Facility 
for Rs. 350 Mn

Sight-0.15% Sight bills should 
be retired 
through import 
Loan Facility. 
Usance bills to be 
retired by utilizing 
the Company’s 
Own Funds or 
Import Loan

Usance-0.25% up 
to 90 days

Usance-0.125% 
for each 
additional month

4. Demand promissory note for Rs. 400 
Mn

Import Loan Facility for 
Rs. 350 Mn
(Sub Limit Under Facility 
No 03)

AWPLR+1.75 % 
(Weekly review)

180 days 
including the 
usance period

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited

Sampath Bank PLC

1. Loan Agreement for Rs. 20 Mn

 Primary Mortgage Bond for Rs. 20 Mn 
over machinery

Medium Term Loan for 
20 Mn

AWPLR+2.5% p.a 48 Monthly 
Installments

2. Loan Agreement for Rs. 20 Mn

 Primary Mortgage bond for  
Rs. 35 Mn over factory Land and 
Building at Korathota, Kaduwela in 
extent of 2A:3R:6.17P

 Secondary Mortgage bond for  
Rs. 17.6 Mn over factory Land and 
Building at Korathota, Kaduwela in 
extent of 2A:3R:6.17P

Medium Term Loan for 
20 Mn

AWPLR+2.5% p.a 48 Monthly 
Installments

3. Loan Agreement for Rs. 65 Mn

 Primary Mortgage Bond for Rs. 65 Mn 
over machinery

Medium Term Loan for 
65 Mn

AWPLR+2.5% p.a 60 Monthly 
Installments
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Name of the Bank Assets Pledged  Facility Obtained  Interest Rate/ 
Commission Rate 

Repayment Terms

4. Loan Agreement for Rs. 35 Mn

 Primary Mortgage bond for  
Rs. 35 Mn over factory Land and 
Building at Korathota, Kaduwela in 
extent of 2A:3R:6.17P

 Secondary Mortgage bond for  
Rs. 17.6 Mn over factory Land and 
Building at Korathota, Kaduwela in 
extent of 2A:3R:6.17P

Medium Term Loan for Rs. 
35 Mn

AWPLR+2.5% p.a 60 Monthly 
Installments

5. Overdraft Agreement for Rs. 60 Mn

 Hypothecation Bond over Stocks and 
Book Debts of the Company for  
Rs. 160 Mn

Overdraft of Rs. 60 Mn AWPLR+2.5% p.a On Demand

6. Short term Import Loan Agreement  
for Rs. 100 Mn

 Hypothecation Bond over Stocks  
and Book Debts of the Company for  
Rs. 160 Mn

Short term Import Loan 
Rs.100 Mn

AWPLR+2.5% p.a Repayable over 
180 days

7. Accepted Bills of Exchanged

 Hypothecation Bond over Stocks  
and Book Debts of the Company for  
Rs. 160 Mn

Acceptance facility 
for Rs. 100 Mn.

Prevailing Rate of 
the Bank

Repayable over 
180 days

8. Documentary Credit Agreement

 Relative Bills of Exchange and Shipping 
Documents

 Hypothecation Bond over Stocks  
and Book Debts of the Company for  
Rs. 160 Mn

Documentary Credit 
facility for Rs. 100 Mn

Prevailing Rate of 
the Bank

Sight/ Usance up 
to 180 days

9. Master Counter indemnity of the 
Company for Rs. 25 Mn

Bank Guarantee Facility 
for Rs. 25 Mn

 1.25% p.a 1 Year, Renewable

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

One Off Facility

1. Corporate guarantee for Rs. 250 Mn 
dated 27.03.2018 signed by Sierra 
Cables PLC

Overdraft Facility for 
Rs. 25 Mn

AWPLR+2% p.a 08 months

2. Corporate guarantee for Rs. 250 Mn 
dated 27.03.2018 signed by Sierra 
Cables PLC

Letter of Credit Facility 
for Rs. 200 Mn
(Sub Limit Under Facility 
No. 02)

Sight
1/4% for 1st 
quarter,1/8% 
each additional 
quarter Usance 
3/8% for 1st 
quarter,1/4% 
each additional 
quarter

08 months

3. Corporate guarantee for Rs. 250 Mn 
dated 27/03/2018 signed by Sierra 
Cables PLC

Import Demand Loan 
Facility for Rs. 200 Mn
(Sub Limit Under Facility 
No. 02)

AWPLR+2% p.a 120 days
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Name of the Bank Assets Pledged  Facility Obtained  Interest Rate/ 
Commission Rate 

Repayment Terms

People’s Bank

1. Indeminity of the borrower Documents 
of title to goods shipped

Letter of Credit Facility 
for Rs. 60 Mn

Sight-0.25% for 1 
st quarter
Usance-0.325% 
for 1 st quarter
0.15% for 
additional month 
or part there off

90 days

2. Corporate guarantee for Rs. 250 Mn 
from Sierra Cables PLC

Short Term Loan-(Import/ 
Local) for Rs. 60 Mn
(Sub Limit Under Facility 
No. 01)

AWPLR+4% (On 
regular payments 
bank will grant an 
interest rebate of 
2% p.a

90 days inclusive 
usance tenor

3. Corporate guarantee for Rs. 250 Mn 
from Sierra Cables PLC

Overdraft Facility for 
Rs. 40 Mn

AWPLR+2% p.a On Demand

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

1. i). Corporate Guarantee for Rupee 
equivalent of USD 990,000.

 ii). General term and conditions relating 
to loan to be signed.

Term Loan Facility for 
USD 760,516

LIBOR+5% p.a 60 monthly 
installments 
One year grace 
period

2. General term and conditions relating to 
loan to be signed.

People’s Bank

1. Indemnity of the Company Letter of Credit (Sight/
Usance) USD 500,000.00

Sight & Usance 
0.2% p.q

180 days

2. Corporate Guarantee of Sierra cables 
PLC

Short Term Loan-(Import/ 
Local) for USD 500,000 
(Sub Limit Under Facility 
No 01)

LIBOR+5% P.A Within 90 days

34.  Related Party Disclosure
The Company carried out transactions in the ordinary course of the business on an arm’s length basis at commercial rates 
with parties who are defined as Related Parties as per the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, 
except for the transactions that the Key Management Personnel (KMP) have availed under schemes uniformly applicable to 
all staff at concessionary rates.
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34.1  Transactions with Related Parties
(i) Companies within the Group engage in trading transactions under normal commercial terms and conditions  

Name of the Company Nature of the Transactions Transaction Value Balance Outstanding  
as at 31st March 

2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Transactions with Subsidiary 
Companies

Sierra Power (Private) Limited Amount Paid for 
Administration Expenses

 4,111,303  2,728,221  66,685,783  62,574,480 

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited Amount Paid for 
Administration Expenses

 15,302,978  2,414,612  81,315,241  213,895,061 

Funds Received from Sierra 
Industries Customers

 (514,575)  (275,500)

Funds Transfers /settlements  87,864,379  28,000,000 

Payments for Customs -  33,224,691 

Payments for Suppliers  4,000,000  15,892,560 

Converted to Short Term Loan  (119,616,300) -

Converted to Share Capital  (119,616,300) -

Long Term Loan  119,616,300 -  119,616,300 -

Purchase of Goods  (104,186)  (85,817)  (43,913)  (85,817)

Settlement of Invoices  146,090  19,838 

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited Fund transfers  17,898,848  47,741,800  54,926,995  12,071,978 

Amount Paid for Pre 
operation Expenses

 24,956,169  3,412,949 

Transfer to share capital  (41,937,435)

Sale of Goods  9,651,018 -  63,992,786  52,314,175

Exchange Difference  2,027,592 -

Transactions with Associate 
Companies

Cables PTE Limited Fund Transfers  28,310,163 -  28,310,163 -

(Investment in shares)

Transactions with Other Related 
Companies

Sierra Construction Limited Sale of Goods  85,472,105  109,703,133  88,496,403  99,902,329 

Settlement of Invoices  (96,878,032)  (110,427,071)
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Name of the Company Nature of the Transactions Transaction Value Balance Outstanding  
as at 31st March 

2018 2017 2018 2017

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Sierra Civil Engineering and 
Construction (Private) Limited

Loan Settlement -  (385,000)  -   -

Sierra Electrical Engineering  
(Private) Limited

 -    -    616,785  616,785 

Sierra Technology Holdings  
(Private) Limited

Sale of Goods  565,082  9,704,299  7,792,500  9,255,105 

Settlement of Invoices  (2,027,687)  (4,502,110)

Sierra Water Works (Private) Limited  -    -    2,936  2,936 

Sierra Redimix (Private) Limited Sale of Goods  302,747  236,161  78,611  236,161 

Settlement of Invoice  (460,297)  (57,437)

Sierra Development (Private) Limited Sale of Goods  9,822,030  1,085,188  1,503,499  -   

Settlement of Invoice  (8,318,530)  (1,141,057)

Sierra Construction & General Sale of Goods  -    -    -    (5,583)

Sales Joint Venture Settlement of Invoice 5,593  (6,442)

Sierra Piling (Private) Limited Sale of Goods  729,666  15,410  -   

Settlement of Invoice  (714,256)  (89,672)

Sierra Maldives (Private) Limited Sale of Goods  9,011,152 -  -   

Settlement of Invoice  (9,011,152) - -

Sintech Engineering (Private) 
Limited

Sale of Goods  5,502,128  -    5,249,682 -

Settlement of Invoice  (252,446)  -   

34.2  Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Key Management personnel are those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities 
of the Group. Accordingly the Directors of the Company (including Executive and Non Executive Directors) have been 
classified as Key Management Personnel of the Company, Group. 

Transactions with Key Management Personnel  
(i)  Loans to Directors   
 No loans have been given to the Directors of the Company.

(ii) Key Management Personnel Compensation

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Directors’ Fees  10,800,000  7,560,000  10,800,000  7,560,000 

Short Term Employee Benefits  13,437,500  14,047,250  13,437,500  14,047,250 

 24,237,500  21,607,250  24,237,500  21,607,250

(iii) Other Transactions with Key Management Personnel

 The names of Directors of Sierra Cables PLC, who are also directors of subsidiaries and equity accounted investees   
companies are stated on page 48 & 49. 

 Details of Directors and their shareholdings are given on page 50 There were no other transactions with Key   
Management personnel other than those disclosed in Note 34 to the Financial Statement.
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35.  Going Concern 

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited
The Company  recorded continuous losses and the  accumulated loss as at 31st March 2018 amounted to Rs. 276,202,484/- 
Further, the Company’s net assets are less than half of its stated capital and face serious loss of capital situation as per 
Section 220 of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

The Company was awarded the  contract for the Attangalle Water supply project , which will generate revenue of USD 
5 Mn in the ensuing  financial years. As a strategic move, the Company is now focusing on the institutional and project 
market instead of the competitive retail market. Accordingly, the Company is in the process of the initialising the 
preliminary engagement work for the supply of PVC pipes and fittings to upcoming major projects.

As a result the directors are of the view that the company would be able to generate sufficient revenue in the ensuing 
financial years, where by accumulated losses could be reduced gradually. Further Parent entity will continue to provide the 
financial support to the Company.

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited
The Company recorded an accumulated loss amounting to Rs.17,040,451/- as at 31st December 2017 and it’s current 
liabilities exceeded it’s current assets as at 31st December 2017 by Rs.91,495,374/-.

Even though Sierra Cables East Africa Limited was incorporated in 2015 and able to secure sufficient orders from Rural 
Electrification Authority of Kenya to run the factory profitably, the Company was unable to operate at optimum capacity 
and recover the fixed overhead. This was primary due to non-availability of sufficient funds to import required raw materials.

With the financial support from the parent entity, Directors are of the view that the company would be able to generate 
sufficient revenue during the ensuing financial year, where by accumulated losses could be reduced gradually.

36.  Financial Risk Management

36.1  Introduction and Overview
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

 y Credit Risk  

 y Liquidity Risk  

 y Market Risk 

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies and 
processes for measuring and managing risks, and the Group’s management of capital.     

Risk Management Framework
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management 
framework. The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.

i. Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer fails to meet its contractual obligations, and this principally 
arises  from the Group’s receivables from customers.
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Exposure to Credit Risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at 
the reporting date was as follows;

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Rs.  Rs. Rs. Rs.

Trade Receivables  1,720,328,149  1,524,292,128  1,604,850,611  1,329,003,994 

Amounts due from Related Companies  103,755,826  110,013,316  370,676,631  398,554,834 

Balances with Banks  316,419,772  78,771,458  310,476,819  73,481,406 

 2,140,503,747  1,713,076,902  2,286,004,061  1,801,040,234

Trade  Receivables
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The management 
has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for credit worthiness before the group 
standard  payment and delivery terms offered. 

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of Trade 
Receivables. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant 
exposures, and a collective loss component established for groups of similar assets in respect of losses that have been 
incurred but not yet identified. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of payment statistics for 
similar financial assets.

2018 2017

As at 31st March Gross Balance Impairment Gross Balance Impairment

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Group

Past due 0-60 days  1,137,496,866  7,595,306  793,726,153  2,182,029 

Past due 61-180 days  305,953,759  15,490,103  564,521,209  30,570,232 

Past due 181-240 days  46,806,535  9,158,241  32,036,357  3,287,980 

Past due 241-365 days  36,156,357  12,399,867  41,986,994  7,529,053 

More than one year  193,914,632  127,943,218  92,021,415  92,021,414 

Total  1,720,328,149  172,586,735  1,524,292,128  135,590,708 

Company

Past due 0-60 days  1,115,297,767  1,774,267  751,388,716  2,182,029 

Past due 61-180 days  300,044,372  8,365,410  411,570,512  6,398,090 

Past due 181-240 days  40,859,234  5,405,680  32,036,357  3,287,980 

Past due 241-365 days  36,080,185  8,553,795  41,986,994  7,529,053 

More than one year  112,569,053  112,569,053  92,021,415  92,021,415 

Total  1,604,850,611  136,668,205  1,329,003,994  111,418,566
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The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables is the carrying amounts at the end of the reporting 
period, and it is analysed by geographic regions as follows;

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Rs.  Rs. Rs. Rs.

Local Debtors  1,626,607,194  1,437,958,256  1,511,449,062  1,246,702,201 

Foreign Debtors  93,720,955  86,333,872  93,401,549  82,301,793 

 1,720,328,149  1,524,292,128  1,604,850,611  1,329,003,994 

Provision for Impairment  (172,586,735)  (135,590,708)  (136,668,205)  (111,418,566)

 1,547,741,414  1,388,701,420  1,468,182,406  1,217,585,428 

ii. Liquidity Risk  

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to 
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and 
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

Group

As at 31st March 2018 Within 1 year Between
1-2 years

Between
2-5 years

More than
5 years 

Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Non- Derivative Financial Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables  1,018,291,199  -    -    -    1,018,291,199

Borrowings  1,530,360,123  97,601,619  -    1,627,961,742 

Bank Overdraft  238,221,924  -    -    -    238,221,924

As at 31st March 2017 Within 1 year Between 
1-2 years

Between
2-5 years

More than
5 years 

Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Non- Derivative Financial Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables  972,584,670  -    -    -    972,584,670

Borrowings  1,313,103,925  66,734,209  4,750,000  -    1,384,588,134 

Bank Overdraft  98,056,157  -    -    -    98,056,157

Company

As at 31st March 2018 Within 1 year Between Between More than Total

1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Non- Derivative Financial Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables  887,819,888  -    -    -    887,819,888 

Borrowings  1,422,160,031  22,371,998  -    -    1,444,532,029 

Bank Overdraft 176,325,800 - - - 176,325,800

As at 31st March 2017 Within 1 year Between
1-2 years

Between
2-5 years

More than
5 years 

Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Non- Derivative Financial Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables  861,280,483  -    -    -    861,280,483

Borrowings  1,114,521,590  51,863,998  4,750,000  -    1,171,135,588

Bank Overdraft 37,681,897 - - - 37,681,897
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iii. Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates- will affect 
the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to 
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on risk. 

(a) Currency Risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than Sri 
Lankan Rupees. The foreign currencies in which these transactions primarily denominated are United Stated Dollars (USD) 
and Euro. 

Exposure to Currency Risk
The summarised quantitative data about the Group’s exposure to currency risk as reported to the Management of the Group 
based on its risk management policy was as follows:

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

USD USD USD USD

Trade Receivables  600,881  584,284  598,833  556,996 

Trade Payables  (5,993,041)  (5,432,146)  (5,355,507)  (5,339,659)

Net Statement of Financial Position Exposure  (5,392,160)  (4,847,862)  (4,756,674)  (4,782,663)

As at 31st March 2018 2017

USD USD

Trade Payables - Foreign Creditors  5,993,041  5,432,146 

Gross Statement of Financial Position Exposure  5,993,041  5,432,146

Average Rate Reporting Date Spot Rate

As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

USD 155.97 147.29 158.3 154.3

Sensitivity Analysis 
A strengthening of the Rupee as indicated below, against the USD at 31st March 2018 would have increased/ (decreased) the 
Equity and Profit or Loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on foreign currency exchange rate variances 
that the Group considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. The analysis assumes that all other 
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. 

Strengthening
Profit or Loss

Rs.

Weakening
Profit or Loss

Rs.

31st March 2018

USD (10% Movement)  94,869,834  (94,869,834) 

31st March 2017

USD (10% Movement)  83,818,016  (83,818,016)

(b) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument fluctuate because of  changes in 
market interest rates. The Groups exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s  
long term debt obligation .The Group utilises various financial instruments to manage exposures to interest rate risks . 
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At the reporting date, the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments were as follows:

Carrying Amount

As at 31st March 2018 2017

Rs. Rs.

Variable Rate Instruments

Financial Liabilities

Long Term Loans  327,079,757  178,390,323 

Import Demand Loans  1,300,881,985  1,206,197,811 

Bank Overdrafts  238,221,924  98,056,157 

 1,866,183,666  1,482,644,291

Cash Flow Sensitivity Analysis for Variable Rate Instruments
The Group is exposed to changes in market interest rates through bank borrowings at variable interest rates.

Profit or Loss

100 bp Decrease
Rs.

100 bp Increase
Rs.

31st March 2018

Variable Rate Instruments  (18,661,837)  18,661,837 

Cash Flow Sensitivity (Net)  (18,661,837)  18,661,837

36.2  Capital Management
The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain shareholder, creditor and market confidence and to 
sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital and level of dividends to 
ordinary shareholders.

The Group’s Net Debt to adjusted Equity ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

Group Company
As at 31st March 2018 2017 2018 2017

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Total Liabilities             3,188,914,567  2,736,345,084  2,775,445,940  2,319,851,651 

Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents                                                          (316,419,772)  (78,771,458)  (310,476,819)  (73,481,406)

Net Debt                                                                                             2,872,494,795  2,657,573,626  2,464,969,121  2,246,370,245 

Total Equity                                                                                                1,831,219,253  1,679,694,650  1,814,864,275  1,711,237,799 

Net Debt to Equity Ratio 157% 158% 136% 131%

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to Capital Management during the year and the Group is not subject to 
externally imposed capital requirements.
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37.  Fair Value Measurement 
The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used 
in making the measurements.

Level 1 : Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.

Level 2 :  Valuation techniques based on observable inputs. 

Level 3 :  Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs

37.1.  Financial Instruments carried at Fair Value and Valuation Bases
The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period, by the level in the 
fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized.

Company
As at 31st March 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Available-for-Sale Investments  30,512,263  -    -    30,512,263 

 30,512,263  -    -    30,512,263

Company
As at 31st March 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Available-for-Sale Investments  29,142,315  -    -    29,142,315 

 29,142,315  -    -    29,142,315 

37.2.  Fair Value of Financial Instruments carried at Amortized Cost
The following table summarizes the carrying amounts and the Group’s estimate of fair values of those financial assets and 
liabilities not presented on the Group’s Statement of Financial Position at fair value.

As at 31st March 2018

Carrying Amount Fair Value

Rs. Rs.

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents  316,419,772  316,419,772 

Trade and Other Receivables  1,696,570,228  1,696,570,228

Amounts due from Related Companies  103,755,826  103,755,826 

Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables  1,018,291,199  1,018,291,199

Interest Bearing Borrowings  1,627,961,742  1,627,961,742 

Bank Overdraft  238,221,924  238,221,924 
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
The carrying amount of the cash and cash equivalents and balances with banks approximate the fair value as these are short 
term in nature.

Trade and Other Receivables
Trade and other receivables are expected to be settled within one year from the reporting date and hence the discounting 
impact would be immaterial. Therefore carrying amount approximate the fair value as at the reporting date.

Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one year from the reporting date and hence the discounting 
impact would be immaterial. Therefore carrying amount approximate the fair value as at the reporting date.

Interest Bearing Borrowings
Long term borrowings are repriced either monthly, quarterly or semi annually in line with the changes in the market rates. 
Hence carrying value of these borrowings approximate the fair value. Other borrowings are short term in nature and hence 
carrying value approximate the fair value.         

(viii) Categorization of Financial Assets and Liabilities as at the Reporting Date

Classification Fair Value

Group Loans and 
Receivables    

Other Financial 
Liabilities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.

Financial Instrument

Trade and Other Receivables  1,696,570,228  -    -    -    1,696,570,228 

Amount due from Related Parties  103,755,826  -    -    -    103,755,826 

Cash and Cash Equipments  316,419,772  -    -    316,419,772  -   

Financial liabilities

Trade and Other Payables  -    1,018,291,199  -    -    1,018,291,199

Interest Bearing Borrowings  -    1,627,961,742  -    -    1,627,961,742 

Bank Overdraft  -    238,221,924  -    -    238,221,924

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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Quarterly Performance

Income Statement

2017/18

For the Three Months Ended, 30th June
Rs.

30th September
Rs.

31st December
Rs.

31st March
Rs.

Company    

Revenue  865,273,761  769,447,613  1,042,196,712  1,163,061,734 

Cost of Sales  (740,084,110)  (670,199,552)  (881,535,868)  (968,662,324)

Gross Profit  125,189,651  99,248,061  160,660,844  194,399,410 

Other Income  1,471,943  2,290,216  3,423,271  3,539,629 

Selling and Distribution Expenses  (57,480,918)  (59,095,415)  (53,029,928)  (57,400,126)

Administrative Expenses  (27,257,689)  (26,778,287)  (27,252,026)  (63,170,470)

Other Operating Expenses  -    (5,650,000)  (6,750,000)  12,166,536

Impairment of Investment in Subsidiaries - - - (99,883,845)

Profit/(Loss) from continuing Operations  41,922,987  10,014,575  77,052,161  (28,348,866)

Net Finance Costs  (36,183,249)  (31,620,077)  (42,698,357)  (43,865,206)

Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation  5,739,738  (21,605,502)  34,353,804  (72,214,072)

Income Tax Expense  -    -    (2,000,000)  (15,509,657)

Profit/(Loss) from continuing operation  5,739,738  (21,605,502)  32,353,804  (87,723,729)

Statement of Financial Position

2017/18

As at, 30th June
Rs.

30th September
Rs.

31st December
Rs.

31st March
Rs.

Company    

Assets  3,725,479,377  4,137,699,436  4,153,490,741  4,590,310,215 

Liabilities  2,022,157,458  2,442,555,037  2,426,136,213  2,775,445,940 

Net Assets  1,703,321,919  1,695,144,399  1,727,354,529  1,814,864,275 

Stated Capital  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898 

Reserves  808,756,021  800,578,501  832,788,630  920,298,377 

Stated Capital and Reserves  1,703,321,919  1,695,144,399  1,727,354,529  1,814,864,275 
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Glossary of Financial Terms

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices 
adopted by an enterprise in preparing and presenting Financial 
Statements.

ASSET HELD FOR SALE
The carrying amount of the asset value which will be recovered 
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
A condition or situation at the Balance Sheet date of which the 
financial effect will be determined only on the occurrence, or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events.

CREDIT RISK
Risk that the counter party to a transaction fails to meet its 
contractual obligations in accordance to the agreed terms and 
conditions.

CURRENT RATIO
Current Assets over Current Liabilities

CAPITAL EMPLOYED
Shareholders’ funds plus non-controlling interests and long term 
and short term borrowings.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX 
The net tax effect on items which have been included in the 
Income Statement, which would only qualify for inclusion on a tax 
return at a future date.

DIVIDEND PAY OUT RATIO
The percentage of earnings paid to shareholders in dividends.

EFFECTIVE TAX RATE
Income tax expense divided by profit before tax.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders, divided by the 
number of ordinary shares in issue.

EBITDA
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization.

FAIR VALUE
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged 
between a knowledgeable, willing buyer and a knowledgeable, 
willing seller in an arm’s length transaction

FINANCIAL ASSET
Any asset that is cash, an equity instrument of another entity or 
a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from 
another entity.

GROUP
A group is a parent and all its subsidiaries, associates and joint 
ventures.

INTANGIBLE ASSET
An identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance 
held for use in the production / supply of goods / services or for 
rental to others or for administrative purposes

IMPAIRMENT
This occurs when recoverable amount of an asset is less than its 
carrying amount.

NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (NCI)
Equity in subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a 
parent.

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE
Shareholders’ funds divided by the number of ordinary shares in 
issue.

NET ASSETS
Total assets minus Current Liabilities minus Long Term Liabilities 
minus Minority Interest

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
An entry that is generally found in the shareholders’ equity 
section of the balance sheet.

RELATED PARTIES
A person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its 
Financial Statements.

RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED
Earnings before interest and tax as percentage of Capital 
Employed

REVALUATION SURPLUS
Surplus amount due to revaluing assets in accordance with its fair 
value.

WORKING CAPITAL
Capital required to finance day- to-day operations, computed as 
the excess of current assets over current liabilities.
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Notice of Meeting

SIERRA CABLES PLC

NOTICE OF THE 15TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 15th Annual General Meeting of SIERRA CABLES PLC (“The Company”) will be held on 
26th September 2018 at 10.00 a.m. at Level-06, The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, 30A, Malalasekera 
Mawatha, Colombo 07, Sri Lanka.

AGENDA
1. To receive and consider the Report of the Directors on the State of Affairs of the Company and the Audited Financial 

Statements for the year ended 31st March 2018 and the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To re-elect Mr. E.A.D.T.B. Perera who retire by rotation in accordance with Article 91 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company and being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

3. To re-elect Mr. M.N. Gunasekera who retire by rotation in accordance with Article 91 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company and being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

  

4. To re-appoint Messrs KPMG, Chartered Accountants as Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year and to authorize 
the Directors to determine their remuneration.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
SIERRA CABLES PLC

(Sgd.)
P.R. SECRETARIAL SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
Secretaries

At Colombo, this 13th August 2018

Note:

 y A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting, is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote instead of him/
her.

 y A Proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

 y A Member wishing to vote by Proxy at the meeting may use the Form of Proxy form enclosed.

 y Any member or Proxy holder attending the meeting is kindly requested to bring this report.

 y The completed Form of Proxy should also be deposited at the Registrars of the Company, SSP Corporate Services 
(Private) Limited,101, Inner Flower Road, Colombo 03, not less than forty eight (48) hours before the time appointed for 
holding of the meeting.

 y For security reasons, Members, Proxy holders are kindly advised to bring along with them their National Identity Card or 
similar for of acceptance identity when attending the meeting.
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Form of Proxy

SIERRA CABLES PLC

I/We……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….of…

……………………………………………………………………………………being a Member/Member* of the above named 

Company, hereby appoint (1)……………………………………………………….of………………………………………………

………………………………………………..failing him/her.

(2) Mr. W. A. P. Perera,  or failing him 

(3) Mr. D. S. Panditha,  or failing him

(4) Ms. G. S. M. Irugalbandara, or failing her

(5) Mr. E.A.D.T.B. Perera,   or failing him 

(6) Prof. A. K. W. Jayawardane, or failing him

(7) Mr. B. W. N. Rupasinghe,  or failing him

(8) Mr. M. N. Gunasekera,  or failing him 

(9)Ms. S. N. Lokuge,  or failing her

as my/our Proxy to represent me/us and vote and speak for me/us on my/our behalf at the 15th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company to be held on 26th September 2018 at 10.00 a.m. at Level-06, The Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Sri Lanka, 30A, Malalasekera Mawatha, Colombo 07, Sri Lanka and at every poll which may be taken in consequence of the 
aforesaid meeting and at any adjournment thereof.

I/We indicate My/Our Vote on the Resolutions below as follows;

I/WE INDICATE MY/OUR VOTE ON THE RESOLUTIONS BELOW AS FOLLOWS;

For Against

1. To receive and consider the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2018 
and the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To re-elect Mr. E.A.D.T.B. Perera who retire by rotation in accordance with Article 91 of the 
Articles of Association of the Company and being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

3. To re-elect Mr. M.N. Gunasekera who retire by rotation in accordance with Article 91 of the 
Articles of Association of the Company and being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

4. To re-appoint Messrs KPMG, Chartered Accountants as Auditors of the Company for the 
ensuing year and to authorize the Directors to determine their remuneration.

Signed this ……………day of…………………………..2018.

……………………………………
Signature of Shareholder

Note:
(1) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company
(2) Instructions as to completion appear overleaf



Sierra Cables PLC
Annual Report 2017 – 2018

INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE COMPLETION OF PROXY

1. Please perfect the form of Proxy after filling in legibly your full name and address and by signing in 
the space provided and fill-in the date of signature.

2. Please return the completed form to the Company after deletion of one or other of the alternate 
words indicated by asterisks in the body of the form.

3. The completed form of Proxy should be deposited at the Office of the Company Secretaries at 
SSP Corporate Services (Private) Limited at No.101, Inner Flower Road, Colombo 3 not less than 
48 hours before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting.

4. If the Proxy has been signed by an Attorney, the relative Power of Attorney should accompany 
the completed Proxy for registration, if such Power of Attorney had not been registered with the 
Company.

5. In the case of a Company/Corporation, the Proxy must be under its Common Seal which should be 
affixed and attested in the manner prescribed by its Articles of Association/Act of Incorporation.



Corporate Information

Name of the Company
Sierra Cables PLC

Company Registration No.
PQ 166 (Under Companies Act No.07 of 2007)

Registered Office
No.112, Havelock Road, Colombo 05.

Domicile and Legal Form
Sierra Cables PLC is a Limited Liability Company 
incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka.

Principal place of business is located at 39/1A, Galvarusa 
Road, Korathota, Kaduwela.

Tel : +94 11 4412000 - 4

Fax : +94 11 2770291, +94 11 4412573

E-mail : info@sierracables.com

Web : www.sierracables.com

Company is listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) 
since 22nd November 2005.

Subsidiary Companies
Sierra Industries (Private) Limited  
Sierra Power (Private) Limited  
Sierra Cables East Africa Limited

Associate Companies
T & G Lanka (Private) Limited 
Tea Leaf Resorts (Private) Limited
Cables PTE Limited

Company Secretaries
Messrs P.R. Secretarial Services (Private) Limited  
No.59, Gregory’s Road, Colombo 07.

Tel : +94 11 2671439, +94 11 2671441

E-mail : info@prsslk.com

Auditors
Messrs KPMG, Chartered Accountants 
No.32 A, Sir Mohomed Macan Markar Mawatha, 
P.O. Box 186, Colombo 03.

Tel : +94 11 5426426 

Fax : +94 11 2445872

E-mail : frt@kpmg.com

Legal Advisors
Messrs Paul Ratnayeke Associates
No.59, Gregory’s Road, Colombo 07.

Tel : +94 11 2697893, +94 11 2697894
E-mail : info@prlaw.lk

Bankers
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 
Sampath Bank PLC 
Bank of Ceylon 
People’s Bank 
DFCC Bank PLC 
Cargills Bank Limited
Hatton National Bank PLC

Principal Activities and Nature of Operations
The principal activity of the company is manufacturing, 
marketing and distribution of power cables.

Parent Enterprises and Ultimate Parent Enterprise
In the Directors’ opinion, the company’s ultimate parent 
undertaking and controlling party is Sierra Holdings 
(Private) Limited which is incorporated in Sri Lanka.

Number of Employees
The number of employees at the end of the financial year 
was 283 (2016/17 - 318).
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